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Commissioner

Katja S. Fox
I^recior

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-8S2-3345 Ext 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Aprii28, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (VC#177575), Contoocook, NH, which was a
result of a competitive procurement, for the continued provision of supported housing services for
individuals transitioning from, or awaiting admission to, Glencliff Home, by exercising a contract
renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $9,922,038 from $10,987,684 to $20,909,722
and extending the completion date from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2027, effective July 1, 2025,
upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 14,2023, item #37.

Funds are anticipated to be available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2026
and 2027, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-922010-41170000 Health and Social Services, Health and Human Svcs Dept, HHS;
Behavioral Health Div, Bureau of Mental Health Services, CMH Program Support

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$1,169,650 $0 $1,169,650

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$4,857,015 $0 $4,857,015

2025 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$4,961,019 $0 $4,961,019

2026 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$0 $4,961,019 $4,961,019

2027 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$0 $4,961,019 $4,961,019

Total $10,987,684 $9,922,038 $20,909,722
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I Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
. and the Honorable Council '

•  :Page2,of2 • , -

I. • ..

■ ' . >-T''

'  *s

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to exercise ,amavailable contract renewal option for the
«Contractor to continue to provide supported housing services to individuals who experience
' serious and persistent mental illness and may also ihaveiacoroccurring diagnosis of a substance,
/use disorder, an intellectual or developmental tdisability, acquired brain disorder, or complex '
/ medical needs. ' .•'•/ ■ ' ■ . ' ,

Approximately 20 individuals will be served :atany.'given time during State Fiscal-Years
2026 and 2027. . •

The Contractor will continue to operate the three :(3) existing community-based five-bed •
specialty residential programs while opening a fourth. Supported housing and residential life
services provided in each residence include clinical and rhedical services; supported employment
and vocational services;' targeted case management; and transitional services. The Contractor
will continue to deliver an integrated dual diagnosis approach and ensure the use of evidence-
based therapies such as dialectical behavior therapy and cognitive behavioral therapy.

. Additionally, the Contractor will continue to provide support and skills training for individuals to ••
improve independence in daily living skills, achieve wellness and recovery goals, and prepare
individuals to maintain living in the least restrictive environment based on the individual's specific

•  needs and goals. These'residences fulfill a Community Mental Health Agreement (Amanda D.
Settlement) provision requiring the Department to establish specialty residential options to meet,
the assessed needs of individuals transitioning from; or awaiting admission to, Glencliff Home.

"■ The Department will continue-to monitor semces by reviewing monthly and quarterly
reports provided by the Contractor and holding regular meetings and annual on-site reviews with

' the Contractor. ' . . ^ '

^  • As referenced in Exhibit A, Revision's'.to .Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original ••
'' ' agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement fpr up to four (4) additional years, "

"contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties.and.
'  /Governor and Council approval.:The DeiDar^ent is exercising its option to renew services for two
,  > (2) oLthe four (4) years available. . • . , ^

'■ ' If the Governor and Council does not authorize this request, individuals transitioning from,'
•'or'awaiting admissiori to, "Glencliff Home will, continue to have their options for long-term
cornmunity-based supported'housing limited, and the Department will.be at'risk of not being in

•  compliance with the Amanda D. Settlement.

Area served: Statewide. ' '

Respectfully submitted.

12
Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

vv.v -s C'": ■ - 'i K*..-, ■; * - <
■  • • J •' ..

'I u. .

i '\ '

.  ,V J i . • ■ ' I i
'  . r - I > i " • i i ' - / " •• 2 - ^ The De^rtnunt of HeaUh'ond-Human-Services' Mission'is tojoin communities and familiea , " V..' '

.-.■r ■ V j in'pmuiding opporluniiies forciUzens to achieue health and independence. ■ ^ r V- \ ' ,, , . '
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t  . ■ ' I.

t  ' State of Aiewtenjpstoe
• ' ̂ Department of Heatth-arnSftamnnSerwces

'• iAmeitttmenl#1 ,
■  .' • ■ ' ' ' '• • • , .../ ■ • '

'  ' This Amendment to the Supported HousingiforlMaltsTiarjsifiorarnisTjoorJFromGlencliff Home contract is
:  [ i:. • by and between the .State of New Hampshire, Bepartmenl cfHealth and Human Services ("State", or"

v'r •: '"Department") and NFI North. Inc. ("the ConttadtoTi .
"  : WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement {thfi 'lCDratiadnappTDMEd^afaeB^ and Executive Council
X  on,June 14, 2023 (Item #37), the Contractdr.agreedtop^OTirritceTita'rnfseTwices toased upon the terms and.
,  conditions specified in the'Contract and iniconsideKatioraiQf«ceiaainsumsspecifled: and

•  -WHEREAS, pursuant tb Form P-37, Genepa14Riovisloias,Tthe (Contractimay.ibe amended upon written
■  agreement of the parties and approval from ithe.GovemorandiExecutive .Council: and

, NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of thefpregolngarad the'Tnutuai -covenants 'and conditions contained
■. in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties heretoagreelo amend as follows:

-  !' > 1:- Form P-37 Genera! Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
■  "June 30,2027 , ' ■ " * ' . '

.  " ■ 't • 'v . ,
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8,"Price'limitation.-to read:

.  ' - $20,909,722 ■ . .

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3.3, to read:
•  * . ^ ,

Payment, outside of initial costs described in Section.3.1. abovpj,shall be on a cost
. - • ' '' ; . ' 'reimbursement basis for actual-expenditures incurred net any-other revenue received ,

towards the services billed' in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in
■  accordance with the approved line iterns, as specified in Exhibits C-2, Budget-through

- ' C-5, Amendment#1, Budget. -• '
^  '3.3^1. ThaDepartment may recoup payments^made under this" Agreement, in whole or .

■  ' in part, in the event the Contractor fails;to comply with the provisions of this
'  ■ ' . > Agreement,' in whole or in.part, and does not remedy any such failure to the "

.  Department's satisfaction including, but not limited to commencing supported
.  ' housing services within the timeframes specified in Exhibit B, Scope of Services. ■

;  •;••■4^,.^Add Exhibit C-4', Budget Sheet - Arriendment #1," which is attached hereto and incorporated by '
■  reference herein.. ..

-  • \ 5; Add Exhibit C-5, Budget Sheet - Amendrnent #1, which" is attached hereto and incorporated by
'  • • reference herein. " " " ■ > ' -

1.

NFI North.vlnc. , '> • "/-S-IIS ■ - -■ i •" - 'J * Contractor Initials
•  .rv „• • 4/29/202S r--' -

-  -j' • - •;-RFP-2023-DBH-05-SUPPO-01-A01 . : .Page 1 of3' .V'. . /- ., I -. / - Date - • : ■
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remain in full.force and effect.
This Arnendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governopand Council approval.'

"  IN ■WITNESS yyHEREOF, the parties have set their hands asrafithsidate written below, •
"i' ■ ■ ■ ■" ■ , " •

-  State of Nevy Klampsihire .
, Department ofihiealtbadd Human Services "

4/29/2025

•• -Date.

7—OoeuSifln»d by: ' -

Name-"^^5. Fox: ,;..*
Title: Director

(j '

NFI North; Inc.

4/29/2025

• Date -

"Slgrnd by; , ,

LUKE REYNARD
V  li iOoatDOtofoiowao.,^
Name: 'tUKE rEynard
Title: -

t'- t,
■  , •. ^7;

v"' 'v '{'•
'  ■ 1

11 •

North; Inc.,; ;
.:, ''RFP-2023-DBH-b5rSUPPO-01-A0r '

"-y • ••j;'^y'i7..i2;23/ ■

•  - ii, . * .
,% V ^ ^ I 4 * k ' ' 4,» '

3'' : -- -V
'• Page2 'of'3 •>v' . ' •

' ^ . •

.'Vi

.- I* -r.' .
t-t. ^

V ."fiv; '7
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'V V"''j'v ' '■ ' -J '

iexecution.

,  I

,  is approved as to form;*substance, and'

'.OFFJDE OFTHEV^TTORNEY GENERAL - '

^ /A/10/202S

-Date

rDoeuSigntd by: .' /

—?ta7a«9HO«ijeo '
Name'''^°^y" ^cuan no

-Title: Attorney.-

th'e State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting) ■

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

■  Date Name: '
• Title:

• -•'.1
; ,

k" -> 'kx

■; - ^

,:V;X-'RFP-2023TDBH-05-SUPPOT01-A"0i' • ' ' Page3of3'-
' --V' ^7.12.23^: .• • >• , v.. ^ . y. •;

.  'i . 1
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Exhibit C-4, Amendment #1, Budget

-New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NFI l^orth. 'lnc.

Budget Request for:
Supported'Housihg for Adults,Transitioning To pr From
Glehcliff'Home . •

Budget Period 7/1/25- 6/30/26 • '

.  Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 15% .

•• • ,

Line Item
T^ProgramCost,-
Funded:bv DHHS

^Rrogram Cost - Contractor

iShare/Match

Total Program
Cost

1. • Salary & Wages ■$2,8691549 $.1;307,000 $4,176,549
2. Fringe Benefits • ■  l$76i;383' .  i ■ " $304,120 $1,065,503
3. Consultants $182,800 $0 $182,800
4.. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. ■  $0 $14,600 $14,600
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0 $0
5.(b) Supplies-Lab ■  $0' $0 $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy ■ .  , $15,000 $5,000 $20,000
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $4,000 $4,000
5.(e) Supplies Office $0 $16,480 $16,480
6. Travel $0 $44,320 $44,320
7. Software $4,800. .  $0 $4,800
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $20,000/ ■  $0 $20,000
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $24,000, $0 $24,000
8.-(c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0 $0

Other (Insurances) $93:548 $0 $93,548
Other (Occupahcy Cost) -■ $193,650 ■  $99,087 $292,737,

. Other (Consumables) , " , "  , . $127,200 $0 $127,200
Other (Depreciation). ■ . * •  ■ . $0 $449,020 $449,020
Other (Telecomm.) " - . $22,000 $0 $22,000
Other (Fees, Permits, Misc.) $0 $9,836 $9,836

9. Subrecipient Contracts • ■ . • ■  $0, ■  ■ $0 ,  . $0
Total Direct Costs . . . $4,313,930' $2,253,463 $6,567,393

Total Indirect Costs $647,089. $338,019 $985,109

TOTAL .  $4,96-1,019- - $2,591,483 $7,552,502

't

:  n.'-. _ • r/
RFpl202^DBH-.05^SUP"p6-01-A01

,  " Contractor. Initials;
. 1 'ji . •

Date!'

:l ;lr •: :»v

•. ^ r.; --
4/29/2025 , .V' ^

——^ ^ <7 "V'.
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Exhibit C-5, Amendment #1, Budget,

.  •'•"c .
' ■ ^ i ' '

■. t ■, .

:  !'

I  - J

f-"

-

• n

'.1

"  . New Hampshire Department of Health and^Huraan Services :

Contractor Name: NFI North, Inc.

.. , Budget Request for:
Supported Housirig'Jfor AddltsTransitiphing To onFrom
Glencliff Home ■  .'i'" * ' :

Budget Period 7/1/26 -6/30/27 ' , ■ "  * 1

•  Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 15% . ' '

-

Line Item
1  ;

Program C.ost;-
Funded bv.DHHS

•ilBrogram Cost - Contractor
Share/ Match

Total Program
Cost -

I,' .Salary & Wages: $2:874 ,M9. -  $1,387,000 $4,261,549
2; :Fringe Benefits : $761,383, $326,220 $1,087,603
3.' : Consultants $178,800 .  $40,000 $218,800
4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and .
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

"'■■'I' • ■ i,i-

:$0' $14,600 $14,600
5.(a) Supplies - Educational • ; ;$o •  $0 $0
5!(b) 'Supplies-.Lab .  - , . . ^0 ■ ■ $0 $0
5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy ' ' • $15,000 $5,000 $20,000
5:(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $4,000 $4,000
5.(e) Supplies Office $0 $16,480 $16,480
6.T Travel ' ' ' $0 $44,320 $44,320
7. Softw/are . ;  $4,80tf .  . . $0 $4,800
8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $20,000 .  . $0 $20,000
8.' (b) Other - Education and Training ■  $24,000 $0 $24,000
8.-(c) Other • Other {specify below) $0 $0 $0

Other (Insurances) - $93,461 $9,442 $102,903
Other (Occupancy Cost) ' . ■  ■ -$192,737 .  ■ $105,100' $297,837

. Other (Consumables) -;■ $.127,200 $4,000 $131,200
.Other (Depreciation) $0 $449,020 $449,020
.Other (Telecomm.) $22,000 $0 $22,000

•.! ; .^Other (Fees, Permits, Misc.) 3 T x' -  - , ■ . $0 .. . $9,836 $9,836
9.-Subrecipient Contracts ■ •" V ;■ ■ -$0 . $0 $0

Total Direct Costs, r • $4,313,930 $2,415,018 •  $6,728,-948
•  ' . 1 , • , ' . ^

Total Indirect Costs $647:089 $362,253 $1,009,342

TOTAL . .. ' $4,-96i;019 $2,777,271 $7,738,290

: 1 - X ' .

;  .V.
vs, y ■ , '■

V^' >f7rRFi?-^ ■■/ V 7;
Contractor Initials: '■"

—Inlttal ,

LR ' :■

V  ...A."

bate -^nsnois^-^ -
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)  V ■

Sta^te of Wtw

BepailiDiexit iif ̂

ofJtamcATE

I, David.M. Scanlan. Secretary of Slate of the State ofNcw iHampshire.Jo'-hereby certify, that NFI NORTH, INC. is a New *

HampsHire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business In New Hampshire on July 06; 1992.1 further certify that all fees

.and documents required by the Secretary of State's office havc:bcch received and is in good:Standingas far as this office is ^

concerned;' a .

r- ' '**

Biisinc/s ID; 175745 ' -

Certificate Number: 0007039671

-  I

' 'f
1 - - / ■ ,

m

I&.

IN TESTIMONY. WHEREOF,,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed"

the Seal oHhe State of New Hampshire,

lhiS'3rd day of February A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State

'  'J' ' Y T.. ■ ■ .

/ a--;

• i .'.. -T •

•i -.•■.•W- "''. '• ■ \y\' 'ji .' -
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'■t.r
s-

•  t .

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

- ^

. I, _bellie Champagne---^— —^ certify that: '
-  -i' (Name' of the.elected'pfficer of the Cprporation/LLC; canndt.be contract signatory) ^

,r-| am a duly elected, Clerk/Secretary/Officer of ; NFI North, Inc.
(Corporatlon/LLCiName)

2. The" following is a true copy.of a vote taken at a rneeting of th&Board'Of'Dlrectofs/shareholders, duly called and
•  held on _March 31, 2025". at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

-  V.-: (Date) ' " " - , ■ ' '

. yOTED; V Luke Reynard. Executive Director or Jill Allen, COO. - (may list more than ope person)
l'".-' . ' .(Name and Title of Contract Signatory) . , ^

is duly authorized on.behalf of_NFI North, Inc.,,^ ^.to enter Into contracts or agreements with the State
'  ' ■ ' (Name of Corporation/LLC) ,

-■ •' ^ bf.New.Hampshire ahd.any of its agencies or departments arid further,is authorized to execute any and ail documents,
'  '"agreements and other instruments, arid any amendments, revisions, of modifications thereto, which may in his/her

...• . :judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote,

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force .arid effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)

-  •. days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of.this Certificate of Authority. I further certify,
'  ' that it is understood .that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this'certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed

above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have'full authority to bind the corporation. To the
• extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with

the State ofNew Hampshire,. all such limitations are expressly stated herein,.

-  - Dat^: | \ ^
Signature of ElectediOfficer:

.  Name: Dellie Charnpagne
•. 'Jitje':-Clerk/Secretary - !

•rA* ' "Z •. . . •; ■ i- . . --v ." -• ' .
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WMCVH-. NORTHAME76

ACORD.. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE {UM/DD/Ym)

12/30/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS ' *
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY'AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES ,
' BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

■  IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, thejpollcy(les)imust have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of.the policy,'Certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on •
this.certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in'lieu of such'endorsement(s).'

pRODUceR • , •

US! Insurance Services LLC ' . ''

12 Gill Street Suite 5500 . ' .
Woburn, MA 01801 ■ . ' , , • '
855 874-0123 . ■ ; .

.Susan Kania

®'No.'Ext)f855 874-0123 ' |,^Oc,no): 781-376-5035.
■A^Ess: ^usan.Kania@usl.coni

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICir '

>iNSURER A;:'Phlladelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058
INSURED - • •

NFI North Inc.
40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

'INSURER B :'North Rivof Insurance Company 21105

INSURERC:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F: • "

COVERAGES .CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE'POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDltlONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE AODL

INSR
SUBK
WVP POLICY NUMBER •

POLICY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DO/YYYYl LIMITS ^ -

*A X COMMERCIAL GE NERAL LIABIUTY

)E 1 X| OCCUR
PHPK2638415021 D1/01/2025 01/01/2026 EACH OCCURRENCE sl.000,000

- CLAIMS-MAC si,000.000
MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000

. PERSONAL & ADV INJURY S1,000,000
'.GE VL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

"P0UCY-[~~1 JECT ' 1 1 log'
OTHER; '

GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000

$..

A AUl

, X

OMOBILE LIABILITY

:  1;

PHPK2638417021 - 31/01/2025 01/01/2026 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddent) s1.000.000

ANY AUTO
'OWNED • •
'AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

r
BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

SL
Al

HEDULED
TOS .

JNOWNED
rros ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acddent] $

X X Ni
Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer arddftntt s

$

A x UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE
-> •;

-

PHUB894574 ~

_T , -j . '

31/01/2025 01/01/2026 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000
AGGREGATE $10,000,000

DEO'. X RETENTIONSlOOOO ■' ■ $' I '

:b WORKERS COMPENSATION / - ■
AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY • v/N'
ANY PROPRIETORrPARTNER/EXECUTIVEl 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
K yas. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below '

N/A

.

4067404992- ; '
;

I  . '

07/01/2024 07/01/2025 V PER • OTH-A STATirrP FR •

e.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000
E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000 -

A

• )

Professional .
Abuse • • V

•
PHPK2638415021

PHPK263841502^r.\^
01/01/2025

01/01/2025
01/01/2026

01/02/2026

1MIU3MIL

1MIU3MM. ■ ■■

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddftSonal Remark Schadule. may ba attached If more Space is reouir^
121 South Fruit Street Concord, NH 03301.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

•  state of NH - ;
<  Oept Health & Human Services;

,,129 Pleasant Street
"Concord, NH 03301 ;

.  SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE ,
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN-

. .ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. » -

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE ' • .
•  • , ' ; r ' " ' ' ^

•V'
, ACORD 25(2016/03) 1 of 1 • • The ACORD.name and logo are roglsterod marks of

' #S476ip579/M47595574 ; ' . v-;/?-

,1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.'AII rights reserved. ■
ACORD., ■ f.

,  vMMzp , '•
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j-'.. ••••■ ' •

V'"' U 'f  .--v ^ r _
■  ' /

5  V,

I
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CliftonLarsonAJIen LLP

.CLA'cohnect.com 1 ,

INDEPENDENT AUDITORSVREPORT

Board of Directors •"

NF| North, Inc. '
Contoocook, New Hampshire

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements^ ■ •

Opinion -

•  We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NFI North, Inc., which comprise the -
staterhent of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses; and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

'  In'b'ur opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
, financial position of NFI North,.Inc. as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with.accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. , ' • * - ' , •.

Basis for Opinion , ;

We'conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
■' of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing'

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our. responsibilities under those "
standards are- further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial ' •.

•  .'StatetTients section of bur report. We are required to be independent of NFI Nofihi Inc. and to meet our •
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to. bur audit:
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

'  - our audit opinion.' , • - ■ '

•  Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
-Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted' in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair .

• presentation of financial statements that are free frorri material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. ' '

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NFI North, Inc.'s ability to

- continue as a going concern for one year after .the, date the financial statements are available to be,
issued. ^ '

V  C-LA'tdlihohLatsonAllen' LLPt Is an ii\Sl'eoendent network member of CLA Glob'al. See CLA'elobal.cOfn/disclaimef. " • •
.Vl' -.'j '- 'iy'- ' ■ - '. 'i'. • - ' . ' (i1).. -. ■ I- • ' '' '
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Board of Directors

rNFI North, Inc.,

■Auditors'Responsibilities for the Audit of the FinanaalStatements ] - .
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abDiit;aivhether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or'^fror,. and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance.'ls a highle«e1 of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore'is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government

■ Auditing Standards W\\\ always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
■'material misstatement "resulting from fraud is higherlhan tor one-resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion" forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would-influence, the judgment madeCby'a reasonable user .based on the financial ,:
statements. , , • -

- In performing an audit in accordance with GMS and' Government Auditing Standards, we:,

•  • • Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticisrh throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements", whether due
A6 fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks: Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures

\ in the financial statements. -

; -• 'Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In.order'to design audit
.  • procedures, that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

-  •• opinion .on the effectiveness of NFI NortH, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
■  ti'/, expressed.. - : • ,

.••Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used.and the reasonableness of-significant
T'i' . accounting estimates made by management,'as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
y  Vfinancial statements. ' , ' . ; " . - - * ' ■ .

^ ■ • Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
■  /that raise substantial doubt .about NFI North, Inc.'s ability to continue as a gojng concern for a
'■ reasonable period of time. • ■ '

■We .are-required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit. .

.  -vv-,

.  , . • ■ >5- vi-." , .■ > - / • - • i;. v. .
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Board ,of Directors ^ • ' ■

■  iNFI North. Inc.. *

In" accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we Itaaweialsoissmed our report dated September
- ■ 30, 2024, on our consideration of NFI North, Inc.ts internal control overvfinancial reporting and on our

testsof its compliance with certain provisidnsof laws,'regiiJallons,icoTitiacts,- and grant agreements' and
other matters. The purpose of that.report-is solely to describeIhe"scope of our testing of internal control

'over financial reporting and compliance and the .'results of'that^esting;:and not to provide an opinion on
, the'effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s internal-control overiTrprancial'Tepoiling or on corripliancel That

" • ' report is an integral part of an audit performed with GovemmentAuditing Standards in considering NFI
North, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and complianoe.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

' Boston, Massachusetts
September 30, 2024

'  •< .

r-" -

-1 , *

• . -v-:'-, '/■ . r-
.  '» - f.

I'.f , . -

"  ■ , - I-i- ■ ■
■  ■" ■X ■ '

'  - . ' • • /j . •
"i'

■' ' i '
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NFI NORTH, INC. f -
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024

j  . . • »•

Assets

, ■ ..•■Current assets: • .
Cash and equivalents

" Accounts receivable, net , .
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

^  , Due from affiliate (note 10)
-  . ■ Investments (note 4)

- . Total current assets '

Property and equipment:
Land ' '

Buildings and improvements
- \ . Equiprhent and furnishings

.  • - . - ■ • Vehicles - .

Less accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

1

7,116,823
7,438,921

193,479
. 172,742

5.193,750
20,115,715

,  974,781
12,922,227

882,329
1,626,500

16,405,837
(7.743,454)
8,662,383

Lease right-of-use assets
Other assets

- . ' . Total assets

67,317
282,074

$ 29,127,489

Liabilities and Net Assets

" Current liabilities: .
Current portion of long-term debt (note 5)

.  ./ Current portion of operating lease liabilities (note 6)
'Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities .

"  Other accrued expenses ■
'  -Deferred revenue •

Total current liabilities .

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion.(note 5)
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion (note 6)

Total long-term liabilities

■I \'

■  182,899,
;  33,171

297,997^
2,056.241
1,960,834

149,668
4,680,810

2;352,754
33,245

2,385,999

Total liabilities 7,066,809 ■

Net assets:

• Without donor restrictions

/■ With donor restrictions '
'  ' •. Total net assets '•

21.697,715
■  362,965
22,060,680

.  'v-

Total.liabilities and net assets ,
■- T' . . . 1

>  . [ ' 'See accompanying Notes to'Financial Statements. - -y' ^
■  ♦sJ .

r-- .\

• .$^■29,127,489

■N-. -V

V-",
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NFI NORTH, INC. •
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2024

'.- Changes in net assets without donor restrictions; '
v • Revenues and other support: ' • . '

Contracts, net • • • . .,

Contributions: • • ■ > •

'Contributed nonfinancial assets :
Other , , -

•  . Interest and dividends

Miscellaneous.

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenues and other support ^ •

"  Expenses; .

Program sen/ices .

Supporting services

, . • Total expenses

-/ •' Increase in net assets without donor restrictions before nonoperating activities

Nonoperating activities: . •

.  Net realized and unrealized gain on investments . . '

*  ' Gain on sale of property and equipment
■ ' • ■ : , Increase in net assets without donor restrictions.

. Changes in net assets with donor restrictions: . _ ■ • .

;  Contributions apd grants * . •
Net as'sets released from restrictions , ' ' .

-' • Increase in net assets with donor restrictions ■ . ■ . . - ,

Increase-in net assets " . . • . . ...

Net assets at beginning of year^ . .. ..

" Net assets at end of year

'$ 45,318,236

1,154,633

" ■ ■■ 74,746

502,708

.  , .444

47,050,767

162,611

47,213,376

40,245,200

4.487,311

44.732,511

'2,480,867

319,447

'  54,610

• 2,854,924

162,921

^  - (162,611)

'  310

.2,855,234

.19,205,446

■$ 22,060,680

•• .. " » ; r.- . ' I . ■' . • • •
:  See accompanyihg:Notes to Financial Statements. '. ,l '

" , • • - ■ , (
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- % - , , , NFI NORTH, INC.

,  ' : ' • " - STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

.1' ^ • 1 ' ̂

YEAR END JUN£3£),2D24. ■ j 1 %'

'  '.Krqgnani - Supporting

'iseivices .services Total ,

■  ' .Personnel expenses: '

'  Salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits • '1^^523372 ■  $ ' 2;i 16,686''' "■ $ ■ 30,738,058

.  . ' "Other expenses: •  . . ^ ' * •

"  Contracted services • .  . ■- •4'i535;S21 1,868,632 6,404,153. ■
Other direct costs 1^79,820 268,483 2.148,303
Contributed nonfinancial assets .  . :-1,154,633 - ■  1,154,633
Consumables ■;Lb49,959 • 1;049,959 ■ -.' ■

•  ' ^ Occupancy .  953,240 49,814 1,003,054 : : ■ ,
.  / • Transportation ; ■  ; ' _ .799,099 , .  -.49,390 '  848,489

.  ' •' - Equipment ' , ' ■■ •; '246:607 , ,  51.431, ' ,298,038 ■
^  Interest ' • —• " • '  '■■■87:516 ' - 10,745" ■ ■ "• 98,261 ' ■ •

10,706,395 ' 2,298,495, •13,004,890 ■
■ Depreciation and amortization ' - . 917,433 ^ 72,130 989,563 ■

Total expenses $ 40,245,200 $  4,487,311 $ 44,732,511 ■

-  ■

■  -y

'  '*

' ' t
•' f

■  ■ C'' ' .

/

s  f

*•' k *

^  \

' 1 -'j . .. ' . t
• " 1 " V ^ '

. . .. .

t  '

'  ' •'' , • '
'  1 . ' ^

j t

' t . '

'n •

■  f, V.See.accpmpanying Notes to'Financial,Statements.
■  • .r'-" .--v., ■. 'v

•'.v. V.-V' v

•i" . 'u*'
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r \ -i

' -x

NFI NORTH, INC. - ' •
STATEMENT OF. CASH FLOWS

:  .YEAR ENDJ1!LN£31),'*2024

1  ' -j

'i " •' "

Cash flows from Operating activities; • ... /
-  Increase in net assets '
/•"Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets id net cash.

,  . ■ * provided by operating activities: ' ;
^ Depreciation and amortization . ; v - , '• /

^  Gain on sale of property and equipment -
'• , ^ Net realized and Unrealized gain on investment

Amortization of right-of-use asset . •

.  .j,Changes in assets and liabilities: .

' ■> Accounts receivable, net . -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets'"

-  Due from affiliate '

.  ' •• Other assets
= ' / • Accounts payable- ' •

Accrued payroll and related liabilities
-  - Other accrued expenses
,  Due to affiliate -

Deferred revenue ,
• r\ Operating lease liabilities .

Net cash provided by operating activities '

-Cash'flows from investing activities: . " •- • / •
V - Purchases of property and equipment ,

" Purchases of investments . ' , ' •. i
- \ Proceeds from sale of property and equipment . /

.  .proceeds from sale of investments ' '
Net cash used in investing activities '

•lA
r Cash flows from financing activities: • •

Repayments of long-term debt' *
.  ' ' . Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and equivalents

•  . Cash and equivalents at beginning of year.

Cash and equivalents at end of year

Supplemental data:
'  . Cash paid for interest

$  .2,855,234

989,563
'  (54,610)

(319,447)
60,832

•(2,486,748)
.  (2,967)
"(172,742)

■  (47,080)
(35,180)
345,231
830,530
(60,422)
134,736
(56^249)

1,986,681

(3,313,494)
(1,487,466)
-  55;500 -
1,351,024

(3,394,436)

•  (181,977)
(181,977)

■  (i:589,732)

,  8,706,555

$  7,116,823

98,261

■  •'o. -Coo armmnani/inn A/n/oc tr
,  , . ^ , , , % " ' ^ - ' 1> ■ '■ -'A ' I. ' V -

'  . ^See accompanying Notes toFin'ancidlStatements. ."'i- . • ■  .'f-
^  I '
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H NFI NORTH, INC.
-  \ : NOTES TO FiNANGiAL STAlIBDnHSraiS : " •. . . , ' ■

w; , ; , ; - . • ■ ■ JUNE30,2024 . . ' : . ; ■ ^ :
.4 . , , ' ^ -

f'- ''u'-"'-" ' ■ \ '\

■  NOTE'I PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACOjailJ^^

.• ■' ' - '■ Organization ' . ' > . .
.  v . . .! NFI North, Inc. {NFIN)' is a nonprofit organization,wihosepurpose is to provide community- '

based social services to individuals and their, ̂ nillles. "NFIN is a subsidiary of North
American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI), which Is the so'le/member of NFIN's board of

" •' ■ directors. Substantially all of NFIN's revenues are derived from services contracted with the
1  , . States of Maine and New Hampshire DepartmentspfiHunian Services, Children, Youth and . . 7;

" ''"'.V Families,.'Medicald, Medicare;private pay-,'arid-local;^iicschool districts. - - ' .

■  . Basis of Presentation .
The accompanying financial statements, which.are .presented on'the accrual basis of

.  r-;v :'/■ .. ' • !"f accounting, have been prepared to focus pn NFIN'-as'a whole and to present balances and
.  -' * • ■ transactions according to the existence or. absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Accordingly, net assets and changes.therein are classified as follows:

.  . W/f/? donorresfr/cf/ons-Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be
met by actions of NFIN and/or the passage of time.,- 1 ; : .

,lA^/t/JOut donor restrict/ons - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.■%

. r.

Revenues are reported as increase's in net assets without.dorior restrictions.unless use of-
y. V -^the related.assets is limited by donor-imposed .restrictions and/or time.restrictions." Expenses
/- '' : • are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on .

.  . investments and other assetspr liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net
. . assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or -

'./ law. Expirations of restrictions on net assets with donor restrictions are reported''as'
.Jreclassifications between the applicableplass'es of riet assets.-Expirations of restrictions with ■
donor restrictions'occur when donor-imposed stipulated purposes have" been accomplished •

-  and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed. If an expense is incurred for a purpose Tor
«  . which both net assets with and without-^donpr,restrictions are available, a donor-imposed

restriction Is fulfilled tb the extent of the expense incurred unless the expense-is for a
purpose that is directly attributable to.another specified external source of revenue.. ;

Adoption of New Accouhtinq Standards

.  ' ^ In 2024, NFIN adopted FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic
326): Measurement of. Credit Losses on Financial instruments, as amended, which modifies
the measurement of expected credit losses. NFIN adopted this new guidance using the
modified retrospective transition method. The adoption of this Standard did not have a
material impact on NFIN's financial statements but did change how the allowance for credit

'  losses is determined. , • '

^ ■ . Cash and Equivalents . . ■
.  ' All short-term investments with an original maturity'at purchase, of three months or-less are

•  • considered cash equivalents for purposes- of the statement of cash flows. Cash and
"/'V '-equivalents..within .investment', accounts are considered to be .investments-for- purposes of.

the'statement of cash flows.: t
AI ^ ^ . • ^ ^ • '>

'* ' ^ • , - ' ; • * v" ^ ^ 'A ,
•  ■■ • • ^ ' -'i —7 • ■ • ' ■

ikir- - ■■ " ■'-b'.Vo-, - V- " ■/■;/
" V ■ ■ .--vj- • . ■- .-v:. •"

J s" / '
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. V. . • ' . NFI NORTH, INC'.
'  ,v- .NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

;  ■ \ JUNE 30, 2024

N0TE1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable , ~

NFIN carries its accounts receivable net ofah^liow/ahce for credit losses. The allov\/arice is'
' ■ ^determined to present the net amounf of accounts receivable expected to be collected. The

allo\A/ance represents the expected credit losses based on-historical experience, current
■  ' economic conditions, and certain forv/ard-looking information. The allowance is evaluated
.  on a periodic basis based on.an assessment of outstanding balances for all accounts over

90 days past due.'Those balances deemed, by management to have potential collectability
,  issues are charged to the allowance for credit losses accounts. As of June 30, 2024, the

' - ' V allowance was $47,658. ' . " ' '

'■/

-•r t-

-c «

Income Taxes

.  NFIN is an organization described'under Section 5dl(c)'(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) and is generally exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(a). NFIN.has taken

,  ' no significant uncertain tax positions:

r  . Use of Estimates , - < . .

'.The preparation-of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of-assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent-assets and *

'  ' liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
V expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates.

.  Concentration of Credit Risk - , . ; '
NFIN maintains cash balances at financial institutions, which at times may exceed federally

/ / insured limits. NFIN has,not experienced "any losses in such accounts and believes it .is not
C exposed to any sighificant'credit risk on cash .and cash equivalents. ■ '/ . ' '

Concentration of Risk
'  ' ' . ^ t-

NFIN receives the majority of its funding from state contracts that are renewable annually. '
Legislative budgets could significantly impact NFIN's ability to start new prograrris and to ,

,  co'ntinue'existing programs. ■

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or. in the case of donated property, at fair
value at the date of gift. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line-method over ,the
following estimated useful lives: • .

Buildings and Improvements 5-33.3 years
Equipment and Furnishings. 2-10 years ^

^ Vehicles _ . , ' ■ . .3-5 years ' - ■
*' . * , ' ' ' * » * • •' • ' ' ^

-  Leasehold imprpvements' are r depreciated or amortized according to NFIN's normal;
depreciation policy except mat the time period shall be the shorter of ,1) the useful life of the

■•.a* « a mm ^ ̂  Al- _ I - - T*!. . <> . I *.  ,, .y. vV leasehold improvements,'"or-2) the remaining: years of the lease. The-remaining years .of the it ';
".lieasf Include..; 'the • years .• in>-'- the'-' lease;'-.renewals that - .are,'."'reasonably "'assured "■ ry -,/

7 . , ■ r ' . V .. . . r. 1 • . .
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•  •

NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINAlNCIAli STAI£MENTS

JUNE 30,2024,

f-;-

i"

' ■ note 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY ANDSlGNIHOaOTiACCDHNJiING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Self-Insurance . ^ ■

j  .. ' NFIN is self-Jnsured for employee :medical. health ±are costs. As of June "30, 2024, the
estimated liability for health ca're cla1ms'incLirred 'but:not yet reported or paid was $172,584

-  • ' • f . included in accrued payroll and Telatedllabilities'lnithe •accompanying statement of financial
position. . . ,

'  1 ' Fair Value of Financial Instruments '
Fair value represents the price that NFIN,would receive upon the sale of an asset or paid-
upon the transfer of a liability in ah orderly transaction.between market participants as of the
rneasurement date. NFIN uses a three-tier hierarchy to categorize those assets and

;.r ; liabilities based on those valuatiori methodologies employed.'The three-tier hierarchy of
'  inputs is summarized in the three broad levels listed below.

T  Leve/7 -quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.

;  , /.eve/2-other, significant observable inputs (jncluding quoted prices for similar financial
instruments,-interest rates, credit risk, etc.).

'  ';r ' • . ■ '
/.eve/3-significant unobservable inputs (including NFIN's own assumptions in

■ . ; ■ ^determining the fair value of financial instrurrients).
■  V ■ . ■ ■ . '
:  - • The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority- to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to

Levels inputs. NFIN utilizes valuation techniques that maximizes the use of observable
.inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible.

■  Leases- . ..'■"•V.r ^
.  ■ NFIN determines if an arrangement is a lease aLinception. NFIN has leases under which it •

is obligated as a lessee. Operating leases,as a lessee are included'ln right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities' in the statement of fi nancial.position. . ■ . , ■

;  ̂ Right-of-use assets represent NFIN's right Jo; use an underlying assetfor the lease:term'
;  ■ y ■ ■ . Lease liabilities represent NFIN's liability to make lease payments arising from the lease

Operating right-of-use assets and related obligations are recognized at corhmencement date
based on the present value of lease payment's over the lease term discounted using an
appropriate incremental borrowing rate. NFIN has elected to use a practical expedient of the
risk-free borrowing rate (applicable U.S. Department of Treasury risk-free treasury rate) as
the incremental borrowing rate, which is .based on the information available at
commencement date' in determining^ the present value of lease payments. The value of an
option to extend or terminate a lease is reflected to the extent it is reasonably certain
management will exercise that option. .. -
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-  - - NFI NORTH, INC.

■  ,■ NOTES TO FINANGlAL^TAiffimENTS
S  JUNE 30,2024

7^' . V •.

.

\

:  '4 ■ 'h

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY ANDiSIGNIFICAWJMCISOiDiairdNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)

".V.

i  .

' ' ' .1 • y

./•

. Revenue Recognition

NFIN recognizes revenue at an amount tbait.:re11ects the consideration to which NFIN ■
expects to be entitled in exchange for trarrsTerring goods or'services to its customers using
the following five-step process;

1. , Identify the contract(s) with the customer _ > • •
2. Identify the performance obligation(s) inlheioOntract :
3. Determine the transaction price . ' •*
4. Allocate the transaction price to performance-obligations in the contract ' •
5. Recognize revenue when (or as) NFIN satisfiesa;performance obligation.

•  See note 7 for details on how the above.five-step process is applied to NFIN's contracts with "
customers.

Contributed Nonflnancial Assets

NFIN receives the contributions of the use of facilities which are valued at the fair value of -
similar properties available use in comrnercial' rharkets. NFIN also receives contributed '

' goods which are value at estimated fair value. See note 8 for additional information on
■ contributed nonfinancial assets in 2024. - *

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs incurred totaled $81,423 '
during the year ended June 30,'2024. :

Subsequent Events , .
;  NFIN has evaluated-subsequent event's,through' September 30, 2024, the .date.which the!.^

financial-statements were available for issue, noting no events requiring adjustment to, or - ^
disclosure in, the financial statements. . ^

.  j

! .'' ft-. ' "

NO>E 2^ , LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2024, assets available for geheral expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use. within one year of the statement of financial position date,
comprise the following:

Cash and equivalents $ 7,116,823
Accounts receivable, net 7,438,921
Investments 5,193,750

' Due from affiliate ' ., ' * 172,742
.  ' Total financial assets 'I.. 19.922,236

■  ' Less amounts.designated for program purposes " ^ (362,965)
■J" - ' Total financial"assets available for general expenditures . $ 19,559,271
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NFI NORTH, INC. .:
NOTES TO FiNANCIfia-'SJATEMESniS

JUNE 3D. 2024 ̂

.-Ir

,  - ■ . N'OTE.2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABLE:PRF.lNm!nam:ia^SEnSiJK3OTt^^

V • ^ ,'As part-of the NFIN's liquidity managfiro^ifiiJFJNiina^^^ capital lines of credit, •
which provides liquidity available ^to iTieet igeneral «e5g3e7Kiitares as, liabilities^and other

"  obligation-come due. " •• • ' . .
'  . .- I .... ... -i'r. V :

\ / NOTE 3 LINE OF CREDIT

■ ' NAFI makes available to its subsidiaries, including NFIN,"-NAFI Connecticui,-inc. (NAFICT),
■' . ' .. NFI Vermont, lnc."(NFIV) and NFI Massachusetts Inc. (NFO^'a two-year term committed

. \ , facility^ $8,000,000 line of credit fromTD:Bank. The iline of credit bears interest at a '
^  " fluctuating rate equal to the Federal.Reserve'Bank of'New'Yofk .1-Month Secured Overnight .

Financing Rate (SOFR), plus 2.o6®/o per.ahnum, not to exceed 6.00%, (6.00%. 'as of-
'  . ■ June 30, 2024). Borrowings under the line are jointly guaranteed by NAFI, NAFICT, NFIV,

■  \ NFI and NFIN and are collateralized by substantially all of their assets.

'■ Borrowings under the line of credit,due and payable on May 31, 2026, without notice or
- / demand. As of June,30,- 2024, there were no borrowings outstanding under this line' of

■  ; " • : . credit. . ' . .

■  ' In addition, NAFI has entered into Letter.of'Credit agreements with TO for a total amount of
.  - .-r ' ' $1^959,620. .The Letter of Credit'agreerhenti'cari be utilized: by all subsidiaries in the-

'  \. ' " ..aggregate of $8,000,000 and are not collateralized by additional cash. The Letter of Credit -
agreements are a requirement ofNAFfs.workers'compensation carrier, ' ,

NbTE4 INVESTMENTS - T, . - '

'  , / Investments are carried at fair value.^ Jti'vestments as of; June 30, 2024 consisted of the '
-• ' following: , . V ' • ,

.j'. .

- ■'<

, Corporate, bonds . ■ '" *$ 2,629,975 . .
_ Equities ■ ' , ■' ' ^ _ "2,440,923 ■' . .
' Cash and equivalents . •' • ■ ' , ' 122,852

. ' / $ 5,193,750

All investments" are valued using Leyel 1 inputs in accordance with the fair value hierarchy,
except corporate bonds which are considered Level 2. There were no transfers between fair
value levels during the year.

J v
^  V,/.-- •

T-' Viu, iT .■'v s' ' .i ■ .. . ' .
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.  NFl NORTH, INC.
'  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024 ' .

■i.
;  . I -

.:N0TE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT ^ ^ ,

■-" Long-term debt as of June 30, 2024 consisted ofithe following: .

•  ' ■ . • ' ■ • • • - . " Fiscal ■
.  ' !' • Year Due

-Mortgages payable, secured by real estate. 0.00%-8'00% "2026-2041
•  ' Total long-term debt • . ,

! . ^ Less current portion . • '

■ Total long-term debt, net of current portion ••

Amount

$ 2,535,653
2,535,653

\ (182,899)
$ 2,352,754 '

■  Certain mortgages payable to housing authorities provide that a portion of the principal will
be forgiven at the end of the loan period if the underlying properties are used to provide

•  'housing in accordance with stipulated conditions. In addition, certain mortgages payable
,contain various prepayment penalties. • . " '

- NFIn is required to maintain,certain debt service coverage ratios.-

^  Scheduled repayments of long-terrn debt are as follows;,• ; . ' ' . .
'I'".

.Year ended June'30: ■ '<
'^025" r
2026

;  - 2027 ' ■-
.  ̂ ^ ■2028",;, -/ ^

.  2029 ■
Thereafter- ' '

$. 182,'899 •
-  617,920 • -

■  ' 325,160
-, .462.633

' 101,573 ■ '
■ 845,468 ■

$ 2,535,653

Interest expense was $98,261 for tlie year ended June 30, 2024.

NOTES LEASES

NFIN is committed to annual -payments under several long-term non-cancelable (except
under certain circumstances) operating leases for property and equipment through fiscal
year 2030. ,

'  . 7.

'  -r-Tr /•. Jl"'.
f . 'A'' ' "'A

i :

r

•  •7^"' ' ■ ''7" 7..','
K'" ■ "•r. '
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r  . / . .: V "■ . N^I NORTH. INC. -
,  :.i' ' .. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.  . JUNE 30. 2024 ,

NOTE 6 LEASES (CONTINUED)

^  Lease expense reported Jn occupancy, transpantation, and equipment in th'e.statement of
functional expenses amounted to $105,516 Tor the year ended .June 30, 2024,..-the ■
components of which are as follows: • .

Lease cost: ^ -
•  . Operating lease expense ,$ 89,316 ,

'  Z" ' Shdrt-tefrh lease expense ^ 16,200 '
■  ' ' ' " ; " $ 105,516 : ■ ■ '

Operating right-of-use assets,exchanged for lease liabilities during-2024 totaled $28,649,

Payments due" include options to extend, leases that are reasonably certain through fiscal
year 2030 and are summarized below: .

-  Year ended June 30: - • ' '
■  - v ■ ■ 2025. ■ ■ $ 3.5;07i2

■  2026; ' • . .■:1.1,489. ' ■'
•  .. 2027 11,113 ■ ; ■ ' Z- ■

/r ' ■ 2028 .6,333 , j - - ,
Z: ":' 'V- ' '/. ■ '2029. , .'Z "Z 5,865 ' "

.  • ' •' • ■ •• ■■ Thereafter' • . . • 255' - .

.t .

\  ' 70,127
' Less:.amo.urits representing interest. " ■ (3,711)

Operating lease liabilities • ■$ ' 66,416

"  ' The weighted-average remaining lease term for operating leases is 36 .months. The
- - , ; , weighted-average discount rate for operating leases Is 3.47%. ,

■  ' . N0TE 7 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS ■ ! 'Z >

•  " • " , Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, (ASC Topic606), revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when"
control of the promised goods or services is transferred in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which we.expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services (i.e., •
the transaction price).

Revenues from contracts are primarily derived from cost reimbursement, per dierh arid
■ fee-for service contracts. Cost reimbursement contracts are recognized with expenses being . , , -

' . ' '• reimbursed for services delivered over the course of client enrollment period which' is V '
-  generally as expenses are incurred. ^ ', 1 - > ■ - ^

Z  fZ' "Z ' . ' . ,VZ. Z
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^Fl NORTH, INC. •
NOTES fO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

' NOTE 7 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOraEEES<{CONJJNUED)

Rate based contracts are recognized with;expenses*dbfilng<relrnbursed for services delivered
^  over the cours.e of clienTstay based on'arfestablished rate with'the related funding source ,

•  - '' which is generally when services are provided. iRevenues'from contracts consisted of 23%
for cost reimbursement'contracts and 7*7% for nnat6i.based'contracts for the year ended

.  . June 30,2024. '

.  ■' ■ Balances of accounts receivable and deferred revenireTelated to contracts with customers

•• are summarized below:

'•H; Accounts

Receivable

Opening (July 1* 2023)
Closing (June 30, 2024)
Increase

Deferred

Revenue

$ 4,958,173 $  14,932

7,438,921 149,668

$ 2,480,748 $  134,736

NOTES CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIALASSETS

;■ For the year-ended June 30, 2024, contributions'of nonfinancial assets recognized by NFIN
•  within the statement of activities included: ' • • • ' • ,

Rent
Consumables and supplies-

■$ 1,092,565
62,068

,$■ 1,154.633

NpIN recognized contributed nonfinancial assets within revenue, including contributions of
rent, consumables and supplies. Contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor-
imposed restrictions. • . ■

The contributed space is for programmatic activities. In valuing the contributed space, which /. ••
-is located in Concord, New Hampshire, NFIN estimated the fair value on the basis of recent"
comparable rental prices in the area's real estate market.

NOTES RETIREMENT PLAN

NFIN has a qualified defined contribution retirement plan for eligible employees to which
annual contributions are made at the discretion of NFIN's Board of Directors. NFIN elected
to make a contribution of $420,346 for .the year, ended June 30, 2024. These expenses are
included in employee benefits expense within the accompanying statement of functional • •
expenses. " , . . . . '

} •'} ■■ V ■ ' ' V ' • . ".V
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• ' ^ ' , • NOTES TO FINANGIALSTAiTiEMENTS

NFI NORTH, INO.
) FINANCIALSj*^

•  JUNE30;2024

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ' . "

\  ; North , American Family Institute, ' Inc.'f{NATil,), .an affiliate,, charges an administrative-
/  ■" management fee for supporting service costs'that'NAFI incurs on behalf of the'subsidiaries.

; These allocated costs amounted to $1,941',078*:for'the year ended June-30, 2024, and have ■'
been included in supporting services expenses 'inrthe accompanying statements of activities

.  - arid contracted services expenses within the statement of functional expenses.

■  In addition, NFIN pays NAFI a property charge'for usage oif certain fixed assets of NAFI.
This charge was $20,502 for the year ended June 30, 2024, and has been included in" the ■
accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses. . ' •

'  Cost reimbursement overpayments have resulted in a balance due from NAFI as of-June 30,
, 2024 in the amount of $172,742. This amount has been reported as due from affiliate in the
accompanying statement of financial position and is expected to be paid in one year.

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES ' .
•  .1 • , , ' • ' ^ " '

-j. In the normal course of operations,'NFIN is subject to the laws and regulations of federal,
- i state, and'local governments. From tirh'e to time,'NFIN.may be notified of potential claims or

litigation. Management evaluates such claims if they arise. NFIN was notified that it was •
■ ' . named a party,to an ongoing.lawsuit. The outcome.of the lawsuit is not.yet fi nalized. ^ '

NFIN has established a reserve of $1,083,712 for. management's estimation of probable
•  ̂ expenses related to ongoing litigation. Since; information regarding the case continues to ;

•" evolve, management' continues' to evaluate'-and monitor any ■ potential impact to the
'disorganization. . ■_ ;■ " .• . -

.1

,.11 ■■ - .V a-;' .'
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CliftonLafsonAllen LLP,
CLAconnect.com s

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON lNT£RNAL CGNirRDL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE ANDjOTHER MAJiHERSBASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board .of Directors ■

NFI North, Iric. . ; . "
Contoocook, Nevy Hampshire . " " .

We have audited, in accordance with the'auditing standards generally accepted in the United Siates of
Anierica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30. 2024. and the
related, statements of activities, functional expenses, and. cash flows for the year then ended,' and the

■ related.notes to the financial statements, and have issuBd our report thereon dated September 30
2024'.^ . '

r Repph on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
'In-planning and performing pur audit of the financial statements, we considered NFI North. Inc.;s

;'internal control oyer financial reporting {internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are. appropriate in the circurnstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statemehts. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s
'internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North.' Inc.'s
-internal control. • -

v' ■ ;■ ■ ■■■ ■ • >
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of.performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A', material weakness is, a deficiency, or a
combination, of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
;misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented; or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is.a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. ■ ^

V . CtA,("ci>f{"onlar'5'onAlle'n.LLP) is ah iadependem ncuvofk meiiibet of ClAGldbal'. See CLAelobal.cbm/disclaimer,. • . ' • " , , •' ■' " ~
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Board of Directors ' - ,
■  .NFI-Ndrthjnc. '• . '

■^Report gri Compliance and Other Matters .-c>r
•As part'of obtaining reasonable assurance about.whetherlNBllNorth, Inc.'S-financial statements are free •
from material misstatement, we perforrfied tests of its ^compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,' noncompliance with which coujd have a direct and.
material effect on the financial statements: However, .providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of pur audit, and accordingly, :we do not express'such an opinion. The-
results of our tests disclosed no. Instances of noncompliahcevor other matters that are required to be",
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report • .
■The purpose of this report, is. solely to describe the scope of our testing of interhal control and . .
compliance.and'the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the •
entity's/internal control or on compliance. This report is an lintegral part of an audit performed in ^
accordance with Government Auditing Standards-in" considering the entityls internal control, and-;
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. . -

" CllftonLarsonAllen LLP

;Bqston, Massachusetts . ,
September 30, 2024

-hT, • .

•  "C., . 'r :

i'- f! . I,P • C-,. v- ^ -
>• ^ i'v •' ,

-■ • ' ■
'  I

.-5 - •
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m̂ Global
mOfP£«OEHT

KCTWORKMEMBEfi

CLA {ClittohLarsonAJlen LLP) is a network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer.
Investment advisory services are.offered through CtiftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an"
SEC-registered investment advisor.

■'■irtJuiriwitr'iltnhiiTifci i*irtin.
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NFl north; INC'
OFFICERS

Title Name

President ■

Treasurer

Clerk/Secretary

Patricia Fillio ' • ^ T >
Licensed Clinical Mental''t ' .
Health Counselor

Ashley, Wainwrighf .
Marketing Professional

Dellie Champagne
'Events - • -'-' V 1
Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer

Representative . ' ' ̂

•

BOARD OF DIRECT

■  -Vli;...'

" i"*

■ {.

Name

Siianne Nader
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Tei^ Lochhead

Patricia Fillio

Don Nason
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Educator

Events-

Coordinator/Teacher/Consiimer.

Representative

Marketing Professional

Retired Communications

Consultant
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Noel Chipman

I. 3

>

LICENSE ' . , . / ■ ,

New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Social'Worker ' ; . . - ' April2004
"  '-Licensenumber 1203 • . • ' '

EDUCATION ; :
Masters in Social Work, Simmons Graduate School, Boston MA ^ May2001

■ Bachelor of Arts in Sociology, Hartwick College, Oneonta NY. , ' . . ' ' " Mayl997-

PROFESSIONAL WORK EXPERIENCE '

Transitional Housing Services, Concord NH January 1,2012-Present '
' ' - Clinical Director responsible for the overall planning, implementation and oversight of the clinical services •-

■^ provided by NFl North Transitional Housing Services in Concord, Bradford, Bethlehem, Ashland and Manchester; , ; •
-rManager and supervisor of the THS Concord day treatment program "and its"clinical, case management, supported

-  employment, educational and direct care staff * : ,
- Oversee and provide individual and group therapy to consumers with severe persistent mental illness, found not " .

'  - -guilty by reason of insanity, incompetent to stand trial, sexual offenders and / or folks with other crirninal , •
'  .backgrounds ■ • ■ • , ^ ' "• r '

■ - Management and assessment of all new referrals for THS locations from New Hampshire Hospital, Community
. Mental Health Centers and various designated receiving facilities.arid arrange evaluations when needed

- Oversee, reyiew and approve the development of individual client centered, strengths based treatment plans
,  -.Facilitate and coordinate clinical trainings for THS staffand agency staff , .

. - Review of clinical records to ensure quality and compliance with state regulations and Joint Commissiori
^  .standards and provide feedback and traiiiing on record keeping: • : • . . , \

: Provide the.schedule and curriculum of 50-60 groups weekly and rotating quarterly as a part of a Restorative • .
■  ■ .vi partial Hospitalization (RPH) servicing 40 consumers with mental health challenges ' . • • . >

•  r Cdllabbrat'e with program management and staff regarding the therapeutic milieu and the'clinicaj orientation of
. ' -r- ^THs-;;

. "V Facilitate new consumer interviews, quarterly reviews, cliehtcentered conferences, family meetings, discharge • , . •
_ meetings and other various meetings with outside providers . • . , . •,

• .o Collaborate with many outside agencies state wide to ensurepiir THS program's are meeting the needs of our . . '
'^'x,:f'con'sumejs,pther outside agencies.and the community at large .. , • . * • "

• V-^Supenvisof for clinicians seeking licensure and graduate student interns .> ■ "•
Transitional Housing Services, Concord NH ' . May 2003-January 1,2012

,:Experienced Senior Psychiatric Social Worker; Clinical team leader heading multi-disciplinary treatment team
.  Provides therapeutic'clinical services for individuals with severe'ahd.persistent mental illness •
and/or substance abuse issues, sexual offenders and forensic clients in,a rehabilitative partial hospitalizatipn

• • prograrh ' • r . , •* .
-Provides individual, family, group and milieu therapy / ' ' ' • .
-Completes comprehensive psychosocial assessments, risk assessments, individual treatment plans and eligibility
determinations and assists with writing policy . '
-Facilitates and manages client centered conferences and quarterly review meetings . .

;  -Leader of interdisciplinary treatment team that meets daily to insure proper treatment and aftercare planning for •
difficult to reach clients
-Awareness of legal issues including guardianships, court orders,.probate commitments, conditional discharges
and revocations, which often require court appearances and testimony

.  -Supervision of.treatment team case managers and student interns ■ , ... . •
'  fillness management and recovery train the trainer V' » . . * , ' ; '

'• Maui Memorial Medical Center, Kahului, HI / June 2005-Jahuary 2006 ;•
.  rPsychiatric Social Worker: Provides services for adults with 'seyere rhental ilfness and / or substance abuse issues

■  ' j forensic patients on a short-term inpatieiit psychiatric-unit <- ' • V ;■ ,:j .,Cand . . . .
^  .-Comprehensive psychosocial hissessments, treatm'ent plans/.education plans, substance abuse screening, daily.'

■;;--.freatment teammeetings and dischargemeetings^^ j-- ' ■' ' ; ■ . ' ■
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-Provide crisis intervention, individual therapy, family therapy and'daily life skills groups
':Case'Management service/ discharge planning ' , " ^ " .■
'Souza■Baranowski Correctional Center, Shirley MA ' 2001-2003

-  .-Diagnostic assessment crisis intervention, suicide prevention and 1:1 psychotherapeutic and substance abuse ;
services to adult male inmates in a maximum security setting ^

■' • -Comply With and adhere to institudonal safety procedureslna'ccordance with UMCHF / DOC established policies
.' -Case management/discharge planning . ; . ' . .

,  -Mental health representative for the Department of Corrections transition planning meetings
;. ■ r-Daily triage and segregation rounds • • ' ' ! . / . . '•

\  -Leader of a student intern support group " ■ , ' V'\ >.
•  • • -Supervision.of Student interns. . . * • ' ' , . . ' .

; " McLeaii Hospital Belmbnt, MA (Graduate School internship) ' t ' 2000-2001
-Case management/clinical work on an adult inpatientipsychiatric unit'

'■ -Daily patient rounds, psychosocial assessments and 1:1,psychotherapeutic services
-Group therapy Co-Leader; Adult woman outpatient eating disorder group . •
-Ongoing collaboration with outpatient treaters, cornmunity residences, partial hospital / day treatment programs,'

-  'family work and completion of treatment plans
Mass. Eating Disorder Association Newton, MA (Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001

'  - -Assessments, group intakes, family / individual consultations, and school based prevention presentations '
-  . ;;Evening treatment program, meal mentoring program and Co-Leader of various program groups , ■ " '

PROFESSIONAL DEVFI.OPMFNT

Certified Life Coach with a specialty in Organizational and Time Management Skills "
• 7-Certified Signs of Suicide Prevention and Programming (SOS) Trainer •.

.  -ANSA Certification
■-Toastmasters International SjDeechcraft Certificate Program ~

.  - NFl Leadership Program: Completed six month program-in 2014" . " .
-Certified Illness Management and Recovery Practitioner and Trainer ; V' . ' • ! • , ,

.cCefdfied Supported Employment'Practitioner V ; ' ■ '7" - ' -• " . •
- Certified DBT Practitioner." ■ ; ! v' ' ■' ' .

/-Agency trainerfor Farhily System's, Group Process and Counseling Skills -.v" - • . - • "
,  ■ - NFI North Conference Presenter 2013 and 2015,

7  -;NAFI Spirit^bf the Community Committee '
• ; --Certified Public Supervisor: Completed one-year program in June 2008 . ' •/ " , '

-"^Forrner'NHH Assaulted Staff Action Program re'sponder ' ' J '. ■■■
, . ' V-'Forfher'NHH Schwartz Center Rounds committee member , • • •

'-Former NHH Ethics Committee member , , . • '

AWARDS/RECOGNITIONS , ■ , - . , ' •
- NFl Nprth Agency ShiningStar Award (2015) - . ^ . . • , , •
- NFi North Agency Dr. Yitzhak Bakal Essence of Leadership Award (2013) "• "
- Two-time gold star award winner (2009 and 2011)
- Special recognition award winner (2005)

.  .t. V. ■ • . . . - • • • . - . ' . -- , - . : ,

-v- .
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>System buiiding.^d implenieiitatioii *
^Capable of leajding ̂ ^_perf6rii^g^eaj^jmytt^^
ipf/miiltiple :,stakeh61ders;:aud,o.ther regiiiatoiyTenrit^
^S^ng conunfficatioff
•Prpbjegrspjver - Crea'_UVi.ty;:^d/ore&ou^tin;s,oli^

!;A"jndUyated'fffbfessioii^^seel^g'a^pipsjti6n,t^rcbn
.'challenge fiirtier'growtii trnddeyTilppnynt whilepro^iding leade pl«i,'direcl'aii<j.
^c<»rd^^e;p^og^l »^ansion.progJ5jnpverei^t;JU^_^stera in^

Education
i'M^sters orScIence;'C/{w/i:CT/ MetijalHedltb Coims^^^ aniaddictihns ir^htent/
}Ceriipcaie,''P\^Tao\xt\\ State^Uni\'ei^i^,'Plymputii'.N.H..' Accr^t^ ̂  the'Counserfor--
/Accreditadon ot.Cduriseling and Relat^Edii^tioiial PFog:raim.(CACREP)Graduaubri^date,-December

-  ' :of20ll":GPA3.75; '
)Bflchel6rdf,Scii'nce///tfwnw'^55S'ic^/C(3//;/5e//ffg, LyndonState'Go

.  'Profes^dnU'ExpeKelnTe; ' ■

.  . ■>" vlRe^pnalDirector; , " , .
, ' ^ r'Responsible-for oycncdnglhe adminisnBlabnipf assigned programs^Provide leadei^p; supenision; guld^ce,"imd

.' V ^ ^ v|clinlcal^sup^h.^Rcispomiblc/6^ coimnunicatmg iill^policicsrand procediiri»,\cbaU3'ct Wgbtiatio'us7B^:d^'eldpment,jr
"  ' .fiscal pljnning and on:*aira\"aiJabllijy;; ' '

i' ' • ' -V . V . - - . . k

'CflrelMiTM^emcnt.Enti^'Adininlslfatbff A7r/A|'d^/r//?02/-!/2/2022
.  t " {Responsible f<^dy«^eing the adnu aU pfopmifspf lhe'Care,M^i^nfeut'EiiUry^(CME)

•  |ser\'es as_a. centrajizcd accpuiitabji^ hub to cwrdiiwte'all c<vo'for youth'wilJi'coniplexj^hay^
'  - , jclwllenges who are inyolreci in muilHplejsysteins/Jlie CN'ffi'Adnimistnitor projnd« iMderehip.JSiipeiyision,.

'  jguidance,''and clinical support to progninis and sthn*. Resppnsible for coiimiiinicating all policies and .
'• procedures, contract negotiations and development, fiscal planning and on<all;a^'ailability.

I  . • ' ,

Vrd%Taml)ir9ct6r,NFINorth FXSTFdhvdi'dand•Tr-ECCStdte'1Vi(ie20J7r1/2021 OvereeV'pro'^'m-
Jdpehitiom'fof t^\'6.sepafate entities.\Oiie;_pfb\idiiig a'Certified Wrap^oM niddel to cKddren, youth and
,faniihefages"'5-21. T^e pther'eritity;prdvid^g;mte^ive'b^iti6^..smibes to Resid^^
shospitaiizedphUdrim, ydii^ and families,

;Pit>gram Director, Conmumity Based,SerydceSi.Staje Wde'fOl 7-2020,.
iO\'ersee.prdgraim operations fof t\^'d separate.entities. OuCjproN'iding a Cotifled Wraparound model to

-  . .'xliildrer^ youth and famiUes'agVs'' 5r21; -TKe,6thWeudty provides,u«emive."th<u^euticVehuces tlirdu^" '
'  fclimdaliSfuVd case hianagwTrdifbugh tw'd diffci^t.New Hampshire ceitifi^pfpgnuuTs^^

jof age. Ihdi\idiuil,s"^e^'ice.6pridn arid poster cVe'as^well as Home;Based^Tliefa^utic Seh'ices.-

fr.

.M-
v. 'W' . J

1

^ "•! . ii.f-' *•
t.

v»,

•. V

■/
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•  " i: r<

t- ..V •

Program Director, h'F! North transitional housing,-Maple Lot^e, BethlehemTHew^/ampshire. And Array .
ofServices, Comihtiriity Based, and January 2016-2017. • . *
Transferred to nianage a residential program and pervasradytncntaliy ill adults. Included a staff team of 10,
+ and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic 6perations,.including intake, '

•  discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans; fiscal raan^cment, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training, marketing,licensing foster homes;and'Superaasion of staff.

•  "Intern, NFI North Trahsi'tipnal Housing—ConcordnianuaTy20il5^7Decembef20T5/"•
Currently completing a 600 hour internship andprovidingrindividual therapy to three - . ,
consumers at THS and co-facilitated many, groups to.include;:morhing community
meeting, art therapy, wellnes's recos'ery aclin plan, fitness.jsubstance abuse, seeking

• safety, vocational group, and community livings skills support group"and coping skills. I
am currently facilitating Illness Management and Recoveiygroup and Wellness . .. • "

^ " Recovery and Action Plan group. Competent in navigatingaheJegal systems of . ,
- Consumers to include the NGRI status, incompetent to stand trial and sex offenders. ' ' ' •
Knowledgeable around diagnosis of psychotic disorders. , /

. ' Program Director,/V/7 A'orr/r/frray t^5erv/ces. DavenporJ'Schodl and ISO Services 2009-iax\uary20\6 ,
•Promoted to manage a residential program and school and.*c6mmunity based services for emotionally , ,

' ; ̂ disturbed adolescents. Included a staff team of 25 + and ah annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and
programmatic operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal

' management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training, marketing,-licensing foster homes
. and super\'ision of staff.

ProgramDircctor, NFI,-Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.-2008-2009 ' '
~ Promoted to manage an intermediate level treatment facility for emotionally disturbed adolescents.
.  Included a staff of 15+. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,

,  : • discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal.management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training and supervision of staff. ; ■' " "

• l V 'Assistant Program Director; A'/*7, /Vdr//7er«7Veu'/-/tfrwpjr/r/re Serv/ces, Bethlehem, N.M-June 2004-
n  • ■ 7 . 2008 ' * : " . ' - ■ ■ ■ ■ ■ ' .

■  ■ . ; ;V' v.- Responsible for assisting the Program Director in'the overall functioning "and operation of the program,
!  !• '"including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual counseling and crisis intervention..'

•  .f',, ' r-. ' • •, 'Shift Supervisor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire. Youth Services, Bethlehem,'N.1-1.- January 2002-June.

' f .'Responsible for the supervision ofassigned direct care staff and program consurhers for designated shifl.

.  r - . ; Residential Counselor; A'F/, A'or/Zrerw A'ew//am/jj/r/re 5erv/ces,.Bethlehem, N.H.-October 2000-

■ January2002. / . - • . • - • • ■ ' •
Modeled appropriate behavior and social skills for adolescent .girls in a residential setting. Includes tasks

.  , ' :,-i ■ such as monthly reports, writing daily progress notes and^having'Cbntinuous contact with guardians;

" -.'i

.  • Professional Development

NH Disaster Behavioral health Response Teams Basic Training
The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has developed an ,
organized team of behavioral health providers to respond to the mental health needs of New'
Hampshire residents following disasters (e.g., bioterrorism, man-made or natural disasters)
PREPaRE: School Crisis Prevention and Intervention Training
The PREPaRE curriculum has been developed by the National Association of School
Psychologists (NASP) as part of NASP's decade-long leadership in providing evidence-based
resources and consultation related to school crisis prevention and response. PREPaRE training is
ideal for schools committed to improving and strengthening their school safety and crisis
management plans and emergency,response. ■ '

* - K V  -'V.
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Prison Rflpe£Ucnination Act (PREA) Coordinator Tor.TSFTNorth. Responsible forPREA-
implementation, policy making and training of staff. Agency ttalner.utilizing NFI North's
curriculum I co-train stafi* on

and documentation skills. Also; designed and presented^alNHNoxth's animal conference on
'Girls finding their voice'and'Marketing your serxices;' . '
niness. Management and Rccovef>' Qorently beingplcamedaadm^ obtain a 16 hoiir.
certification on this evidmce'based trainii^. '
Supported Employment 2 day certificatioo
Medication training
Trauma Informed peer support training by SAMHSAjone.day:training developed for the
National Center for Trauma Informed Care . .
CADY (communities for alcohol ai^ drug free youth) active panel number for Grailon county's
restoratiA'e justice cjqjansion program.2013-cuiTdit
Grant Awarded through the Building Bridges Initiatrve-and Transition To Permanency Project.
Focused around Family Driven and Youth Guided Treatment.
Grant writing workshops, NFI, Northern New Hai^shire Youth Services and The North
Country consortium, ' .
Suicide Prevention Cbnferencej YSPA of NH. . ' ' ̂
Certified in Child and Adotescent Needs Scale (CANS). - c •.
Science ImptcmeDtatioD
NH Wraparound

1- j ,
•< v - •

Membership/AflUiation . '. .
Member of American CouDselihg As^iatioo (ACA) Currently Expired
Natiooal Certified Cbun^lor (NCC) NBCC's flagship credential, the National Certified
Counselor (NCC) recognizes counselors who voluntarily apply and successfully con^lete rigorous

^' "standards. These standards are based on research in the counseling profession. The NCC is the
' prerequisite for all NBCC specialty certifications CuiTeotly not reinstated
"Certified as a Human'Services- Board Certified Practitioner (HS-BCP) by, the Center of
. Credentialiug and Education and the National Organization of Human Services.

Inducted into Plymouth State University's Upsilon Pli"which is a chapter of Chi Sigma Iota ' '
(CS^, A^ch is an intauational counseling honor society. - . - i
Board Panel Member .with lOD/NAMI.to apin;ove Certifications for aU NH Coordinators.

.  'Awaiils/RecognitioQ .. /
I' Scholarship Awarded through National Board for Certified Counselors to further my education

at Plymouth State University. Scholarship awaided was $5,000.00.
'  Nominated and selected as one of the 40 under foity' recipients for New Hampshire (2014).
'  Dr. Yitzhak Bflkal Essence of Leadership awai-d'(26l0) ' .

Courage to Grow Award (2001)
Shining Star (2014). ' , V' •
Spirit of commuoity award NFI/NAFI (2019) . • . . • .
Recogmtion for volunteeriug time to missions frip« to Nicaragua (2006) and Africa (2008.)

J ' ' ."Tap * ' 'fu •*' J ' ->1 ̂  'r*4 , ' , '

X"- • . • ■ '■ ,•/
-1 ■

■ / ' » Tt ..r

•  * /

' . • <- C) ,
•• -Tt* '
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j

Jill Allen
'f' ^

- Profile -

Aproven jeader in the field dfhuman sendees
•  *5' • a '

,fiDr.o\'cr 32 >«ars. Well organized, smart, and

creat^;^hgterra success woridng with, and
across ieaius t^ughout the State'ofhfeiiie,
andNH Tiackrccprd.ofmeutoriagpeople "to

mai^nize th'eir.potential lougternl. Remains

calm and ppsitK'e in challeugingsituatious.
.•Loyalanddedicated^ J. ..

CONTACT

;  y •' V

•  .BUIl^iNG,PERSONAL AND PROFESSIONAL RElATIpNSm

•  DEVELpF'INa^pNGWORkPlACEC
•  ABIUTV TO SEE THE GLASS HALF FUa

•  CLINICALLY SOUND IN DIAGNOSIS AND TWUMA

HIGHLY ORGANIZED- MULTrrASKERI

•  GRITTY AND COMPEirnVE

•  IppUCYANbP^^^
>  OPENTO FEEDBACK AND GROWTH

• . ; FISCALLY SAVV >
•, RESPONSIVE- • •

A'',.

"■ '■ ''
L'.C •' \l '

OPERATING OFFICER _ .
NFI NORTH,"BRIDGTON, MAINE , ,

■Febnjary 2b24-_Present

'ih"p\ie owre^tjb"aL a^ncyoperations'for ^siue"the OA^ra'U "
mission, \dsi6n,'andpoKcies oftfie a^ncyarc.fiiUbwed.-Duties inchide"'the' -
multi-million-dolhf, &cal management of26 indnddualprogra^
'stat'esy'includingmuitple rcsid five schook , and both chOd and^adjdt.
.:coiimumityoutreach FpsjterlTarc, Wraparound,.and Case:l^na^raent ' • "
isendces/'GhaitpereonahdfecilitaldroTindnthlyclinicalmeetmgsVe'^
the fidelity ofthe nonuatH® approach" and bthefclimcal modalities"are
foUowed. Pro^m dewlopment and strategic'planuingas part"'of!he. '
i^ininktrathe jeam, and ill conjuncture-with Statew'^e Partnerslijps.
.l^holdaUhcens'mgregiilations'and Joint CoiiunisXipivStandards.includm^
DEB iraiativcsr.Prbddde direct p\ersi^l't"6 the DirectordfHRahd.the-IJR« ,

"■.depaitm'eul inchidiifgtlie hiriiig onbbardiug and tiairiingbfstaff I^\dde
direct ON^isight to the Director ofDewlopmenl and bfeilcetingahd the
rccentrcbrandingfaiiliatKe fprlhe agency.'N-fentorleadershpteam
inembers, mchidingRegionalDircclors fpreach state ofME and NH

'proVklihg supehdsion, coaclm and guidance as needed. Champion all
progtampaxtic^ants, &milies, and connected team members for
successfiil treatment outcomes.

. REGIONAL oiRECtOR
NFI NORTH, BRIDGTON, MAINE - , !
Novemtror 1996-2024 - , - ; , , ^

JPrpv^dp\«n^t to allpro^m operations in the State of^ine. Ensiire the
overall mksiom visioh, andpbiictts ofthe-a^ncyare fpliowed. Dirties, V"'
.iiiclude the ihiUli-iuilhon^olla'r,'fiscal manaKmeiit'bf'l 5 individiiaL ... •

,  ip'ro^ms yiiicludiiigie.sidential, four schools, and both child and adult-'
, y

/ V
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Values To li^ By:

' t^'Belongmg

'  Eiedication

.. .'.❖..Eihpathy

Resilience

...❖Imst

•  '5

t  ,

"J

.'■I- •
1 ■

., iconmu^yputrcacL Clmiiperepa and fecflrtatorofmopU^dlinka!
' ■ ydevploppieht.raeetmp'vensunng the'6delity,ofthc normative apprpac

- ' othtrcliiwarmodalilies aire followed. ProgranVdewlopmeht and strategic
iplamiiQgaspaTt ofthe Administrative "Ram, and in conjuncture with

Parpiershjps. UphoU aU Jkensing regulations and feint
L:Coim^s»u Standards inchidiigDEIBinitatKts^Nfentorleadersi^team.
imcmbei:s"piP\TdingsupchTsi6nVcbachirig.'ahd ^iklanbcralhe.eded .
?C!l]aj3^a)n;aUprogiampafticipants^ and conriected team members
TqrsucceslsfiUtrea^^^ • .

:PROGMM biRECtOR

.'iARRIL 1992-NOVEMBER1996..

:e,a7Tbed!
prpgt^ foradqlesccnts.in need. .Duties inchidcd start up acthities;
smchidingpplicywriting, 6cility.cpnstructipnp\«isi^t^and the hiringand
'pnbdarding'ofstafi! Oxefi^tbfaUclinkaland'educatibnaiprd^mmitfg:
jRiild cpmmuhi^paitheish$s\vith sfalffiholders'ahd develppmehtoflocal
/AdvBoiy Kard. Wdrit ih cpllabbfation with IpcMpsychiatrie hospital and

' jcpn^cted psychiatrist tp eusure.clihicai success!,Lead wee^y' •
management, stafl^'and cPimuuuitynieetings;.,h4intain physical plant

'accordingtdhCHA'and State Fire N^ishallregulations.

^MASTERS OF SCIENCE IN MENTAL HEALTH COUNSEUNG '
. UNiyE^ITYbFSOUTHER^^^

1991-199X : ■

,BAGHELOROF.ARTSIN COMMUNICATIONSr.PSYCHOLOGY •
UNIVERSny OF SOUTHERN MAINE

M 980—1985' ,

Resident Assistant in the First CO-ED Dprrh on Canlpius
1981-19a4 ' .:.•

T^aine^ in j^e foUowihg topic areas:
❖ .NornialKe CpmmunityT^proach
❖ 'Safe Alternatives FofEwryone

.❖ 'SupervisoiySldlls

• A* Trauma Biforniedivfeaningfiil Engagement
'Counseling Sldlls

❖ GrpiipI^cCsS' ' . . , ;■ I
'•I*' DocVmehtatiohSkiiis-EvaluaitionWriting

'  ? ' . * ' ' . ' ' . . ' ' . . it
Recent Jriainings Attended: .' •

'  ' \NAnConfere_nce:PrcsentationSkilh,Piiblic Speakin'g2p2^ •
.<• !"Bo'stpnNationalTiauiua Conference 2022 ' , _ ." ■ ' •

•  •*'*: 'WorkHiuiiah. Dri\nigWoiiq51ace Culture byl£\bragiugRecb^iliou; '
, ,
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.

• • :\r . / /: .ru —

-  Awards and Recognition , .

BestPiaoeito Workin Maine (2018-2023) ■ -
■" ❖ NHNGRIHRemarkable Role Ntodel 1999

•> ■NFlNORIHYitzhakBakalLeadcrship2011 " .j
' ■ NAHMdiiadual Spirit ofCommunity 1997

Professiorial^mberships and Assignments ■ <

■■ -Gffldi.aiLfl^milyProviderrNetwork Member 28 years
❖ 'SecTet^, l-ycar • r.

'\5ce^Piesiident, 3 years -• " « • "
Pi^ident, 12 ycars/.

Youthluvenile Justice Task Force 2018-2019

.  Families'First Implementation Member 2019-2022

'  Legislative Advocacy-ongoing

. 'I-

. •

'My job as a leader is not to insist on my own way,
but to get out ofotherpeople's way,

Empowering them to do what they are best at
and affinTiingthem in their growth"

AmySomfrxillc

i--; ,

\  '
,  • 'f-

.*'-T

^ ' T W
.  _ 1

■ • - : . • ■ I

't- - *

;• .

."
' f . y '' ' ■ '

"  . . •
A
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KRISTI VAZIFDAR

-FINANCIAL EXPERTISE

• •• •. ■■Financial Reporting ]
Cash and Credit Management
Budget Creation and Analysis

•  : Payroll Management
'• Strategic Planning'
•  ' Financial Training and ' '

' Management '
•  • Accounts Payable and

•  Receivable

PROFILE

A dynamic .team'Jeader whO'leveia^esipositlve energy, humor and
keer) lnte1ligence4oimspire^imot1rate,a'nd guide team members to "
optimal^ccess- . .. "

Respected^finaTiolahpTofesslo'na'L^with.aiproven record of success
drivingioperatlbns:forigrovCtfh;andfmaximizing cost efficiency.
Insightfui'aTid^etfiicai'MBA'expefieneea with strategic planning for,
and management and analysis of, multi-million dollar budgets..

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

NFI, North, Inc., Contoocook, NH,.FEBRUARy 2016-'present ; '

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial rnanagement of the organization's 18
million dollar annual operating budget in our sixteen programs across Maine and New Hampshire.and managing a
staff of 5. Provides critical oversight over each aspect of financial operations including budget creation and
managerhent. ^ ' , " . / , ' .

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council, Nashua, NH, DECEMBER 2015 -FEBRUARY 2016-

INTERIM FINANCE MANAGER - > . - . ' . , . , . . ,
Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization's 13.
million dollar annual operating budget serving Hillsborpugh County and. managing a staff of 10.

Key Accomplishments: ' . ' , ; .T j '■ . ,
'• •"Provided program analysis to advise on future direction'of resources.

•  Manage accpunbng and finance issues including monthly close, revenue recognition and analysis, policy
'  ' interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations,and daily productivity of all finances. • . - .

.Consolidated business team to save approxim'ately'18% of departmental-personnel costs. . ,

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2009 MAY 2015

FINANCE DIRECTOR

Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for'overall financial management of the organization's 3.5
million dollar annual operating budget serving 4000 visitors annually. Manage 2 full time seasonal employees and
additional financial supervision of 5 seasonal employees,

Key Accomplishments:
—  Prepare and manage the arinuai budget and alt financial reports as heeded by the CEO, Finance Committee

, and Board of Directors. . . . . . - . . • '

■ > ■ 'Mariage accounting and finance issues including monthly.close,Acc9unts Receivable, Accounts Payable,
■f>^\-;Vj;".,;,poncy interpretations,'balance sheetfeconciliatidhs'and:daity productivity . , . ,

""V ■ ■ ■ i'r". ■' ' •

,.T *•-
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,  V . - ' . ■ KRISTIVAZIFDAR ' .
statements andVeporting for CEO, Finance Comipittee and Board of,Directofs; inctuding i. ', ' -

.  '.'.iTIonthly reconciliation of revenues and expenses, with appropriate variation.expiariations and analysis. ,,

'' • f j Critically, evaluate new, or renewal contracts and annual corporate insurance iDoliciesfor appropriateness. ^ -

v;' ^ Key contributor of 3 year (2011 - 2013 and 2014 - 2016) strategic-plans, authoring the financial tactics. ., ' "■
' • ' ' ' ' ■ ' • 't " . -f.;  rDevelppe'd and executed a weekly matrix to analyze payroll for^lO seasonal hourly staff to successfully kedp'-

-seasonarsalaries.under.budget'»fqrthepastthree,yearssaving'$3Q,000plus,annually.' , -

l;i ? T Introduced seasonal weekly budget meetings with Department^Heads to share'updated financial information '
-■''and collaborate on seasonal budget management.. . ' • '/ . .v' ' . /• ' .I,.

,>2 'treated and implemented internal control and purchasing procedures.' . ' - ' ' - '
I Manage preparation arid fieldwork for annual external audit process. '

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH,.2004-2008 , .

^BUSINESS & FINANCE MANAGER . * .* • V
'. Promoted tp leadership role supporting all accounting and financial aspects of mainland and on island offices. ' .v

'  Key Accomplishments:
,  ' Created arid implemented Finance Handbook as a guide for Staff and Finance Committee. ' ,

■ '. v , • ' Analyzed seasonal payroll and daily rate compensation structure, implemented time clocks to pay ■. " ;
i  :' . .'-' npnexempt'seasonal staff per hour saving 5% annually on seasonal payroll.. ; '

;r ^Leadership and day-to-day mahagement of seasonal on island.stores (book shop and lobby shop);purchased
^ajl, inventory, managed Staff and all inventory controls.

•  Compile detailed information to prepare and submit regulatory filings for town, state, federal. . '

■ Erisjjre'd compliance with audit standards and proper revenue recognition. ■
:  v 'Staff.liaison to Finance Committee. ■ ' „ ' .• . j; , • "•

Starlsland Corporation', Portsmouth, NH, 2000 - 2003

ACCOUNTANT' :

-Hired to process Accounts Payable and Payrollreporting
'  '/''r- '■ iV-' . _ • ■ ' • • - " • .

V

to the Executive Director ■

 fw

KeyAccornplishmerits: • , . '
•  Assehed all accounting procedures and eliminated the need for external accounting firrh. • •

•  Irnplemented cash management protocols to eliminate overdrafts and fees.

•  Researched, purchased and implemented new accounting software and-revised.Gerieral Ledger account
structureforefficiency. ■ '

•. Advised creation of Purchasing Agent position to consolidate staff workload'and maximize productivity.'

.. Wolf Coach Compaiiy:(acqLiired by L3. Corrirriunlcatlons), Auburn, MA, l.
'^'ACCbuNTANt, 1997 -1999 ' ^
VlvbVFICE ASSISTA^ • ■ ; " ^

■■ >..A

.'i,. • '• I.'.,", •
.  . - .■

i- T,
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COMPUTER'SKILLS ' , • -
-> , Highly skilled in Excel, Proficient in MS Officejncluding PowerPoint, Microsoft Dynamics Great '

-  Plains, and Management.Reporter, Blackbaud FlnanciarEdge, Fund EZAccoiunting, Paychex . -V
.  •" . ' Paylink arid Paychex Online Payroll, Apprentice'level in Evolv and LWSI "" ̂  ' s

■  '{'/ ■ Previousexperience lnQuickBooks Pro, and Peachtree Accounting (nowSage) ■ / .

■  • COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT ̂ .VOILUNTEEP EXPERIENCE , , . ,
•  •• • *' .-^Leadership Seacoast, Member Board of Directors June," 2015-PRESENT;

■  • Treasurer September,.20i6--iPRESENT • ■ ' f . ' ' • ,, *

Leadership Seacoast, Admissions'Comrhittee, 2014- PRESENT
.  v',.' " ... " Leadership Seacoast, ProgramlGraduate, 2013 '

i  ' •' • : " '4H, Judge for various competitions, 2013'72015
Barringtpn NH'PTA'201,1-201S " • ' - • ' .

' i-

r. ■

■  'r ■ .EDUCATION
Master of Business Administration, Southern New Hampshire University'

. Graduate Certificate in Accounting, Southern New Hampshire Unive'rsity
Bachelor of Arts, Political Science, Unive'rsity of New Hampshire

'r •
.  'I • •
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Docusign Envelope ID; 5C76C9B3-C83D-49BD-A401-A678553B306B

LUKE REYNARD

'ABOUT ME Experienced nonprofit Aeader'.in'behavi6nalvheaith and disability semce systems
, ■ ■ , ' ■ .and program bperations..-CorRently;serviBg'as the'Executive Director of NFI North

. 'overseeing the admini^ration.of:agenc:y»operations, programs, strategic planning,
and ensuring the organizationadheres toithe'agency mission and vision vYhile
meeting financial objectives.'Adept atTostering relationships with key
stakeholders; including board members, {State partners, team members, and
participants. Well-rounded professional,with experience in both operational,

administrative and financial operations, and driven by a focus on mission and
■' values. An effective communicator with the ability to translate complex

organizational goals into actionable'plans, Tam ,proud to bring visionary

■  leadership, operational excellence/and.strategic insights to the NFI North
Executive Director position., ■ • . . ,

SKILLS & • Leadership Et Organizational'Development
ABILITIES » Financial Acumen .

•  Analytical Problem Soly'er. ^ *

•PROFESSIONAL

•  EXPERIENCE-
NFI NORTH - , V V ; < " : ^

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, January .1,-2024 -Present' '

Provide leadership and overall'management for agency administration'including"
■ T operations, finance,-and strategic planning, working closely with the Board of ' '

• Directors. Responrible for ensurihg the successful operation of agency programs
serving individuals through'the life continuum. Collaborate-with the Board of

"  Directors, agency-management, business office operations,' and.key stakeholders
to achieve and maintain fiscal and.programmatic excellence. • '

' CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER: April 2021 - December 2023- > V

■  Oversee the program operations of Maine and New Hampshire services, as well as '

IT and health record operations." Ensure agency compliance with Joint
Commission accreditation and standards, as well as state contractual

requirements. Support agency strategic plan goals and execution. Represent NFI

North with numerous stakeholders and state agencies, cultivating positive "

relationships. Supervise program expansion and development opportunities. .

'*. M.*"" . r. /

-O.W .„v' -■ ,
.V* 'i ' < , «.• ■

■  "o. Aw'" '.'•{.■"••v'" -

■> , ■ ._J ^ . t .
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Docusign Envelope ID; 5C76C9B3-C83D-49BD-A401-A67B553B306B

;; ...a

V, , V: V ' - ■ • ■ ;v
,  ..A UNIVERSITY OF-NEW HAMPSHIRE

1 . '■

.  DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS, UNHllNSirminrE ON DISABILITY, START PROGRAM . ,

' . ■ July 2019-April 202V ■ ; ^ ^ ' ' 'v'-
Providedoperational and financialileatenshiptor national'-START MH/IDD program

;• "-i . • :• consultation,'research, and,prbgramidev£lfipnnent.\' ' * .

/, ■

.i,

.1 - "

MHMR TARRANT TX

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER, DISABILITYS^VICES ' ' ' : . -

November 2005 - June 2019 < '

Beginning as;a case manager, progressivelyassumed leadership roles culminating

in a Chief Operations role for Disability Services for Texas' second-largest

community mental health "center (CMHC), .serving over 4000 people monthly in -

residential and.community-based programs. ' . ' \

EDUCATION ANDERSON UNIVERSITY - PH.D CANDIDATE IN LEADERSHIP AND

ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT .
.. .

,  Doctoral student in the Center fpr Leadership and Organizations.with research

•  interests in organizational commitment and antecedent factors, leadership

empathy, mihdfulnessi and emotional,intelligence factors. - .

•, , • ' ■ ' - Expected graduation:.May 2025. •

;  UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS SYSTEM - AW^STER OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

,  Graduate business>program-with a focus omeconomics and analytics

- 'J;. TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY -BACHELORS DEGREE IN PSYCHOLOGY
' Major in psychology; minor in criminal justice '' • •

■  • •. ■ . • • • '. ••■.1 - • - .

VOLUNTEER a TOWN OF HENNIKER,NH - BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE

^A^ViTiES Budget Advisory Committee reporting to the Board of
Selectpersons. The role includes financial analysis and recommendations to the
Board regarding the annual town budget prior to the town vote.

HENNIKER YOUTH ATHLETICS - COACH \

Volunteer coach for youth basebalLand basketball. ■ ;

; 1 .

•.

'V '• v"' ■'■y ^Uke Reynard
<r/. -'j • . . v-.r" ' V



o DEBORAH WEEKS o

•:r CONTACT

&::^ DeborahWeeks@nafi.com

p

PROFILE

• Motivated, determined, personable business professional, who is • -
dedicated, diligent and focused; Problem solver who is able to prioritize and
multiple task,.fqllow through in achieving goals and very much a risk taker;
• Diplomatic and tactful within both a professional and non-professional •
setting; willing and able be introspective, assist others in building positive
relationships with those we serve and colleagues at alt organizational levels.
• Accustomed to handling sensitive, confidential records; able to
"demonstrate documenting according to accuracy, and in a timely manner;
• Flexible and versatile team player opeo'tp learning new concepts quickly
while working well under pressure, and communicating ideas clearly and ■
effectively. . ' . . * - • . • . ' . »
• Strong leader providing regular supervision, encouragement and teaching
skills to staff members. - -

COMMUNITY SERVICE
AND

VOLUNTEER WORK:

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CASAofNH

Trustee of.trusfPunds

-Bail Commissioner

2008-2016,

2008-2017

2019-Present

NC Chamber of Commerce 2023-Present

•T,".

7 Tr"!'

, " education , . ■

. GRANITE STATE COLLEGE'

August 2007

Liitleion, NH Paralegal Celtificale

SPRINGFIELD GOLLEGE .

,  December 2010

Si,'Johnsbur>v VT BS'in i-luman Scr\'icc.s

SPRJNGFIELD COLLEGE

- r)cccinbcr2012

Si. Johnsbuf>', \''r MS in l luman Sers'ices

'  .-.'y ■

•• I ^

Assistant Regional Director
September 2023-Present ' • ,

NFI North V - • . V' ■ - ^ . ;
■ Responsible fpr assisting the Regional Director with clinical, continuous - '
quality improyement,'perfdrmance rnahagement, and administrative .'
operations of assigned programs. Oversee clinical and'administrative
operations of assigned programs across Adult and Children Services. '

Oversee.new projects NFI North is taking on, including locating buildings,

coordinating,with the slate for licen5ure„collaborating with the State Fire

Marshal's office, and hiring vendors and contractors to rehabilitate buildings-'
and ensure compliance. . ' . " . " ' , ' •

*  t . ' ' .

Program Director
April 2016-June 2021 •

NFI North Community Based Services

Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake, -
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and
terrninating staff, marketing", and licensing of foster homes.

-  ' , 'C . - '

Real Estate Agent . - / ■ • " '
Apnl 2021-Present ' . ''
Caro.n's G^tevyay Real,Estate T ," , .
Gathers,''pr6vides,'and explains'details of current market conditions, pricing,^
' legal.re'quirernents, and similar information. Assists selling clients vvith pricing.
based'On current marl<et values'; t ' ' . •• • ." / ' ' ' '

-.L •

'A.\- ' ̂ V-'
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Prbgram Director
April 2016-June 2021 "
NFI North Array of Services; Davenport School and Residential Treatment-

■  AWARDS/RECOGNITION, ■

,  ■ Nt''l North Courage 10 Grow , 2010 ' .

•' , North Shining,Star • ■. 2011

Facility , ■ ■'
Promoted to manage a residential program and school for at-risk youth to
include a istaff team of40+)empfoyees. Responsible for all clinical and
programmatic operations,Including intake, discharge, counseling. • ,
service/discharge plans,Tiscal-management,-hiringand terrninatingstaff, • " •
marketing, and licensing of foster homes , , ' . * '

Y.lr/'.hak IBakai i-sscncc of Leadership 2019 ,  ;■ , ..
,  . NAFl Spirit ofConummity Awarxl 2015

DC_YK Commiinily Member A ward 2018
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE CONT'D

Program Assistant Director '' ^
"  July 2013-April 2016

NFI North Array, of Services; Davenport School and Residential Treatment- '
■ • Facility. , - ■

Support the Program Director in overall program operations. Oversee house
' • management and ensure safety of building and vehicles (siipply.ordering,

maintenance delegation and complete regular inspections). Actively engage < •
with clients and staff to promote healthy relationships between
management, direct care staff and clients Responsible for staff supervision
and coordination'of staff training ' ' "

■  PROFESSIONAL
-DEVELOPMENT AND

, / -pOMMITTEE WORK '
Shift Supervisor/Direct Care Counselor; Teacher's Aide ,

.  September 2007-July 2013 ' T ^

NFI North Country Shelter • ' • . '

Gram Writing and Awards for NFI North ' ,

.  "VyprkLrce Development Co-Chair' '

Provide therapeutic intervention services to clients using individual and group' •
treatment. Help coordinate and implement the curriculum for special
education teachihg. following through with students lEP's. Responsible for . •
the'supervisionof staff, and overseeing milieu. .

. TrainingCornmitteeCotChair
.  1 1- - ® • i • >

.  1

]  . NAFt Arts Committee
iOwner/Mana'ger' - • ■ . ' ■ , . • ^
April 1989-Present \ ■ '

!

•  NAFI Talent Show Committee TANSUN Place Restaurant/Catering . "

Agency Trainer •

NH State RENEW Implementation Team

NH Disaster Behavioral Health Response

Managed the overall performance of food service facility and kitchen
operations for sixteen years; directing the recruitment, interviewing, hiring,
training, motivation and evaluation of staff. Continues to cater on an
individual basis. . •

Team ' . ' _ i • . " L -  • ^ •

■  Structured,Analysis'Family Evaluation

. ' •■Supervisor'

!  : - ■ V - . . . - r . '

' -r,- V,- • ! V ^
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NH: Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

v'-i.'''-". ■■ List those primarily responsible forTneetinglheiteojisaioi!] conditions of the agreement. ■,

Job descriptions not requiredtfonBacantt'pbsitions.
-  >

;  Contractor Name:

V- •'Jy • •

•iihIFJ North, Inc.

NAME .
t

JOB TITLE -

"■ ! • ' 3

ANNUAL
AMOUNT PAID

FROMTHIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Luke Reynard Executive Director $0.00 $198,000.00
Jill Alien Qhief Operating Officer'^; , . .■ Y - - $0.00 $168,500.00
Kristi Vazifdar • Chief Financial Officer '. "  $0.00 .$151,000:00
Jennifer Altieri NH Regional Director ■  $21,800.00 $131,000.00
Deborah Weeks ' Assistant Regional Director $18,300.00 $110,000.00
Noel Chipman Clincial Director $19,800.00 $116,500.00
TBD Program Director;. ■ - $87,000.00 $87,000.00
TBD. - . Program Director • . $87,000.00 $87,000.00

\ • I ' 'f. - - ■<

*  > . • •

■  ̂ f" r'
-V •- •: , - -
f.' ^ ■
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Lori A:-Vftivtr

'laterim Coainluloaer

Kfl<>a&;Fox
:iMrcctor'-

STATOpF NEW

bEPARTMENT qF«E^TH AND

: DmSIONFdn'BEHAVIOnAlB^ !

,. torn-9544.! i40(>«2i3345'ib:t!^
. Fax: 603-27I-4132'. ̂ DAccm:-l^iB0(^73S^964 ^nvw.dhh

'  ■ .V •

;' • ^ ' . - ■ ■ ,. ' . ,A(!ay^.2D231 .
His Excelleincy. GovemorXhHstbphe^^^ ': ■ , ■

.  and th© Hoh^ , , . • , :
••'^ateHpus'e. -/ ' " J
.Gpncord;New HampsH^^

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Dep.artrnent of Health andiHurnanSebrides, Division'for Behavioral Health, to enter
Intp a contract with'Nf-i North, inc^CVG# 177575), Coritoocook. NH, in thVambunt of $10",987i684
for the provision of supported housing services for individuals Irarisltionlng to or from Glehcliff
, Home, with ,the;optipn"to, renew for up to four (4) additional years, effective upon Governor and

CoOncil approval through June:30, 2025. 100% General Furids.

.  ' Funds are available, in the following account^for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
■ 'antidpated to tw avaiiable State Fiscal Yeare.2te4 and 2025. upon the. ayailabllity apd'
^continued appfopnation of fundsjn the future operating budget, vifith the authority lb adjust

\-line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years .through the
,  Budget Ofrice.H,needed and justified; ■. . * .

V b^95-92-922010H411700tHI HEALTH AND SOCIALSERVICES..HEALTH.AHD SVCS.
^bfepr; HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MEm-AL H^LtH SERVICES, CMH
Program SUPPORT . ^ i . • .

'.Y '
'  State
jFlscalYear

ClasaV
Account

Cfass title ':.3pb:Nuniber. Total Amoiirit

■  -2023 ' 102-500731' Contracts forprog Syc; 92204117 '  i5i,16'9:650

2024 102-500731 Contrabis for-prog'Svc 92204117 K857.015,

2025 ,102-500731 Contracts for. Prog, Syc .  92204117 W;961,019

H . v • • .
Total $10,987,684

. ■ I ;

V* '

I  . • »

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this-recjuesl is to ensure individuals who.-are-on the waitlist for, or
transitioning from Glendiff Home have community-based supported housing options available. In
accordance with the State's Community Mental Health Settlement Agreement, the Department is
expanding capacity to provide residential options for irtdlyiduals who currently reside at, or are on
the waiting list for Glendiff ^Home, and who are IfileVesled in and appropriate for altemative .

presidential'settings. The Cpntraclor vyillopen.and^operate four (4) community-based frve^bed
specially residential programs that proyide supported, housing services to achieve this,gpal.

Approximately. 20 individuals will be served duririg State Fiscal Years 2023, 2024. arid
•-2025; ^ ■-

I • ■

In'
» ■ '•



•  'V- .' .

■/ '.v.- ,.

•  His'Excolteni^.'GovemorChflstophert. Sununu i-:; y'' ' . '
arid Ihe Honorable Council. • /O: ' .

-  ■Pagd2of2 _ ■■ ■ ' ' ' . T"-' ''

•  A . V.^. The ContractorwillproN^desuppOfted housing seryicesito individuals experiencing serious.
' J1 •"" , ; ' mental Illness (SMI) or serious and persistent mental 'illness- (SPMI), who .may also have a co- .

V, occurring diagnosis of,8 substance use disorder, an intellectual or development disability. .
"acquired brain disorder, or complex medicajrteeds.TheiContractdr will open and operate four (4) . ' r-,;:
communityrbased five-bed residential programs that i-provide integrated treatment through • ■
supported housing arid residential life services; clinical 'and medical services; supported . -

. employment and vocational services; and targeted case-management,, care coordination,and
triansitional services. The Contractor wijl deliver an integrated dual diagnosis approach and .
ensure the use of evidence-based therapies, including dialectical behavior therapy ar^ cognitive
behavioral therapy, among others. Additionaily, the-Contrador will provide supporl ar>d skills . ; . .
training for individuals to Improve independence.In"daily living skills,'.achieve wellness and ' .
recovery goals, and prepare individuals .to maintain living, in the least restrictive enviroriment
based on the individual's spedftc needs'and .goals. . ;

.  The Department will monitor services by reyiewing.rfionthly and quarteriy reports,provided , ~ ■
■  'by tBe Contractor, and holding regular meetings/arid arihual on-site. reviews with the Coritractor. . *!

The Departmerit selected the Contractor through' a competitive bid^process using a -
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the [^partmeril's website from NovemberT4;

,2022 through December.15, 2022. The Department recelyed one'(1) response that was reviewed
arid scored by a team of qualified individuals; The Scoring Sheet is attached. / •

In response to the inltiai.RFP, the Contrador'proposed providing ten (10) of the minimum
■ eighteen (18) beds.heeded to meet capaclty.^equirements. The Department posted another . '
.^Request for Proposals (RFP) on the Department's website from. January 23. 2023 through ^ .
February 24.2023 to resollcit for additional beds. The Department received only one (i ) qualtfying • ■

;i response,'which was from'NF! North, Inc. and was reviewed and scored by a team of qualified .
^ individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached. The Department is consolidating the residential .

.  . programs awarded under both RFPs into one (1) contract to more effectively rhonilor performance
^programmatlcally and financially. •• . \ -

/'• "V
,  1 • ■ .

,  As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisiionsto Standard Agreement.Provisions, Subsectiori 1.1.,
of the attached agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4)
■additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
.of.the parties, and Govemor and Council approval.

/  Should the.Govemor arid Council, not authorize this request Iridivlduals transitioning to or
from Glencliff Home wili-have limited.to no options fo/ long-term cornmunily-based supported
housing, and the Department vyill be at risk of not beirig in compliance with.lhe Community Mental
Health Settlement Agreement.\-.- . ^

Area served; Statewide.

Respectfully submitted,

Lqri A. Weaver
Interim Commissioner

"  ■ * ■ ^Th£Dtpartmtntof'HnUhoii(iHunionSinMat'Miuiohu\lo'joincontmuniti^6itdfomili<t,^
'  '• ' " ■ in prooidingopporiuniiitsfor cUueiislo.ochUvehtollhend independence. . - . . i'

.  1.' ".I" i"" ' - ••
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OocuSign Envelope 10; E095FFD3-b582-4AEB-AEM-b770FE52CFAC '
FQRM NUMBER P-37 (viBrsion 12/11/2019)

;  Subject:.Supported Housing for Adults Transitioning To or From GlcnclifT Home (RFP-2023-DBH-0S-SUPPO-01)
■  - ' ■ ' ' • - ■

Notice: This agreement and alt of its attachments shall'bectjrncpdWicupon submission to Governor and
- Executive Council for approval. Any informaiionlhatisprivaie, confidential or proprietary must

clearly identified to the agency and agrr^ioimwoiiuisprtor to signingithe contract.

■ '."agreeiwent-■ ■■ -
'  ' ^ • ,• -.The State oifNew Hampshire and the Gpntractorthcc^OTuluallyragrec as follows!:^

,  " CENERAL<BROV(lM0?iS, ■
1. iDENTIFlCATION. - - ■ • . ^ '

JJ. . K

J.I State Agency Name -

New Hampshirc Pcpartment of Health and Human Services

ilJ-2 iStatci^cncy/Addrcss

nPPIeasani'Strcct
Conccra,iNH 113301-3857 . • ^ ,

1.3 .CbniractorName

NFr.North, Inc. "
V  ' f ^ •

,  . • . •

1.4 Contractor Address

40 Park Lane " ^ ,
Comobcook,''J4H 03229

.1.5 Cphi'ractoTPhone ,
'  Number

■  ' j t'

(603)'746-7550

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-922010-. "
41170000 :

, 1.7 Complclion Date .. , ' '

6/30/2025

1.8, Price Limitation

S10;987,684 '

-1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert'W. Moore, Director . * .. '

1.10 State Agisncy Telephone Number.

{603) 271-9631 . ,

l.U' 'Contractor Signature
^ Doc u S IgnM by;

j  .■■'< '^53/2023 .
1.12' Name and Title of Contractor-Signatory "

V" -- ; -

Paul Oann- ^ Executive 0-
'1.13 State Agency Signature

. Oo«gU^>od by: •

["'-^4^ S-ftO' ' ' ' ■ ?^5/2023
1.14 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory . .

Katja S'. Fox : • - - Director','
'I'.IS -'ApprovalbythcN.H. Department of Administration, DiyisionofPcrsonncl (T/'flp/j/icfl/j/ej; ^ ^

'  ̂ By: Director, On: '

I-. 16 Approval by the'Attorney General (Form, Substance arid Execution) fZ/'o^jp/jcr/WcJ ,
DoeuSlgftOfl by:

:  By: 5/27/2023 ' ! ' ' ■ ■ ■ i
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

rector

V'
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■* ' 2.. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New"
.  'Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1

•  ("Stale"),' engages contractor identified in block 1.3
;'{("Gonlracior") to perform, and the,Contractor shall pcrform„lhe'.
, work or.Mle of goods,'or both", identified and more particularly .

- described in .the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
* * * *' •

,  herein by re ference ("Services"). .

'  . 3.'EFEECTIVE bATE/COMPLETIpN of services. , ''
•  3.1' ^hlotwithsianding any provision of this Agreement to the"

'contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and.
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable;

.  '/this Agre^ent, and all obligations of the parties h'crcundcr, shall
become cITcctivc on the date the Governor and. E.x«uiive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block i.l7|

- unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
thc'Siatc Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTcclive Date").

;  3.2 if the ^Contractor commences the Services prior to the
^ EfTectiye'Date/all Services performed .by the Contractor prior to

.  ■ the. Effective Date shall be pcrfomied at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in ihc eveni that this Agreement does not become.

•  cfreciivc. thc State shall have no liability to the Contractor, "
'  including; without limitation, any obligation to pay the

Contractor for any costs incurred or Services perfonned.
Contractor must complete ail Services by the Completion Date,

1  ,.spccifiedjn block 1.7.-

' 14.,CpN'DITipNAL nature. OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any pro^sion of this Agreement to the

■  • cpntraryl all obligations of-.the State.'hereunder, ihcludingj
V- wi'ihoui limitation,'the continuance of paymcnTs hcrcundcr, arc";

; icontingcnt'upon the availability and'coniiniicd appropriation of
:  - Turids affected by any state or federal ;legislative or executive,

action'that reduces, eliminates or otherwise, modifies the '
;  -'appropriation or availability of funding for this Agrccrncni and

*; /;the Scope'for Services provided in!EXHIB|T 8, in whblc or in
/'^..part.'In .hp event shall the State be liable for any payments-
-  hcreundcrjn e.xccss of such available appropriated funds. In the

'.event of-a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
.  State shall.have the ri ght to withhold payment until such funds

• becotrie available, if ever, .and-shall have the right to reduce or
•  '• terminate.(he Services under this'Agreement immediately upon'

■givmg'lhc (contractor, notice of .such reduction or .termination;"
•- The State shall not be required,to transfer funds from any other
"  '-account or source to.the Account identified in block 1,6 in the

event futids in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and^crm.s of payment
arc identified and more particularly described jn EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference..
5.-2,Thc payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to.the Contractor for all

'  -expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
.  '.■•pcrrormance.hcrcof, and shall be' ihc only and the complete

j  •. ■ ' ■ " ' ■

- compcn.saiionAo4hetConiracibr for the Services: the State shall
have no IhlbiHtytbihe Conlractbr other than the cohiraci price.
S.3 The Stale r^r^'es the ri ght to oftset from any amounts-
bth"ccwiscipa55iWc<Oilhc'Contracto'r under this' Agreement those
liquidated smbunts'required-or perthitted by N.H. RSA 80:7-

.through RSa S0:7< or?any other provision of law. .
■ 5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement "to the

cpritrary.-and'nbtwithsiajiding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shalhthe<otahofiall payments authorized, or actually made
hereuhdci:;«-xcccd;lhefprice Limitaiionsct fotih,in block 1.8. •

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS^
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY'. .
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor':shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations; and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any. obligation or'duty upon the
Cohiractbr.rincluding, but hot limited to, civil nghts and equal

• cnipjoymentfopportunity lows. In addition, if this Agreement is
. ■ funded'in any part by monies of the United Slates, the Contractor

shall comply with all federal executive.orders,.ralcs, regulations
' and statutes; and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the

State or the United States issue to implcment ihcse regulations.
.The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable inielleclual
.property laws. ■
6.2 During the term bf this Agreement; the Contractor shalj not
discriminate against employees or applicants-for employment

; because bf race, color, religion, creed, age, sc.x, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take alTirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

..-6.3; The-Contractor"agrees to permit ihc Stale or United Slates
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts fijr
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations

■ahd.,orders, and the covenants," terms arid, conditions'of this
• Agreement. . -

%'■■■
a V

Nw..7. PERSONNEL. ^ . . .
•  I'J.I The Contractor shall at ils'ownexpense^provide all personnel

'necessary"to perform the Services. The Conlractbr warrants that
all personnel engaged in (he Services shall be qualified to
pcrfbrm the- Services, and. shall be properly licensed and

• otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.,-
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of

,lhis Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
, Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
. shall not permit any subcontractor or .other person, fi rm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or- official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This

- provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTiccr spccified in block "l .9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the

.- Contracting.Officcr's dccision shnll be fi nal for the State.

:r
j  ■

".u

e.2 6f4 ■ "f V' ' >
•  - V. _ > ■ * .
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S.EVENT OF-DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 one or more of the following acis or omissions of the
Contractor shall consiituic an event of default,hcrcundcr ("Event.
ofDcfault''):V . ' .
-S.'l-.l^ failure'to "perform the Services satisfactorily or oit
sch^ule; " r . ■ .
8.1.2 failurie to.submit any report required hercunder; and/6r-
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
•thilAgrccmem. ' -
8.2 Upon the (xcurrencc of any'Evcnt of Default, the.Stalc may.
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 gi.vc'ihc Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be'remedicd'within,jn the absence of
a greateror iKser specification of time, thirty (30) days/rom the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default'isinoi timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective lwo'(2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

■ 8.2.2 give ilie.Contractpr a written notice specifying the Event of
..Defatjjt and sus'pending all payments to be made under this
.Agreement^ and ordering that the portion of the contract'price
which would '.otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Slate
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default*

shall never bc.paid to the Contractor;
8*2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of '
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of'
any Evcnt.ofDefault; and/or . -
8.2 A give the Contractor a,written notice specifying the Event of
'Default, treat the • Agreement as breached, terminate the
, Agrecmc'nland.pursuc any of its remedies at law or in equity, or.
bbih^.- \ ^ ■ , • • '
8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after-,
any Event of Default shall be deemed a,waiver ,bf.iis'.rights with

"rcgardi to ;thal Event of Default, or any- subsequent Event of
^ DtfauU.-Nb express.failurc.tp enforce ari>\Eveht of.E)cfault shall'
-bc dcemed a w'aiyer of the right of the.Slate to enforce each and'
all'of the.iprpvisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defauli.on the part of the Contractor.
'  * ' ' • ' ' * . -

9. TERMINATION. , "'i-
Notwithstanding paragraph'8, thc State may, at-its sole

discretion,iterminaic the Agreement for any,reason, in whole or
in;pan, by thirty (30)'days written notice to the Contractor that,
the Stale is exercising its option to tcrifiinatc the Agreement. :
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement, for
any reason other .than the completion of the Ser\'iccs, the
Contractor shall, nl the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting OfTiccr, not later than fi fteen (15) days after the date '
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Scryiccs performed, and the contract, price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
contcntj and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
- be identical to those of any Final Report described in,the attached-
EXHIBIT.B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, wjthin-15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Trarisition 'Plan for services under the

*  . Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTY/ , " . /
PRESERVATION. • '

- lO.l As used in this Agreement, the word "data'^ shall mean all '
information and things developed or obtained during the , ! '

' performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this -
Agreement, including, but not-limited to, all studies, reports,

■  files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video. '
recordings, pictpriai.reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic '
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters,-memoranda, pap.crs^ and documents, all whether •' '
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from'
the'State'or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and ..
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon termination •'

. of this Agreement for any reason. ■ , ' .
, 1013'Confidcnliality of data shall be governed by N.HI RSA
- 'chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires '
, prior written approval of the State.. ' -

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE; In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects '
an -independent contractor; and is neither an agent not* an
employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of it^s

,, officers, employees, agents or'members shall have authority to ' '
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compenMtion or -

''other emoluments jjrovided by the State,to its employees.
4  • ' ' * . , T

-  ;i2. ASSIGNMENt/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS..
..' 12.1 Thc-Cohtr'actor shall not assign, or otherwise" transfcr'ariy .

■ interest in.ihis Agrccmcni without the prior written notice, which *
shall be provided to the'Siatc at least fifteen (15) days prior to
thVassigrimcnl.-and a vsrittcn consent of the State. For purposes;•

■  of'.this paragraph,' a 'Change of-Controf shall constitute",
assignment. "Change of*. Control-' means (a) merger,-"
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in -
, which a third party, together- with its affiliates, becomes the
' ;'dircct "or indirect owmcr of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
" voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting

■ pbwer of the Coniractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
. of the assets'of the Contractor;. ,
l2.2-Nbne ,of the Services shall be subcbhlractcd by" ihc.'
Contractor .without prior written notice and con.scnl of the Stale.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignrhcni
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
pany. . ,

I

^  I. ■ r

■ '-.''r's"--
Cii ."I

M,,

;r'i- ■

'* I 'i\f
•* , V • ' '1 • • •

J3. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmlcs.s the State, its
••officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
. -liabilities and costs for any personal ,injur>' or property damages; "
.patent or.copyright infrmgcment, or other claims asserted against - -

. • ihc. Statc, its officers of employees, which arise out of (or which *
• may bc .claiiticd to arise oui.;of) the acts .or omissiotto£)f the

V ' ■ •. 'Page'3 or;4 - <
^  . rCon'tiacibr Iniiials'^^——-

"■ Date 5/?3/2023--
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■ Coniracipr, or subcoritraciors.vincludirig'bui limits'lo the
il6.negligence, reckless or iniehtional conduct. The Stale shall.not

'be" liablc.'for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under'
-  "thisparagraph.13. Notwithsiandingthe foregoing,noihingihercin -
f  ■ contained shall be deemed to constitute a w'aivcrof the sovereign

■ ^' '^immunity of the State, which.tmmuriity is hereby,reserved to.thcj.
' . State. This-'covcnant in paragraph 13 shall survive' the

termination of this Agreement. ̂
'I'--

;i4.:iNSURANCE.
14.1,'Xhe Contractor shall,
continuously.' maintain in

at jts sole'expense, obtain .and
force, and shall require-any

:. NOTICE.' Any"notice by a party hereto to the other party
■ shoiri>e deemed to have been duly delivered orgiven at the time
4df.7nailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
-Pos't'OITicc addressed to the panics'Oi the addresses given in ■
'blocks;!.2 and 1.4,herein. .. 1

l"7.:J^iENDMENT..'This Agrccmerii may bc'athehded,.waived ,
.Oridischarged dnIyOy an in.<!trum'cnl in writing signed by the"
jTparticsohcreto .and^onjy after approval of such'amendment,

, waiver; or discharge-by the Governor and E.xccutivc Council of •
•ihe'Statcbf New Hampshire unless no'such approval is required"'

subcontractor or.assignee to-obtain and maintain' jn'f6rcc,'"the ,i-un3crahc circumsianccs pursuant'to State law; mlc or policy. •
rollowihg insurance: '
14.1.1 ■commercial general, liability'insurance against alhctaims -18.; CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agrcc'mcnt shall

'  . .be;.govemed, interpreted and construed in accordance with'the
'  lavN^ of ihe State.of New Hampshire, and is binding upori and
.' ■ inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors.
.. and assigns; The wording used in this Agreement is the wording

.  chosen by the parties to cxprcss'thcir mutual intent, and no rule
;iOf'.cdh5tru.ctiqn shall be applied against or.in favor of any party. "
Anyjactions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintain^ In New Hampshire Superior CotJtl which shall have

!  cxclusiyejurisdiction jhcrcpf. • .

19. CONFLICTING TERMS., In the event' of a confiict
■ between the terms of this P-37 rorm '(as mo<ilficd in EXHIBIT

'•vA)'ah^or dttachmchts and amendment thereof, thc.tcrms of the
■.P-37'(as modified In EXHIBIT A) shall cbntrolr

,  . - . ,of bodily,injury, death of property damage, ;in amounts of not-;
"_J' ■ less than $r,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate '

"  , ^ ' , or'cxccss;,randi " ;
•  ''14.1.2 special cause of.loss coverage form covering all property..

, • Isubjcct ib'^'subparagraph'lO:'? herein, in an amount not.lcss than •
■  i" ,8p®A"df the whole replacement, value of the'propcrty'. - .

' .1.4.2,Thc.pblicics described in,subpafagraph 14.[^herein shall be;
on pplicy'forms and endorsements apprbvcd for use in the Slate •

•  ■ of New Hampshire by the N.H. Departmcnl of .Insurance, and
" ^ 'issued .by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire: •

,. •; 14.3".The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer '
'  identified in.block 1.9, or his or her successor, accriincatc(s)dr :

,  - '^insurance for all insurance required under" this 'Agreement.
•  ̂Contractor^ishaM also furnish to the Contracting OITiccr idcnlificdt

.. ! .' .;in block lr.9,'.or,his pr hcrsuccesspr, cciiificatc(s) of insurance. 'V. ' • • 1
"  " I Torali rcrrcwai(s)'ofinsurancc.requircd undcrthis Agreement no t lO.'THIRb PARTIES. The parties hereto do ndt'intchd to.

,  'plater than .icn-(lO),days prior to the expiration .'date ofea'ch.-- ; 'benefit any third .parties and this Agrecmcril. shall hot .be
[insurance policy." The; cenificnic(s)' 'of insurance and. any ^ construed to confer any such benefit. -

■  fcnewals'ihereofshallbeattachcdandarcincprporatcdhcrcin.by'-" ., • ' ; ■
•  reference.;^- ' - 21. HEADINGS. Thc.hcadings throughout the Agreement arc

'/'for reference purposes only,-and thc.'words contained therein,
//.IS.iWORKERS'COMPENSATlbN. ' • •'* V' : shall in no way be.Held to explain,.modify, amplify" or aid in the

"15 j By,signing thispgrecmcnt, ihc.Co.niractpi; agrees, certifies i^j_*^inielprctatjon, .consimction or meaning of;t.hc prpyisions "of this.
-• i v '.j and w^ranis,.that the Cpniracior isjO'Cprnpliance wiih'or exempt • 'tAgrccmcntj. " .• • - "

•' f-. from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
■ 'Compensalipn"). . . . ' " [ , .22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional, or modifyin,

•  15.2 Tothccxtcnt.thc Contractor is subject lb the requirements """ .r--L:-.L r-vmrn-r a—: ^—..
.. '- of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall thaintain,.and

•  .^ require ariy subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
;  . • paynicnl of. Workers' Compensation in connection with

;  activiiic.s \vhich the person proposes to uriderfakc pursuant toihis
. Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer,

identified In.block 1.9,or his or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter

■  281-A and any applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, \vhich shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State

•  . shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or" for any other claim.or benefit for
.Contractor^ or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,

-  ■ which-might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
.- ' -Vyqrkers' Compensation laws in ■ connection with • ihc^ -

perf^onmancc ofthe Services under "this'Agrecment;

ing

provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference. •• : '

"■23. SEVERABlLlTY. in the event any of the provisions of this
A'grccrhcnt are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be'

^cpntrary to any state,or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
c.xccuicd in a number of counterparts, each of .which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement, and
.understanding between the" parties, and supcr.scdcs all prior
;agrccmcnls and understandings with respect to the subject matter

. hereof. . . ' ■

'  \ . Page 4 of 4. ,
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•  ' . New.Hampshire' Department of Health and Human Services,
' Supported Houising for Adults Transitionlng Todrf^rom'-Glehcliff Home
r  • ..EXHIBITS ■

<.

' • • 3, ■ ,
-  ■ ' r

'  •

I

■.r-..-iRFP..2023-08H-0&-SUPF»0-or'' •■ . ' v't- • i,- • A-1.2;. / Coniractc
'  ■ . ' ' -"V" . • ' ; . I , " ,

V.V:- f/'NFiN^. lnc. i ^ ' " ; " ^ y'Y^ . Page'lof i' ' ..
'  '■ ri- ■■

•  - '1 i ^ ' ' * i ^ • '1'» ' ' V ' • ^ t' * ^ * I. ' ''i' • '' ■ * * J • '" ^ j ' , '•. •••N;- •• , - • !• - • , . • 1

Contractor Inilials

•OS

I ^ .

^ i

' , ■ Revisions to standard Agreement Provisions- -

Revisions tO-Form P-37; General Rrdvisions * " •

'  ; 1:1. ..Paragraph 3, Effective'D'ate/eompletion'of Services, is amended by adding
■  • •• ■ subparagraph 3.3 as follows: ' < • - . •

:  ■ . 3:3. The parties may extend the Agreement forojp'to four (4) additional years.
from.the Completion Date, • contingent upon satisfactory delivery of

• services, available funding, agreement of the:parties..and approval,of the
;  , , Governor .and Executive Cduncir.

1:2. Paragraph 12, 'Assigriment/Delegatibn'/Subcpntracts,. is, arhended by "adding
■  i'Y ■ subparagraph-l 2.3 as follows: '

-  ' ; ; 12.3'. Subcontractors are .subject to the" same'contractual; conditions as the
•  " 'Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor'

•  ' ' compliance with those conditions: The Contractor shall have vyritten
.  agreements with all subcontractors:--specifying.the work to be performed,,

and if applicable, a Business .Associate Agreement In accordance with
the Health' Insurance- Portability and ■Accountability Act. Written •

;■ agreements shall specify how correctiye action shall be managed. The
•  Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's perforrhance on an ongoing

•  ' basis, and take corrective action "'as. necessary. The Contractor .shall
annually proy'ide the State ,with a Jist of all .subcontractors provided for
.under this. Agreement _and ^'/hbtify the State of. any inadequate

-  subcontractor performance. •

,) '
■:\r

, 5/23/2023.^ : ,

'  -■ •■"'VY
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^' ;;New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
.Supported Housing for Adults Trahsitioning T0';or From Glencliff Home

EXHIBITS .

. ̂ ; Scope of Services : . .

'1.; Statement^ofWork . v . , 'V, . ^ *' 'V ^ ^

.. The'Contractor must provide four {4),sepa'nate", five (5)-b'edspecialty.residential ^
programs that provide the supported ihousirig services desc'rib.ed in. this

.  v •. Agreement for individuals transitionlng from and/or awaiting admission to
"" : ■ Giencllff Home, and who are experiencing.one (1) or more of the'following:

^  . Serious mental illness (SMI) orserious and persistenfmental illness •
i(sPMi): .. '; ̂ = ■ ■■ ; ^ V

■  , r Serious.mental illness (SMI) or serious and persistent mental illness-'
■  :-(SPM!)withacb^ccurririg.diagnosisof: ' ,

,  • '1.1.2.1. A substance use disorder; ; . ' ./ '• . i.-;

1.1.'2.2. An InteiiectuaTor deveiopnientai disability;'

1.1.2.3; Acquired brain disorder: of " . '

■ 1.1.2.4,. Complex medical needs;

' 1.2. the Contractor must ensure services are available to individuals statewide arid
, s the physical locations-are located in regions as approved by the Department.

1,.3. ' For the.purpp.ses of this Agreement, "all references to days mean calendar days,'
'  excluding state and federal holidays., . , 'v.

-  1:4. For the purposes of this Agreement^, ail references', to "business hours mean. ■
■  . Monday through Friday from 8 am to 4 pfn.

■> ■''1.5!" Communitv-Based Housing ■ . . ^ \ ,

*  , 'i.5.1. ' .ThejContractor muststahd.up a community-based residential . ,
' ~ - . model and comply.With all State.licensing, certification, arid

residential rules. The Contractor must ensure the implementation
,  , , . ' of: ' • - ' . ;
/  - , 1,-5.1.1. Four (4) comrnunily-based residences with" the capacity

.  > ;. , " to serve five (5) individuals each, in accordance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rule • He-M 1002, "
Certification Standards for Behavioral Health Community '
Residences.^and New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-P 800, Residential Care and Health "Facility Rules,
Part 814, Community Residences at the Residential
Care and Supported Residential Care Level,.referenced

' » . ^ as He-P 814. - - ' ,
■  , ■ 1.5.1.2. Two (2) locations within approximately six (6) months of

"  ■ r rthe'cqntract effective date, or as btherwise.;apprpvpd .by
•  the D.epaftment. , ■„

.  ̂ v/-v. ■ ■
.,RFP-2023:DBH-05-SUPeO.-Or' ' - B-a.O- "• ' ■ ComfactorrniUals •
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
'  Supported Housing for Adults Transitioning To onFromiGJencllff Home

EXHIBIT B

.1.5.1.3." The remaining two':{2) .locations within approximately^
'  nine (9)'months of :the icontfact effective date, or,as'

pthenvlse.approvedijy.thfiJDepartrnent.

'1.5.2. The Contractor must prioritize locationslhat are in close proximity-
to each other and have easy access'to commuhity services and
activities, and support opportunlties'foT'comrhunity engagerhent.

1.5.3. . The Contractor must operate a smoke free program that:

I .S.S.i. Supports a culture of wellness;,and ̂

1.5.3.2. Actively provides or facilitates connection to tobacco
intervention servicesfo all individuals who are former or.
-current smokers, to include: .< - . "

- >•'
c  ■ .

1.5.3.2.1. Apprbpriate supports to help former
smokers maintain their non-smoking
status; and

"  1.5.3.2.2. Ongoing smoking cessation treatments \
,  "such as the "Healthy Choices- Healthy

Changes" program.for current smokers;"

1 ■.5.4.-- ■ The Contractor must operate anjAOA compliant residence and
provide individualized services fprthe.fplloyying levels of service •

■ " ' ■ . iritensi'ty.- . ■ ' ' . - '
1.5.4.1. ■ Level 1:-presidential, Program - Requirements include:

r..; *1.5.4.1.1. Support services must be provided 24
^  . hours a-day, .seven (7) days a week to

,  ' • • . rhe'et individualized service'needs;. .
1.5.4.1.2./ Supervision must be on site when

-  -individuals are home;;

.  1.5:4.1.3:. ' 'Overnight supervision must be provided by
-  ;, : ' awake staff stationed on the premises, or

■  - " in a nearby apartment or office if safety can
be maintained with the additional use of

-  safety and security related devices or
services; ' r

1.5.4.1.4. ■ Staff must be trained and capable of
providing ■ hands-on personal care

r- assistance, - as needed, to ■. meet
■  . . individualized service needs; -

:• . 1.5:4.1.5. Nursing services must . be provided as
■  ■ -needed to meet individual servicMaeds

RF^R-2023-O^H-05-SUPPO-01 . • '8-2.0 •• ; Conlraclof^lnitials
.••■-■p . • ' ' v>.5/23/2023
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^  / EXHIBITiB

"  *■- " ■■ " ■ . • i'and must be available on call 24 hours a
■  . ^ ' ■ iday.seven (7) days a week; _ ,

, " ^ V " ■ .1-5.4V1.:6. Staff imust be.; trained and available to:'"
'  ̂ administer and/or monitor medicalidns 24

'  ihoursaday, seven.(7)daysa weeki'and
■  1.5.4.1.7-. Staff must be available to provide mental

health services as required in the Individual
•  . . service plan and residential rules.

1.5.4!2. Level 2: Residential Program + Nursing - Must meet all
of Level l requirernents plus: . '

." • • \1.5.4,2.T.". • . Nursing, services must be provided.on-site
.  ■ a minimum of 20 hours per'week.

■ 1.5.5. 'The Contractor must ensure:'
T5.5.1. The length'of stay for individuals in the residence, is'

-  based on clinical need; and ■ '

1.5.5.2." The transition of individuals to less restrictive
^  ̂ environments, as clinically indicated,, is observed. .
?  .1.5.6. The Contractor must .ensure individuals, whose service intensity
'..V': • level increases oi; decreases over time,,may transition into another-
•' :/■ setting that meets'the" individual's.changing service intensity needs,

if available, and approved by the individual, their'guardian (if
■  f.-; . appjicablej, the pevy provider^ and the Department. ■
V: ;■ - / ' - 1.6: . ■ Prdcrarfi Admission Requirements ' /. ■
' ■ '■ 1.6.1: The Contractor must limit admissiohlotheprogram to individuals: - ' ■'

V-, , .;. 16.1.1; Ip-accordance with the service intensity levels, as
approved by.the Bureau of Mental Health Services; '

T.6.i;2. Within the Department .approved, community.. '
'■ ; .- • " environment^and capacity- llmjtaljpns; and

1.6.1.3. For individuals transitioning from or diverting admission'
.  ■ to Glencliff Home. .

1.6.2. - The Contractor must:

.  1.6.2.1. Establish an admission process, approved by the
. Department, to ensure the successful entry of accepted

individuals into the program; . ■

.  1.6.2.2. -Accept and prioritize referrals in the.following order of
.  . • • /priority: ; >-• ^ /; , - , ■

1.6.2.2.'t. ■ Priqnty ,i;: Glencliff Home residents;

•,RFP.2023-O8H-05-SUPPO-0V-; '; ' B-2,0'' ' . •ContrDCtprlnilials
'
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■  ̂ EXHIBITB

1:6:2.2^.' =P-riority .2: .Current t New Hampshire.-
-"v i:itospila'l ,((fsiHH).!patienls who are awaiting

.arimi^ion to Glenciiff Home.
1:6.2.2.3.. '.in Ihe event there are no candidates under

'  -ireview or anticipated from Priority-Areas 1
.  ■ ,'or •2;. 'the ' Contractor may. consider

■ admissions from: *1  '

dj6J2J2.3.-1.' Any . Individual , awaiting
'  . , admission to Glencliff Horne,,

who is currently receiving
,  ■ , . ' . services In a DBF, or nursing;

-  ' ■ . ^ ■'.facility: and
y  . . • ■ =■1.6.2.2,3.2. Any Individual awaiting

admission to Glencliff Home
'  . > ' who is currently receiving

community-ba'sed services
'  . , , . , and supports:

' ■1.6.2.3. ' -Adhere to a Department-approved written referral
protocol-that includes-.a review and evaluation of the

, - indiyiduars'current situation, including clinical records,
■ j' ■ -•assessment of intensity of- -service .peed" level, and

;  anticipated duration of,need, and referral disposition; .
1.6.2.4. . ^ Maintain a list of, referred Individuals, in order of referral;

'  .date and by servic'e. 'intensity need' level, for whom
' \ admissibn-is'sbughti but occupancy i not yet available;'
1.6.2.5. Collaborate with iHejDepartmeot on the data elernents .to

■ be captured.in theJist; ' ^
.,,1.62.6:; ■ .Seek approval from""the-Departmeni, in writing, prior to

, accepting any referrals for adrnission and transition into
»  'j: ,the" supportive housing program;-.;.

1.6.2.7. Respond to all,referrals, in writing, as to the individual's
acceptance or denial into the residential program. If there
are contingencies placed on" the acceptance or if the

.  . referral is denied, the Contractor must provide, in writing, .
an explanation of contingencies or reason for denial to,

' the individual; • .

-1.6.2.8. ■ -Respond to the-individual, with, a decision . in. writing,
.. - ' . ..within 14 business days of receipt with a copy emailed,

or-hard.mailed tolhe Department; .and
'  ' -OS

5/23/2023
v.; RFP-2023-DBH-05-SURPO-0i ' v. '• >8-2.0'v •• • '•CohtraUoV IftlLials '
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•  . ^ EXRIBITB 1

"r ■ 1.6.2,9. Once admitted Jifi,ihe:iinidividual is hot successful in;the
transition; process, ̂thBiDohtractor must communicate

-  . with the referring':^tity verbally, within 24 hours, and in
,. ' , - writing within 14.lbiirsinress,idays, as to the reason{s) fpr
-  , the unsuccessfuUransition. ■ /-.

1.6.2.10, .Make eligibilityXtdeteniiina'tioris. accordance with
'  f ' applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders.

'.guidelines; policies .and procedures. ■:
^  1.-6.3. Notifyany individual" who has been4ound ineligible for services of

■  their'right to appeal the adverse decision by requesting a fair.
' hearing in accordance with New Hampshire RSA 126-A:5.The

L  , Contractor must have a discharge process-thati

'  1.6.3.1. ' Includes a requirement' to "ensure participation ih
discharge planning' meelings with natural supports,

• community mental health'programs and other, involved
;  ■ •' , providers and stakeholders specific to the individual,

■  .-including natural sUppprts, as appropriate: ■ .
'  11.6,3.2: Provides a, written discharge plan .that.must include the

•/., ■ ' . ' ' following:- /'X.
.  r, , 1.6.3.2.i: , An evaluation of the individual's current

•  . • , .. • • ■ ■ . situation; ' •' * .

it '

'  •RFP.20250BH-05-SUPFp ^ X X.; ' . CpnlfBCtoflnili'a
'  "v* NFI North..Inc. - •*:'i Page 5 of 25 -'Date

/  • • ; .'" jv" .'- 'v i'' .v--•  , i '■ . . 1 -5;, .• \). *. ■> . • • .
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1.6.3.2.2. 1 The "individual's current mental, health and-
•  healthcare status; and

■'.V ' ■1.6.3.2.3. Transition. ■ plan for;., the- individual's
y  ,y transition into" another level of care, or' :

otherwise .transition to a less restrictive
environment or more intensive

.X enyirorinieht, as:appropriateto meet the. '- '
■  * . tndiyiduars care needs;

. 1".6.3.3.- - Develops.and implements a' collaborative'^ relationship
with the community rnental health center and natural
supports to develop treatment plans'designed to'retum

, each individual to the community where applicable; ■ ?

1.6.3.4. . Involves the individual's natural supports to support
integration into the community, with the individual's
consent; and .. .

1.6.3.5. . Identiries:any barriers to placement in, a less intensive
community setting and a .plan' to overcome those

■  barriers;: if'clinically appropriate, with emphasis OQjj the
yp . ■ y ■

• InilialS »'
5/23/2023 : .
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EXHIBIT B

interventions necessary to promote, more "opportuniiies ̂
.  . for community integration. ■' v. - ' ■

•  •1..6!4, •, The Contractor rriust provide'the written proce'sses'for referrals,
admiissions, evaluations and discharges tb the Department no later

'  , ■ , than 30 days from the contract effective date; The Contractor.must'
■  ' • • :ensure the procedures: • • "

" . ' 1.6.4.1. .. Outline the process to identify the individuals" service
'  - . K level needs; and .

.  , 1-6.4.2. Outline how facilitated connection to and enga'gemerit
.. . . . with community based service providers will occur.

1..6:5.-". The Cohtfactor must provide complaint manager-services by
'  designating a staff member to,perform'the responsibilities of

'  complaint manager in accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rule He-M 200, Practice and Procedure, Part 204,
Rights Protection Procedures for Mental Health Services, referred

*' . 'to as He-M 204.

sV
..i

.1 'j

1.6.6. The Contractor must submit an admission process plan and a
'  discharge/transition plan to the Department for approvaj within 30

days from the contract effeclive date.
.1.6.7. ' the Contractor must assist each .individual with.securing a local"

primary care physician (PCP),.dentist, and referrals to other " ..
rnedical professionals as requested or required, of the client's

.  .choosing, within,30 days from the contract .effective date; and must
,  . coordinate the individual's care with'the PGP.

v1;67.-1. The Contractor .rnust exchange health information "at
regular intervals with the written consent of the client or

'  guardian. ' ;
•1.6.8. • The Contractor must coordinate care with the legal systerh, 'as' '

applicable to each individual, by assessing the legal commitrrient
.s.tatus of clients residing in-the program and if deemed appropriate,

' provide for the continuation of the commitment via the proper legal
process. The Contractor must also provide coordination of care with
the legal system when indicated, inciuding the NH Department of
Corrections, the applicable NH County Attorney's Office, and the
NKAttorney General's Office.

1.6.9. ■ The Contractor must comply with all state and federal laws and
regulations pertaining to the licensure and operation of .the
community residential prpgVam. , ■ . ■

1.7. Supported Housing Services' . ' ' • .

y.-

.i.r' RFfJ-aoaJ^bBH-OS-SUPRO-OlM '. -rB-Z.O - '' • - • 'ComractorlnlUals
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'  EXHIBITB'

' ■ ■ 1.7:1. ■ The Contractor mustiprovide Integrated treatrnent across thre.e
,  , ' interlocking areas of focus, whereiapprbpriate, to meet Individual
.' ■ - .needs.that include Ciinicaj and lyiedical'Services, Supported
... ■ .Employment and VocationarServices, and Residential Life ■'
^ - , Services.,-The Contractor-must ensure an integrated dual diagnosis

,  .approacji as wellas.the .use. of evidence-based,practices (EBP) ■
■ such.as:' • ' - > '

■ tl .!

3.

, . --1 •
-• ... V. -
V 1. -

-  -.i

'  , "t''
*'< '• '

.•O"

-• y\''

.v::.

r  1.7.1.1. Dialectical Behavior Therapy; . , v . , .

1.7.1.2: Acceptance and Commitment Therapy; .. . ■* ' •'
1.7.1-.3., Wellness Recovery Action Plan; ' r - ; ■

1.7.1.4. .. Cogriitjve Behavioral Therapy, including'; but noriimiled
.- toThefollONving focused groups:. . ,

"  1.7.1;4;1,; ^ Seeking Safety; ■! . . , "
1.7.1:4.2. " . Wellness Management;

'  ■ ■ ■ 1.7.1.4.3.- SubstanceAbuseDisorder^SUOVservices.--"-- " ' . •
' prdvided.by a Licensed.Alcdhol and Drug . , ■ ^
. Counselor (LADC) certified staff member; " ' k' --

, , . • •• ' ■ ' -i? . . . ' • - • . * . r

1.7.i:5..' ' other specialized ti;ejtfhent services, as necessary,'to- ■ '' S
\  m,eet,clinical need. ■

1.7.2. / Clinical and Medical,Service's ' .1" "
.  . ■ 1.7.2.1. , The Cpntractprmust en We the treatment tearfi meets . '

_  V the leyel of-cai;e.needed for residents as defined in,the-^; •
: . individualized service plans. Asclinicially appropriate,'the •?, . .

treatmeht-tearh'shall be: ^ . '■ -• - •' .V-

■" 1.7.2.1.1. ■ Cornppsed of the program's psychiatrist, • -
,  ' clinical care coordinator; nurse, licensed/

nurse ■ "assistant (LNA), direct care staff.
clinician;, and peer support specialist,-^as,".' •. .

I  well as'other relevant professionals;. ' . /.
.  '1.7.2.1.2. Certified jn ANSA .(Adult .Needs and

■' ' Strengths Assessment).
1.7.2.2. Jhe'Contractor must complete individual setyice'plans.

,^for individuals • in" accordance with New. Hampshire
Administrative Rules He:M 40Tand He-M 408.-

1.7.2.3. The Contractor must: : '

T  .* ■1.7.2.3'1. 'Assist individuals-to-impro.ve their-mental . , . ,
' health, physical .health, 'and/bver^^ell- .

• T. •

•  ■ ■ ' - being ih a cpmrhunity-based settinq^
'  : t:>- 'RFR-ZbZJ-DBHjOS-SUPPObl > ' . • -B-2.0 l'j\/ '• ' . Contractor Initials k- ■■; ■■■-. . i V

"  ̂ u/V'--/'I " ". -." " 5/23/2023 ^•* - NF.l North. inc. V ;< ; • , ' • « . • . Peg® 7 of 25 r' . ; i.-: '/.- i -j - v '■ - .
TV T~/ ""f -.-in! , ' / 0; '""i ,.o''



DocuSIgn Envelope ID: ■E095FFD3-D5B2-4AEB.A£38.D770Fe52CFAC

c; /  ••NewiHampshire pepartmenrof Health and l^uman Services
''Supported Housing for Adults Transitiohtr^'ToiOriFrom Glencliff Home
'  : ' EXHiBme

.j

- 7

■ n"

j-'-s ' ■

V-

>'■

i

J'

v

;1.7!2.3.2. : Support imdividual wellnesS'and recovery •
^through tdirect service provision, and
referrals^, and. linkage/with community-

■  ' . ' tesed 'services-and-supports, based'on
.  : . ^dinicahraeed, that may include, but not be, .

,  . . . l'Jimi,ted4o.:

.  ■ d:7.!2.3-3. Hands-on personal -care
-  . , services.

1.7.2.3;4;'Whole-health support services.

.1;.7.2;3.5.' Mental .health services,
'  including individual, group and-'

;  W " family counseling. -
,1.7.2.3.6. Peer and'recovery services.

1,.7.2;3.7. Reactional therapy.-

1(.7.2.3.8.-Behavioral therapy.

1.7.2.3.9. Substance .use disorder (SLID)
.  ; " services. '

'  ' • . - ' 'r . ' ■ ■ ' " .
:  * ' . ' 1.7.2.3.10.'Smoking cessation services.

-1-.7;2\3.li.Nutrition -education ■ and
-- - ■ exercise programs; ^

V. ■. .1.7.2.3.12. Brain injury services.

'• • • ' ' '* ' •1.7..2"3.13..lntellectual disability services. ■
•  : ■' 1.7.'2.3.14. Primary or specialty medical

services. ; . : :

'l.7:2.3.15.Medication management. .
1,.7.2.4. ■ ■ The Coritractor must provide Illness Management and

'  , Recovery. (IMR) on an individual or group basis, in •
'accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-M 426, Community Mental Health Services.

1.7.2.5. ■ The Contractor must provide treatment for individuals
with co-occurring disorders. The Contractor must
ensure:

1.7.2.5.1. Motivational Interviewing (Ml) strategies
are used;

'  1.7.2.5.Z. . Weekly SUD groups are conducted that
^  . ■ "follow the Cycles of Change, 12-StW^nd '

,  . .Stages of-Recovery, curriculumi^aridl'fi
RFP-202a-DBH-05-SUPPO-0l ' • - " - 8-2.0 V -c " ContraclorInitials
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r - ..

•i". ' /.

I; "i -1.7^2:5.3: ■■■"iFterS:i!rppcrnt£tpBcralists run a weekly peer "
■  r tsiippora .::!grQLi3p to with co-

kjQxburnmjbisi^ens^ : ^
1/7.3.; Supported EmploymentBrradVocati^alSTenrrc^

.  V 1.7.3-.i. irhe:Cdotract6rmust^Tli^.:su.pported employment as,
- appropriate. Tte Qontractor must ensure:

.  ̂ tpdividuals are assisted to develop their '
"^Icnis andi^pabilltles in a way that aligns^ ■

.  \vith their own-interests and desires while.
-Helping them to^ realize the'therapeutic .

ic- . ' ■ ^.benefitstofworkjexperience; '
• ' ' . 1.7.3':1.2. ''■Vocational training .opportunities"closely . '

'  match individuals' areas'of interest, and
. \ : *■ 'Skill building includes individualized skill-:

*  -■ ^ ' development; _
" . .. 1.7;3.1,3,- , In-community work- opportunities are

'  ; - . developed; and
;  * 1.7.3-.1.4. .In-community volunteer opportunities are

'developed in order to advance, individuals'
^  abilities- to work Wth,. the . public and .

complete duties .that will 'transfer into paid
, - \ ...'^smplpyment.

T" ■,1.7,3.2.^ ;. The„C.ontractor nriust address,the" educational needs of,/■
; X i -• individuals*t)y.offering services, includingi but not limited '

-to: - ^ :;V'- ■" '■
-■ ■ ^ 1.7:3.2:1. ^ .Tutoring in basic literacy. .

1  .. . - ; jf,

'  r,

'  l" •
•I. ...

„ . . 1.7,;3.2.2/ ,;-Accessing:^pff-carnpus classes and/online;
... . ■' . / ' learning. . ' ' ' .

.  1.7.3.2.3. Assistance with pursuing" high'school,
/' V" diplomas and/or taking college courses as

appropriate.

1.7.3.3. The Contractor must provide real-time support to assist
individuals with overcoming any challenges they may be
experiencing, Jncluding, but not limited to:

'■ 1.7.3.3.1. Providing on-site assistance in the
workplace to'address concerns vyhen they

'1, ^ ■ ' anse.." * "

.  ',RFP.2023-08H-05-SUPPO-01. , X 'Z B-2.0 ' CbfrtraaorInUials
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'}■

t'

'5 . .

.,1

1^7.3.3.'2j ■Working idlosely wilK- the Clinical and
' ^ . , ' ■■ ■' Medical 'Services and Residential Life.

'tearns itpi ensure" that support for each ■
'  r individual 'is aligned'with the whole-person

• goals established-.through the treatment
. , ■ . planning process. .

'  T.7.3.4..' The Contractor must ensure individuals, who may not be
■ y-- ' - prepared to pursue, supported employment, have the

'.■■• ■y , 'ability to participate In weekly therapeutic activities and ■'
■ ' L • ■ clinical groups, and day treatrnent options that support '
• .. ■ . V , -the individual's wellbeing .and ■goals, and provide
■  " ; . . . 'opportunities for social, prevocatiohal, and life skills

. f. . development.-.- ' .

1.7.4. Residential'Life Services ^ x- .

:1.7.4.1. ; The Contractor must -use its Normative Community
.  . ; Approach -to establish a respectful and caring

i>/. . • ^ ' environment that is mindfuhof each individual's right to
■  • ' .privacy and shared responsibilities that are a part .of a ,

cpmmuriljy residence.. ••

1.7.4'.2: ^ tTh'e Contractor must ensure that the Residential Life
Services team,works in conjunction with the individuals

•  - to -ensure .that the residence is-a, clean, -.safe and
supportive place to live. ■

r ' . \-.1 .T.4..3.- The Contractor must ensure each residence has weekly
v;. ; ' . • ^ • •• ". ; ' group meetings'designed to enhance communication,

•  ̂ • , resolve concerns and plan on-site and offrsite events.
'  ■ The Contractor must ensure group meetings include, but

•  • ".. . are not limited to:
V  v , 'l..7.4.3.T.^ "•f:l0use*meetihg^r'io organize-the week's

. ..-v.-. //• ' ■„ . 'menu; identify shopping needs; designate,
\ , .chore responsibilities; and plan .activities:,

'  ■ 1.7.4.3.2. ■ Commun/7y meef/rigs - to share concerns
or ideas- about how the community is
working together; to focus on celebrations;
to enhance socialization skills; and to

•  practice skills developed through IMR
h®3tment groups and Recovery Action
Plans.

'  , ' . . .1.7.4'.3.3. . CaZ/ g/'oi/ps - to. address any challenges
■  ̂ that impact all residents on an as needed

ba^sis.
RFP-2()23-OBH:b&-SUPP6^r ■ . B-2.0 . ' '■ . Contractor Initials

'J .

'•y

N

r -".- . V ""5/23/2023 - .
'm' ' ■ 'V. "., '. J- E P890.IO0I25 J j ' ' .;4. ' .r' , Oat8l_j ' .
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v;New Hampshire Department of Health.and Human Services / v . - .
'  •'Supported Housing for Adults transitibning To or From Glencllff Horhe ' '

.  EXHIBIT B ' ■ ' ' " ■

■I

-•■t.

■L'\
t- ,

'  ''.r- ' '• J . . I,. .
1 -^ . ■ ' , "

.1

l- .-r '

c .''a-

■-" . 17.4-.3.4' .'iVVeekly schedules that are determined, in- ^ '
} ' . ^ ■ ";part by-the individuals served, with topics ,> '

'  and educational groups chosen" by '
v; ' . . program participants, and curriculunfi

/  developed by staff, which.is renewed every
'  ■ 1-2»vyeeks. - ' , ' ,j;i-

■  1.7.4.4. The Contractor must'assist ,individuals, through hands- < ,
on care, instruction" or queuing, to improve and maintain
daily living skills, . "personal development, and ," -' -

V. . ■ engagernent in cprnmunity activities, including, but not
limited to:-' - ■ ^ ■

•  . 1.7.4.4.1.; V personal-decision'making.
-  • ' '' 1\7.4.'4.2: ' B.udgeting,' shopping, and other functional •

skills. _
*  1.7.4.4.3. \ Medication administration, monitoring

■  ' and/or management.
1.7.4.4.4. Household chores and responsibilities.

•  . . .. ' • .1:7.4.4.5; '-Interpersonal skills'bullding. iriciuding, but,
'  ■ . ■ ' n6t,lirhi.tedto: '

*; T.7."4.4..6;'^Accessing^a wide, range of"
•• * • "integratediCommuoityactivitiesT

t... • • • .such .as , recreational,
.  \ • .vocational, cultural,--and other.

- - " ' ' ■ . ■- ■i- :, - ,; :ppportunities. - ■
■  .■;'i_.7-.4;4;7:"'Participating ' in" " religious •

*  - . ' services and practices of
"  ̂ preference...

■  .1.7.4.5.- Thd- Contractor' " _must ensure' " ongoing learning
' opportunities , that recognize individual strengths and '

needs include, but are not limited to:

■ ■ 1.7.4.5.1; ' "Community living skills.
1.7.4.5.2. Doing laundry.

1.7:4.5.3. Managing medication.
1.7.4.5.4. Maintaining a home,.including ci.eaning.
1.7.4.5.5. Prepping and cooking meals.

■  . 1.7.4.5:6.. .0 Engaging; In- 'appropriate -recreational .
.  activities. • ' ' '

RFP.2025-bBH-b5-Sl]pPOr01%' ^ '■ / . ' i Inilials:  -v. , 5/23/2023
• rf..iy-;".--.NFl'N0flh;lnc.- n--'.'' -Pag® I'i'qf 25 ' sV?. . v.. •. . ' 'S' ."
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New.Hampshjre Department of Health and Human Services .'
;  - ' ■ Supported Housing for Adults Trafisitlonlrig To^br From Glencllff Home

^  ̂exhibit b

■  ̂ V \17,:4.6;' Choosingiand wearing-clothing thk is,neat, clean, in
:  ̂ ' ■ ' goodi Gondition,::^d,i'appropriate to the season and

■  _ ;• activity:' ' " . ' ' '
Ir ' ■ I '. ■ ■

'  ̂ V7..4-7. The'Contractor TDtrstfensure Residential Life Services •
,  I ■' are closely aligned with Clinical and Medical Services

'  ̂ t! ' '■ an'd^Supported.Ernpldyrnent and,Vocationai Services to
.  » ' ■ account for-the clinical and vocational goals identified in

.  ' individuals' treatment plans in order to ensure the
■. residential Jiving experience is an opportunity for

'  individuals to develo'p their ADL's and lADL's, and rhove
forward in their recovery and rehabilitatiori.

J.7.5. . i;a'rgeted CaseManagerrient,' Care Coordination and Transitional.
.  • , -Services"' . , - « . / . ' '
,- • * 1.7.5.1. The Contractor ■ jTiust provide Targeted Case

■  " - ' Management. (TCM) Sen/ices in accordance with New,
'  . Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 426.

,  ' 1.7:5.1.1,. ' Individuals who qualify for Developmental
• w. . .■ Disabilities waiver sen/ices may be eligible

■  ; / 'for dual case-management services
^  "• ■ through 'the Area .Agency -provider. If

: i 'i. ■■ applical3le,_ the Contractor must .ensure
.. ... V waivers' are submitted to the Department

' j.. '; . , ... " ■ ■■ , -through a'standard waiver form..
,  ■ r' ' vl-.T.S.^,' : The;Contractor must provide support and skills-training'

•  ' - for individuals'to improve indepiendence. in;daily living
' skills,:achiev.ewellnessand=rec6yery goals/and prepare

individuals to maintain living in the least restrictive
environment based on the individual's specific heeds
and goais. > ' - . ^ .

-  1-.7-.5.3.' The Cpntractpf must ensure-Peeh Support Specialists
are available to; •

.1.7.5.3.1. 'Support individuals with developing their-
capacity to transition into community
settings;

•  1.7.5.3.2. Connect individuals transitioning into the
community to peer suppprt organizations;

.  and

7. ,1.7.5.3.3., "Conduct ^0-day foliow-up visits with.
' ; '.' individuals .who have transltioned to

•J.;.

V-'

'1RFP.2023-DBH-05-SUPP001, • .S^OV- ^ • Contractor Initials

.  -NFI NorVi. Inc:

7"

community settings.
'  . • I! r* ' * ^ .^ ^ ^ , I ^

'  ■ ' .'8-2.0.-' ./■ •. : ' Contractor initials ^ "*
•-i\' ^ ■' '-5/23/2023

F>a9e"12pf25- ■ Date .

'■ '/A*,, i.* • , .' "i T... V . , v' , . ■ • - • ; • i ,i '.'•v':v '.,v
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.'Ne>v Hampshire Department of Health.and Human Services.
■  ̂ Supported Housing for Adults Transitioning Toior From Glencliff Home

EXHIBITB ..

-  ̂ 1.7'.5.4. ' The Contractor :m,ust .ensure, recovery and. resiliency
.Vapproachesinclude: ' -r- '

,, ■ : .1.7:5.4.1/ ';Access':to servides that prornotethe.vialues
.  ■ ' of.,: fecovery and resiliency through an

-  .iemphasis oh strength-based approaches
'■ * / , ::and'pers6n-centered service planning; and

>  . '■? ■ ' 1..7.,5.'4,2. individual care pla.n goals that identify,
.  oultiyate and sustain relationships with

'  - , . ■ - . ■ • natural ond formal supports in order to •
.  r create supportive networks that promote

Vi , recove.ry and wellness skills.

•  . 1,7.5.5.; ■ ' The Contractor must'provide;and/or collaborate with the ,
'  ' individual's substance , use disorder, intellectual

'  disability, brain, injury, home health, CFI and medical
providers, if applicable, tq delineate;

.  , -•••• 1.7;5.5.1. . the.- services to be provided under this
^  , ,:v , " ' • 'residential program; or- ■"

, /■ ' ' 1;7.5.5.2. 'the. services to be provided pnder other
•  ' ■ . \ cpmmynityrbased ' service programs in
v' accordance with New Hampshire.,

" 4, Administrative Rules, as applicable, and to ..
■  ' ' ... - ■/ further delineate the providers responsible /

. ' . \ . . ' ■* ■ to .meet the IndividMars. remaining service; .
J.;/, ■ V . ' ■'/ . 'he^s;* ■ - ' ...

;  -I'y.- r- , t. • ; " • 'i • -The Contractor.must.seek,' or collaborate with relevant
:v' . ' ■ A - • .>i - - , t" providers to.seek'a waiver'of service limitations in the ' •

'  , , ' event an individual'care plan indicates service intensity
/; ■ needs in excess of applicable Medicaid limitations.

•  '/ : ^ • 1.7.5.6.1. .Waivers are reviewed and approved by the .
.  -■ Department -within 45 . days from

■  "-submission. If the waiver granted does not"
.  ' . " - ' sufficiently meet the service intensity

ne.eds, , all services' that are ' not
reimbursable under Medicaid will be
allowable for reimbursement under

'  contracted • general funds based on
.. . . ■ applicable licensing.

„ 1.7.5.7-. The Contractor .must maintain active status.as a
'  - ' . ■ ' " Medicaid provider through the Department's Medicaid .

'  " ■ i ... ■ ■ . " . program.- a/ ' ■ os

•  -1 RFP-202:^DBH-^5-SUPPO-01" C : .•;B-2;0 -. ' . / • ■ . . . ■Contractor Initials > ■ ■ " ■'
- ■ 'rsm/my-

-;-,v/.;,nF1 North, lnc.r *. - • P8Qe,13.of 25 > ; y •'/ ■ ■ Date • " <,'v■ PaQe,13of25 • • ' ■■ ; Date

-/-V. - •- ' •. /■- '■ , ri. -/j rr
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. New Hampshire Department of Heallth and Human Services
■{• Supported Housing for Adults Transitioning To oriFroan^lencllff Home

EXHIBIT B

?i . I..

Mt • • 1.7.5.8. In the event the■ .Department .incorporates Medicaid
-j'.-' y eligible-resideritiai ipnogramsamd .community residence

y  ; ' - ' ^ • services lirito its agreements .with its Managed Care
;  ' contractors, , the Contractor will be. -notified by the

y I,, _ ■■ ■; Department and pro.vided.oneihundred, and. twenty (120) ■
y ̂ . rv days to enroll as a provider of such services with the
'  * . - " 1 , Managed Care contractors.
y  - i *1.7,5.9. ' The Contractor must lensure services dnd supervision

, y- ' . '' under this'residential program are lirhlted based on the"
^ ' applicable licensing requirements, allowable enrolled

Medicaid provider lirnitations, and limited to the heeds
■V; , iolentified.in the individual's care plan.

".-y ■ . ' yy . - \ ■ " 1.7.5.10. IheContractor-musrensure services are not otherwise
" y^ ^ . 'V y 'provided and reimbursable under existing. Medicaid

• y-V;- -. ,• - waiver prograrns'pertaining to the individual's care,
■  including Developmental Disabilities,- Acquired Brain

,  'Disorder, Choices'for Independence; or other services
y  '-V . covered. .under the -NH Medicaid • State Plan, or

"  amendments thereof. ; - . . " ' ■ .
*  -:/y ■ ' 1.7*,5.11. The Contractor:must assist individuals to manage their
•:y- y, benefits through. Medicare and Medicaid, or any, other
yy y .'.y.' \ benefits'for which iri.dividuals may qualify.,
y ■* . .1-8- Staffing ,

1.8.1. The .Contractor must recruit and retain qualified individuals, in ■
,  accordance withlNH ifikdminislrative\Rule"He-M;1002 and/or He-P ,

.  ■ 8'14, and for" the staffing needs;.specified herein f Contractbr ,/■
^Personnel"), and as otherwise necessary to fulfill the requirernents
described herein. The.,Contractor shali.ensure;. ■ , .

1:8.1.1: ■ All Contractor Persdhnel provided , are erhployees or
■  , consultants of the Contractor.

1.8.1.2. No Contractor Personnel are employees of the State of
■  New Hampshire. ' ♦

1.8.2. The'Contractor agrees that one (1) full-time equivalent (PTE) is
equal to one (1) full-time employee who works forty (40) hours per

•- week. .

1.8.3. ■ The Contractor must provide staff as indicated in Table 1 below as
the Contractor Personnel, which outlines the PTE allocation limits
for the staffing* model for one (1) community-based residence. The .

. y Contractor agrees to mqdify.staffing allocations, approved by the
'  Department, as follows: r- : . -

y'44V •rV-; ^ •. RFP-2023-DE
■ ' ^ NFI North, ln<

.  i. i ' I. (■ ■'•••> ' ' ■
-2023-DBH-05-SUPPO-01 ' . ' • 6-2.0;- .■ . ' .... .Cpnlfadorlnitials

fd
■  ,0 . -V y y • .; -y 5/23/2023

Inc. • i . t :pago,14,of25 i \ Palo ^

vy y-' vy- , y - ■ v-y .' 'y ' y-:/-
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I ^

Supported Housing for Adults Transitioning To or From.Glencliff Home
EXHIBIT B

"  ''I.e.3.1. -The location iof the, remaining-, comniunity-based
residences and thesbility to achieve economies of scale;

^  ' and . .

1.8,3.2. Residence(s), mustWly be staffed to-meet the level of
'  need required, by residents per individualized service

below. >'

Table 1.

Position Title FTE Allocations

Direct Service Staff ' - .

.  t ■■ . -v • : ■'
'Clinical Care Coordinator. t.OO . , : . . .0;

■ ■ , f^egistered Nurse (RN) . ' ' 2.00 . ■■ ■

Licensed Nurse Assistant (LNA) , 8-.p0

Direct Care Supervisor 4\00
' 7* ' » Direct Care Counselors , . .16.00 V ■ - - :

Relief-Staff- Direct Care Counselor 2,00. .

' 7 ■ • '■ ■ Administrative Staff 1 ^  -1 ' ^ '

IV* < r, • "
•' , • < ' .'v-p' . , •Regional Director^

' A;;; : Program Director - ' ' r.OQ. ,

a;.;■ - ■ Assistant;Prdgrarfi Directbr ; ' 2.00 ■ ■ '

'.V ■> Clinical Director- =. '■ ; '■20 ^ '

V  '• t .

. K

1.8.4.

1-.8.5.

. -RFP.2023-OaH-05-SUPPO-01 ■. '
■ . ' ^ . ■ I.. " •

:  /N^l.North,-lnc.

The Contractor must ensure the Clinical Care Coordinator oversees
the clinical operations of the program by providing: ' ^ ■
1.8.4.1. . Clinical", supervision of staff, and supervising, .the

program's.clinicians; and , .

1.8.4.2. ■ Individual and group treatment services to program
participants;

the Contractor must ensure the'RNs:

1.8.5.1, Work, closely with the Clinical Coordinator to ensure
individuals' ' medical and psychiatric needs are

r. . addressed; are •

Are'^'available on-site during.days and weekends; and/or
are on-call as needed to meet clinical needs, ^ds '

,B-2.0.,
'■ •- •' ;

, ,, V ■

1.8.5.2.

' .  ' - 'donlracrbrlnilials
.  . . .

-  •; 5/23/202

'.r

3
_ . ^ ; ,•> v'-^ . , • t ""

.  " - ' * y. -/' ''

■" •• ' h-v' ' . 'A
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•  f New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services - '
" Supported Housing for Adults Transitioning To or From Glencliff Home

EXHIBIT 8 V

1.8.6.

1.8.7.

1.8.8.

i..'

:) ■

S-.-

The Contractor must ensure the LNAs:

T:8:6.1. Work under the supervision of the RNs; and

1.8.6;2. ^ Provide support'.forjndlvidu.als'lADLs and ADLs: ,

The Contractor must ensure -the Direct Care Supervisors;

1.8.7.1.\ Supervise the operations at the established community-
'  based residence(s); . .

Wprk closejy with the entire management teanri to ensure
the integration of care; and -

Work" on-site while residents are at home in the

residence, and provid.e supervision to Direct Care
•Counselors.

1.8.7:2.

1.8.7.3.
■ r.'f

n:8:8;3:

■'T.i3.8.5:

The Contractor must ensure that Direct Care Counselors are on

duty during the evening hours and awake Direct Care Counselors
are on duty during the third shift. The Contractor must ensure the
Direct Care Counselors;" ^

1.8.8.1. .Support individuals.frdm a v/hoie person perspective;

.1.8.8.2..;.,. Assist with developing lADLs, ADLs", and other various-
^vocational activi'ties;., ■ • ,

Assist individuafs'-with ..achieving goals identified within'
their treatment plan;" •

Assisliridividuals-.v^th their appointments; and

Provide support.^ •employment and vocational se/vices
•  ' that encourage participant choice and preference.

1.8.9. . The Contractor must-ensure the Relief Staff provide coverage for
holidays, vacations, and sick .time when there is'a heed to cover a '

■' ' shift due to a Direct Care Counselor's absence.' .

'1.8.10. The Cohtractormust':erisurethe Regional'Director: > • ^ :
'  1.8:10.1." Oversees the Supported Housing Services program in

.  New Hampshire;

Actively works to identify and implement four . (4)
community-based residences; and

Provides supervision' and, support to the Program
Director{s) at each community-based residence;

T:8.1T.The Contractor.must ensure the Program Director:

T.8.10.2.

1.8.10.3.

t' r V. •.-RFP-2023-p_BH-()fSOPPp-01 • •• •
-..r^'NFINohh.-Inc! T'age-16o(2'5: ' "

■  V • •"m "'''V' ' " ■' f'- ■ • ••■ •

•OS

■  ''p
-  '•'. vConlfactoflnilials

T . ' 5/23/2023
Dale. •

'  - i J
v.:'-,.;, .

.1 '
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.  -. New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services • -
, Supported Housing for Adults Tfansitioning To oriBfom Glencliff Home

EXHIBIT B

1.8.16.1. An on-call schedule that'includes management, nursing
and licensed clinicians; " ■

1.8.16.2... Psychiatric coverage when Contractor's psychiatrists are
not on site; arid

1.8.16.3.. Ready access to regional and executive leadership.

1.9. 'Confidential Data *

.. ... .. . .. . ed
.'V; • RPP*?023-OBH-O^SUPPO-01 i - • '■ 8-2:0/- , ■ ■ Contractor inllisis

. • '.1- • . .•'■-r ■ .. .. ■ ' . 5/23/2023, .^.NFlNonh, Inc. . --r- . Pa9p17of 25 • " . .\t . ■ Dato''- ■

1 » ► . r •' , * •. , •> / -

N*' -' ,' -' ^ ">1 • '."r--.;"' *. . ,v. r" /."'t

v.-<

••• ■'* 1 •
f''

'  ' i.8.11._1. . ^ Provides the overall'idailyipperatiori and oversight of-the
-  Supported Housing SeTvices' program; at. a Ideal ■

. community-based-'residence;,
■  '1.8.-11}2, " Coordinates the iadmlnlstrative ^team, .including the.

heads'bfthethreepjiprpgranh service components; and
, '1 ;8.T1.3; • Ensures jorogram integrity and resources necessary for . *

^  • ongoing success. ^ •' . " , '
1.8.12. The Contractor must.ensure the Assistant Program Director:' ■ -- ■

.1.8.12.1. .Provides administrative and rnanagerial'support-to'the
■PrograMDirector; ,

;  " ,'1.8.12.2. ■'Oversees-the resiidential ilife'services,cprnponent of the'
_  " program; and '

1.8.12,3. . Provides support arid supervision within the supported
'  employment and vocational services component of the

program.- " ... ■ , " ' '

1.8.13. The Cprilractor must ensure the Clinical Director: ' '

.  1.8.13.1. ; Oversees the .clinical work within the supported housing
•  service array; and;

:  : .■ .;1.8;13';2. ■ Prdvides"supporltp'theCliriicarCd6rdinator{s).
■  1.8.1.4;. 'in addition to the siaffihg moderdescrlbed in.tabie i arid

■  Subsections: 1.8,4. through 1..8.13., the Contractor must ensure that ■ ,
:  a I.OO-F.TE Peer Support Specialist is available to work across the'.,-,

.- .programs:';. . 'V- ■

'1.8.15. The Contractor must ensUre.ail background checks are conducted
•in compliance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M

^  " 403.07. : ' ' ■
'  - . 1.8.16. The Contractor rnust:ensure its on-calf,services are avai|able.24

•;". .'hours per day/,365, days per year',,or'as clinically indicated, and ,
•  include, but are not limited to: - " , . ' •

r>' ■'t
i \
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EXHIBITfi

1.9.1. ■ The Contractor-must meet.alliinforrnation-security and privacy
■  requirements as set by .the:D)epartment and in accordance with the

Department's Exhibit E, DHHS information Security Requirements.

.1.9.2.. :• The Contractor must ensureany staff and/oryoiunteers involvedjn
-  - •delivering services through theicontract sign an attestation agreeing
:  -. 'to access, view.^store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance

with federal and state laws and regulations and the Department's -
'Exhibit E. The Contractor .must ensure said individuals have a ,

'. , justifiable business heed to.access confidential data. The
■  ■ Contractor must provide attestations upon Department request. ,

1.9.3.r Upon,request, the Contractor must ajlow and assisl.the State in
'conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its ■
system(s)/application(s)/web pdrtal(s)/web'site{s) or State

^  ' ' syslem(s)/application(s)/web pqftal{s)/website(s) hosted by the
■ selected Vendor(s) if;Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is
. collected, used, accessed, shafed, or stored. To conduct the PIA

:  . . 'the Contra'ctor rhust provide the State access to applicable systems
.and documentation sufficient to allow the State to assess, at

V^ , ,. , ■ minimum, the following:- > . •

•• • ^ ' I.9.3.V. ' How. Pil is gathered-and stored;
'■ , -.1.9.3,2. Who wiirhaye access to.PII;;

V  . " . ' ■ . i ;9.3.3. How Pll will be used in Ihe'syslem;
.  ■.1!913;4. ; HowJndividual.-consent.'Will be achieved and revoked;

■ ^and^ .

* * .

1.9.3.5. ' Privacy practices'. .^; - v '
1.9.4. The Department hiay conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are

. ^ ■ either significant process changes or new technologies impacting
.  ' the collection,'prdcessing or storage-of Pll.

■  1.10. State Owned Devices. Systems and Network-Usage ' ■ " ; •
1.10.1. . If Contractor End Users are authorized by the Department's .

-  ■ Information Security Office to use a Department issued device (e.g.
computer; tablet, mobile telephone) or access the State network in ■

.r the fulfilrnent.of this Agreement, the selected Vendor must:

1.10.1.1: Sign and abide by applicable" Department and New
,j Hampshire Department of Information Technology (NH

^  DolT) use agreements, policies, standards, procedures
'  . ,:and guidelines; and cbrnplete,;applicable..trainings as.

. , required;' .
Oft

. . .'i ■-! A.'" ■ ■
RFP.-2O23:D0H-O5-SUPPO:bV; ' B-2.0 T''V • •' 'ConlfaclorlnUials,C--..- .'^T-pk RFP.-2O23-D0H-O5-SUPPO:O1 , - .v-' 0-2.0 ^ i., -•.Conlraclor Inli

.  ... - v'. Inc. .v . Pa^:ieof 25 ' '
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- i N^w, Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
■  '-Supported Housing for Adults Transltloning To or Frorh Glencliff.Home ,

EXHIBIT B

i 1 Use the informatidh that they have permission to access
solely for conducting .official Department business and.

■ agree that all other use or access is strictly forbidden
includihg'. but not limited, to personal of other private and

.  - . . non-Department use*, and that at no tirne shall they'
• access or attempt to access information without having

.. . , the express authority of the Department to do so;

1.10..1.3, ■ Notaccessor attempt to access information In a manner
-ihconastent with the approved, -policies, procedures,

, . and/or agreement relating to system entry/access;.

.\-l.10,1.4, Not-copy. share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse
'  engineer,, rent, of,sell software licensed, developed, or

•  being evaluated by the" Department, and at all'times
■ must use utmost.care to protect and keep such software
strictly confidehtiaMn accordance with the license or any
other agreement executed by the Department;

,1.10.1.5. Only ■ use equipment,' software, or subscription(s)
authorized by the' Department's Information Security^
Office or designee; -

'1.10,1,6. ■ Not install non-standard software on any Department-
■  ■ equipment unless , authorized . by the Department's

;• Infonmatioh-Security Office.ordesignee';

'1.10.1,7.-, Agree that eniaif and other-electronic conimunication
messages created, sent, and received on a Department-

:  ■ i'ssu'ed email system, are^he property of'the Department
••' v.- ^.pfNew'lHampshireand'to be used for business purposes

,  ■ " only: Email is defined as "^internal email systems" of
"Department-funded email systems." /

I.IO.I'.e. Agree that use of email'must"follow Department arid NH
' - > ^ DolT policies; standards, and/or guidelines; and

i.10,1.9.- Agree when utilizing the Department's email system: ■

'  /. M.10.1.9.1. . To pnly use a Department email address
assigned ' to them with a

■  affiliate.D.HHS.NH'.Gov".

1.10.1.9.2. Include in the signature" lines information
identifying the End User as a non-
Department workforce member; and

1.10.-1.9!3.' Erisure the following confidentiality notice
is embedded . underneath the .signgigture

t.,' V.

'line:

,  '' " RFR.2023-68H-05

'  it '■ ,NFl-Noith, Inc.- '

■i:.* •-

RF-p"-2023-68H-05-SUPPO-01 •,.B-2.0 -o ' ' ' '• * ' Cofilraclorlnilials.
- , ■ , , v- ■ . 5/23/2023 .

Pa9e19of25 -,V V --Dato •



OocuSign Envelope ID: E095FFOJ-D5B24AEB-AE38-O770FE52CFAC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services'
Supported Housing for Adults Trahsitioning To or From Glencllff Home

EXHIBIT B

-  CGNFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: "This message
■  ' ■ ' may contain .information that Is privilege^ and

• confidential and .Is intended only for the use of
the indlvidual(s) to whom it is addressed. If

>  y.ou receive this message in error, please '
.  * . ■ " ■ ■ notify the sender immediately and delete this

•  electronic'message and any attachments

'  ' ' • . ' froni your system. Thank you for your
cooijeration." -

1.10.2. Coritractor End Users with a Departrnenf issued email, access or
^ \ ■ ■ potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a workspace in a

.  Department building/fadlily," must:

■  ' u, 1.10.2.1. Complete the Department's Annual Information Security
Compliance Awareness Training prior'to accessing,-

.. viewing, handling, hearing, or transmitting Department
i:- _ ' Data or Confidential Data.

'  1.10.2.2. Sign the Department's Business Use and Confidentiality
~  ' Agreement and Asset Use Agreement, and the NH Doll

•  ■ . Department wide Computer, Use Agreement ■ upon
.  ■ . ■ ■ execution of the Contract and annually throughout the-

Contract'term.

' ';:1.■10.2:3. , Agree End User's will only access the" Department'
•  ■ intranet' to view -the Department's Policies and

'  - Procedures and Infonriation Security webpages.
■ 1.10.2.4.. Agree, if any End User is found to be in violation of any

;  • ; i . of the, above-Departrnent terms and conditions of the-
'■ Contract, said End User may face removal from the

Contract, and/or criminal and/or civil prosecution, if the •
act constitutes ai violation,of law.

'1.10*2.5. Agrees to notify the .Slate a,minimum of .three business
■ - •• days prior to any upcprning transfers or.terminations of ;

End Users who possess State credentials and/or badges
or who, have system privileges. If End Users who
possess State credentials and/or badges or who have

■  system privileges resign, or are dismissed without
^  advance notice, the Contractor, agrees to notify the

State's ' Inforrnation Security Office or designee
immediately.

1.10.3. Workspace Requirement. ,

•s ^

'  . NFI North. Inc.: •

B-2.0, , '.  RFP.T2023eBH-05-SUPPO:01 : ;'V-" ^

• I--"-": '-rPa9e20of25.

Contrsctor Initials

5/23/2023
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,  . .New Hampshire Department of Health and Human'Seryices " .
Supported Housing for Adults TransitiohirQTiO or Fromdenciiff Home

•  .EXHIBJTB '

1:10.3.1! If'applicable„vithe jState (will work with .Contractor to.
•  ■ determine ■-ineqiairemerits 3or t:providing necessary

workspaceahdiSlateiequipmentifor its End Users. .

t  ■

y

-• 1.11. The, Contractor must participate mTneetings withlhe'Departnienl on a monthly '
• basis, or as otherwise requeste'dibylheBepartment, to review:-
'  1.11. .The admission and/of;dischaTge activities; 'V

1.-11.2." Individualized service and transition plans;(where applicable), for '
each resident; and

1.11.3.- Programmatic opportunities arid challenges.
1.12. The Contractor must participate Jn :on-site reviews conducted by the

Department on an annual basis, onas otherwise requested by,the Department.
1..13. Reporting '

1.13.1. The Contractor'must submit all required data elements to the
Department's Phoenix system,^ •

'  1i'13r2. The Contractor rhust submit individual clierit-level demographic arid '
.  . encounter data, which must be-.submitted to"the Department's

Phoenix system utilizing the Contractor's Electronic Health Record
■  (EHR) system .within six (6) rrioriths of contract effective date. The ■
..Contractor must ensure:.

'1;13.2.1..' .All 'data\'is submitted on the--formal, content, "'
■  . . ■ " completeness; frequency, method' -and timeliness as.

-  ■ •: . • specified by the Department; and .
..-1.13.2.2. ^Air.client data.iricludes-a Medicaid'ID'number for clients

-who.are enrolled in.Medicaid, and where .applicable,
.  previously enrolled In Medicaid. and .historical Medicaid

■"' ID number is available.

1.13.2.3. Data elements include, but are not limited to:

.■1.13.2.3.1.. Number of beds occupied within the
, reporting period. •

1.13.2.3.2. Insurance carrier of individual.

1.13.2.3.3. Referral source (e.g., Glenciiff Home,
.  .NHH, CMHPs. DRFs).

1.13.2.3.4. Number of unique individuals served.

1.13.2.3.5. ■ Services-provided.

■i " . .1.13.2.3.6. Location where'services were provided. ■
—OS

P9 ■' ,
••■•'RFP-2023-DBH-05-SUPP0^1 - ' •;-B:2.0- • • " • - „ , ;.Contr8Clor Inillals

.  . ■ • ' ^ ! P3B0 21,0f25, . - ' Date- ' ' .•NFI Nprlh; Inc.

, i'-
-if
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,  New Hampshire Department-oif Health and Human Services - ' ,
'Supported Housing for Adults Transltioning To-or.From Glencliff Home

EXHIBIT B ■

.5

"f:

'. - .i' ... ''l-.'!-'

•  -l.-13;2:3.7/ ' Length- -of time service or- services
■/ . provided. . . .

,  1.13.2.3'8.; Diversionsfrdm hospital stays.
'  1.13.2.3.9. Thirty day:hospital readmisslon rales.

1.13.2.3..10. Client-ilegat-tstatus if individual is under
courk)rdered " treatment or involved'in
criminal justice system.

■  ' ' frl

.T.I3.2:3.11: Client,employment status.
'■ 1.|3.-2.;3.12. Client substance use disorder diagnose(s).

'  ' - 1.13.2.3.13. Clientihousing status upon discharge.
■  • 1.13.2.3.14, •dijent smoking ^ ■

;;; . 1.13.2.3:15. Nurriber of transitions that are supported .
■  into other independent living situations.

1.13,2.3.16. .Submitting to the Department data needed
to comply with federal reporting'

•  - requirements.

1.13.3. The Contractor must'ensure quality assurance by cooperating in
;  performance reviews and utilizationVeviews determined fo be
j  necessary arid appropriate by the Departmerit based on the. '

,  . Contractor's applicable licerising and certifications and allowable
service provisions, within tihneframes specified by the Department,
in'order to ensure the efficient and effective administration of the

■  prograrii, including, but not limited to: . • '
■' 1.13.3.1. Mairitaining'detailed client records. '.

'  . 1.13.3.2. Regular meetings to review submitted quarterly reports
T  • ' . to identify ongoing'prograrnmatic improvements.

■  T , : , 1.13.3.3. 'Annual reviews of the, effectiveness of services as .
'  measured by. "the' Adult Needs and- Strengths

Assessment (ANSA), or other approved Evidence-,
Based.assessment.

1:13.3.4. Evaluation of individual service encounter data
submitted through- the Department's Phoenix reporting
system,,to inform care monitoring and ongoing agency-

'  ,, wide quality service monitoring.
;  , 1,-13.3.5.1 Submission of monthly Balance Sheet and Profit and,

'  ■ . " . r . Loss. Statements- tO' .the'"Department .for ongoing -
.. . ■' evaluation,of the programs fiscal integrity. '

, ^ ■ , r ;■ ■ '■■ ■ 'v.:,. - ' \ pd
^  - -T' RFP-2023-D8H-0&-SUPP6-oT B-lO . T ' " Contractor Inillals-^

•  ,.;i ' V. \ . '5/23/2023
NFINorthjoc; ■ - Page 22.of 25 \v.- " Dale
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• f.' -^ New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Service's ;
.  Supported Housing for Adults Transitioning To or From Glencliff Home

'  - • - EXHIBIT B
■!.

,  ̂ v; -71.13.3.6. -Engagement in financial and . programmatic'audits to
ensure fiscal integrity is maintained and programming Is.

1. {■ ' meeting the needs^ofjndividuals served.
1713.4. the Contractor may be required'to provide other key data and metrics

;  • to the Departmenfin a format'specified by the Department.
1.14. Perforrnance Measures - ... .

T.14. i. The Department will moriitor Contractor performance by reviewing the
,, deliverables as described in Section 1.13.

2. Exhibits Incorporated
.2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health, Information in

■ ■■-. compliance with the Standards for.Pnvacy of Individually Identifiable'Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (4'5 CFR Parts* 160 and 164}"under the Health

■ ■ Insurance Portability and .Accountability. Act (HIPAA) of .1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit D, Business Associate Agreement, which

.  has been executed by the parties. o

•  -2,2. The Contractor must manage all.confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit E, DHHS Information Security'

'Requirerriehts. • "t: ?
M - ';2.3. The, Contractor must comply With'Exhibits D'and ,E^ which are attached..hereto "■

.  I and incorporated by reference herein. :*• ' ' ' J-

-  3., Additional Terms ' . -
,  .'X: r ; 3"T.' Impacts.ResuItihg from Court Orders or Legislative Changes- ' ^
■  '-vV- . •, , . '3:1.1. ' .The Contractor.agrees that, to the extent future state or federal.
X  ■ ' legisla'tjph or court-orders^ may .have, an impact on the" Services . ^

.  ' described herein, the State has the right to modify Service, priorities
'  , ' - and expenditure requiremehts under this Agreement so as to achieve

r  ' -compliancetherewith. •• ^ '• ' • '
.  J. L ; . ' . . 7 .. . . .

■  3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws.-Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically ,
Appropriate Programs and Services '

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective. Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services -to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing

'  ' loss; individuals who are blind or have tow vision;.and individuals who
,  have speech challenges-..' : , ; ■ - ,

'  - .1 , -;3.3. Credits and C.ojayright Ownership -C . t- , '
'  , ' , '3.3.1.■ , -All documents, notices, press relea^ses, research reports afjid~3her

i?-. .;,-, '7 : ' ■ • ;.■ ■■ ■ .r, ■ . \ .-v ■ [ I'V
•  ■ RFPt2023-OBH^5-S,UPPO^1- " B-2.0V Contractor tnitials S—

X- ' 'X v, - 'y - -.smnoij; ' 4-.
' NFt North, Inc. - ' f , ■ \ •'Page 23of 25. ' . ".7 Oate'_ , .-'7* •• ' ■ '*r« norm, inc. • t • '•age ^.>01 £3- *. - f, j •

;:-vX^XX''7;r''X * '^. 'X- XX.- ; , /■ -X'^^Xv.T'
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. ),r,: ̂  " New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services" ;

.  /Supported Housing for Adults Transitioning to or From Glencliff Home
-  EXHIBITB

V - - ■■'■-materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
■  ' services oftheAgreement must include the following statement, "The

.prepa'fation of this (fepbrf, document etc.) was financed, under an,
,  Contract with the State of New Hampshire. Department ofHealth and

.  . Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
7. . ,. * .- .v: ': - Hampshire and/or such other fundirig.sources as were available or

.  ' required, e.g.-, the United States Departrnent of Health and Human
.  v ■ . Services." ■ .

3.3.2. All materials produced 0/purchased urider the Agreemient must have
- prior approval frorri the .Depar^'ent before, printing, production,-

distribution or use;

-  , .3!3.3. .The Department must/etain copyright ownership for any and all
'j ■ ; .original materials produced, including, but hot iimited to:-

■- . ' ; 3.3.3.1., , Brochures.
3.3.3.2/ Resource directories. :

3.'3.3.3. Protocols drguldelines.
,  /':;r ' '3^3.3.4. , Posters.

3:3.3.'5.' .Reports.'^

'  T - 3.3.4. 'The Contractor must not reproduce any materials'produced under the
Agreement without-prior written approval from the Department.

** 3.4.. Operation of Facilities: Cornpliance with Laws and Regulations
3.4.1. .: In the operation Of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor.

'7 . ' - - ■: , niust cornply"with-all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
■  ' / • county and.municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public

'• ■ Officer or'officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
' ■ _ duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or

•  ' - the provision .of the services at such facility. If any governmehtar
a;. ^ ■ license'or permit must beYequired for the operation of the said facility

"V • . / or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will, procure .
,  said license of permit,.and will at.all 'times comply with the terms and

conditions of each such license, or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of'this Agreement the faciljties must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance .with local building and zoning codes, by-laws, and
regulations. . , ' , ■ .

4. Records . ' -

:  \ '. 4.1. "The Contractor must keep recdrds that include, but are not limited to: r"" • .
■ ^ ^ ■.■v -7 . 'X; ;■" ■■ ■

RFP-2023-D8H-0&-SUPPO-01 " " ■ •*'8-2.0 - Comrectof Initials
-r-'} .•'•i:.'':;. , • -7/. ■ ^ ■ 7.. . ^ ■ ' - : 5/23/20237  jNFI-North. Inc; . . . J.-Pago 24 0125 Dale _J ..

' ■ • •) '''  ■' ■ '' " t ■, .■ ' a'-'". .
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i " I . . ■ ' ' . " ■ ■

'  New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services . ..
'Supported Housing for Adults Transitloning To orFrom Glehcliff Home

. EXHIBIT.B

Books, records, documents :and."plh.er electronic'or, physical data
'  . evidencing and refleclirig all costs^d other expenses incurred by the

,  Contractor in the performance^-oflhe Contract,-and all income received
•. .rf; . . oj cpjjected by the Contractor:, . ''i. ' - ^ *

\  4.1,2. All records.^mu'st be-maintained fin accordance-with accounting
. procedures and practices,-which^sufficiently and properly reflect alhsuch
costs and expenses, and which are-accepiable to the Departrrient, and
to' Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and driginal

, ^ evidence of costs such as purchaseTequisillons and orders, vouchers,

•  , ■ requisitions for materials, ihyentories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payroils,.-af:id other .records requested or required'by

..." ' ' the Department. s ■ - , ■

r -T ' '4.1.3.. Medical recbrds dn each patient/reclpiarit of services. ■

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to; the Agreement for .purposes of audit,

"  V examination, excerpts and transcripts. ,

;, . If,' upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
.  any expenses claimed by the Gontractbr as costs hereunder, the Department
;  ' ■ retains the right,.at'its.discretion, to deduct'the amount of such expenses as

are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

.y .,• i  ■RFP.2023-DBH-05-SUPP0^1 ' r " :B-2.6 -.i' ' ContractorIrtlials. . . . I " . I

:

-0$

 V '• . ■ v'.*- • , :S/23/2023
•- ■'•. ..V' ;NFI North. tfK. i .. . . i'- Rago25of25' , Date
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'.-V' ii-y^' Niew Hampshire Department bf HealthariilWiJman Services r
^ Supported Housing for Adults transifiiOTJiag'l^otor.iaBrnOBiicliff Home

EXHimrC
.  • •-*

f  . .

Pavment Terms

-  • '1: . This Agreement is funded by:,

1.1. ■ 100% General funds. L, ' ■

For the purposes of this Agreement^elD^artrnenf^hasiidentified:-

'" 2.' The Contractor as a Subrecipienl±ra^d on critena in 2 CFR.200.331.

.3. Payment shall be as follows:

3.1. Payment Tor initial costs incurred in the effort to bperalionalize'the
program under'this Agreement shall be on a cost reimbursement basis

•  in accordance with the approved ;Jine items specified in Exhibit C-1
'  ' through" no later Than mine ;(9)^'5Ti"onths of the Effective Date of the
•  Agreement, unless otherwise approved by the Department. The total of

all such payments for initial costs shall not exceed the total amount
specified in Exhibit Cri.,

3.2. No funds shall be used for the purchase of real property.

3.3. Payment, outside" of initial costs described in Section 3.1.'above, shall
be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures; incurred ,net

' r .any other revenue received lowards the. services billed in'the fulfillment
of this Agreement, and shall be in'accordance with the approved line

,  iterns, as specified in Exhibits Ct2. Budget through C-3, Budget. '■
3.3.1. ; The' Department -may recoup; payments made-under this

'  '■ f ' .Agreement, in whole or in part,Tn the event the Gpntractor fails,
;; : - to .comply with the provisions of this Agreement, in whole or irt

^  "part, and does not/emedy any such failure to the Department's
"^-satisfaction including. 'but not limite'd to commencing supported
' housing'.sen/ices within the tirneframes specified in Exhibit B,
Scope of Services.

"  '4. Non-Reirhburs'ement for Services

■  4.1. The Department shall not reimburse the Contractorfpr services provided
through This Agreement when an individual has or may have an
alternative payer for services described in the Exhibit B, Scope of Work,
including, but not limited to: ■

4.1.,1. Services covered by any insurance or third-party.payor.
4.1.2. Services covered by any Medicaid programs for individuals who

are eligible for Medicaid. •

' 4,1.3. Services covered by Medicare for'individuals who are eligible for
-  ■ " Medicare. •

r. V' ' ''fVP.^23-D8H-05-SUPPO-6r '' •C-2.0''- . ■ . . Contracioftnitlak

'0$

n:.
l  - • • - ' w... > ■- . • • 5/23/2023
,/J. NFl North, Inc. .' ^ - -• • -' .Paeo-l.ofS V. Palo • ■
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EXHIBIT C

:  4.2. The Contractor may directly bill the Department as a payer of last resort-
to access contract funds provided Thrpugh This Agreement for actual ;,

.  expenditures iricurred net any otherrevenue. received.

;  ' 4.3. . Payrnents may be withheld, .until %e Oontractor submrtS' accurate
required morith'ly and,quarterly repoTtirp., • ,

5; P'roperty Sfandafds. - ■ • ' , . > .
5.1. Insurance coverage. .

5.1/1. The Contractor shall, at a minimum, provide the equivalent
insurance coverage for real property and equipment acquired or

^  ' irnprpved with State funds as prpvidedTp property py/ned by the
Contractor. , - -

;  5.2. Real property Improvement. - . . : i , , , . ' ■

_  , 5.2.1.. Subject to.the obligations and conditions, set forth in thilsection,
■ . title to real property improved in whole or in part with State funds

under this Agreerhent- (herein -real property") will/vest upon
acquisition in the Contractor. ,

'  5.2.2. Except as otherwise provided by Stale statutes or by the.
■ , / ■ ' Department, the Contractor must use. the .real property for the

;  . • purpose originally authorized bythe State as long a6 needed for
^  - ' that purpose, during which timeThe Contractor must:

, 5.'2:2'.'1. Not dispose of or encumber its title or other interests
'  ..vyithout prior State approval.

5.2.2.2. Confirm the real property continues to be .used for the
.  . 'originally,authorized purpose., When:,real property is

-  " no longer needed for "the originally authorized '
-  ■ purpose, the Contractor must obtain. disposition

Instructions fro.m the State. The instructions must
■  ' .. provide for one of the following alternatives: ,

'  j 5.2.2.2.1. Retairijitleafter comperisating the State: ■
•  ' The amount paid to the" State will be'

'  VJ-, computed by applying the State's
percentageof participation in the costs of .
any improvements to the fair market
value of the property: However, in those

■  . ' . situations where .the Contractor is.
disposing of real property improved with
State funds and acquiring, replacement

-  , . . . real, property, prior to expiration of this
*  . - * AgTeemenl'and any amendment thereof,

.  ■ , ■ . the net'proceeds from, the disprfttion

RFP-2023:-OBH-05tSUPP(>0,1 - , • " . C-2.d " =. Comraclor Initials
■  - .1? ■ . : • •' •; V . ... w . - .

, is ■
•  *.

■■ ■ ' ■ ^ ■; -5/23/2023
■- '-. ''y NFI N(^. inc. T '"j: .■••5 • " • v % 'i/. ■Poge.2of8.- f . • Date :i'V-, . . .. ' ... • , . • ". ■ M-. 'v . •
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EXHIBIT C

,•'> . ••

•J wli ̂ Ir., Tnay be used as an offset to the cost of
'  ' the replacement property':

•5:2.2.2.2. Sell .the property and compensate the
State.'-The amount due to the State will ,
be calculated by .applying the State's
percentage of participation in'the cost of
the origifial cost of any improvernents to
the proceeds of the sale.after deduction
of any actual and reasonable selling and .
fixing-up expenses. . If the State

•  appropriation funding this Agreement or •
' any-amendment thereof has not been

closed out, the net proceeds from sale .
may be offset against the original cost of
the property.. When_ the Contractor is
'directed to sell property, sales

;  procedures must be.followed that provide.
.  for competition to the extent practicable

.  and result in the highest possible return;
■  - pr ■ :

:  . .. ■ ti- 5.2:2.2.3. Transfer , title, - to ' a • third . party
-  .' V' - designated/approved by the State. The

-Contractor, is entitled .To be paid an
•  • amount calculated by applying the

,  .State's percentage of participatioa in the
■  \ cost-pf,any improye.ments to the current -
. t-,.- - fair market Value of the property:

.  - ' ' '5.3. "Equipment; ' \ ^ .
■  - 5.3.i. 'Equipment, means, tangible personal, property (including

•  information technology systems) purchased :in whole or in part
. with State funds and that has a .useful life of more, than one XI ) .

*  \ - year and a per-unit acquisition cost which equals or exceeds
.  . ^ " $5,000.^ ,

5.3.2. ■ Subject to the obligations and conditions set forth in this section,
.  title to equipment acquired, with State funds will vest upon

acquisition in the Conlracidr subject to the foHowing conditions.
The Contractor must:

5.3.2.1. Use the equipment for the authorized purposes of the
.  • project during the-period of performance, or until'the

i  A ' ■ . .' property is no longer needed for the purpqses^pf the
*  •' " project. . - •

; X f'P
I'f" RFP-2023-bBH-0$-SUPP0^1 , ^.2.0 Contractor INtials ■

• • • • • ' ' •5/23/2023'
•  /NFI Nomi. Jtic; - . •' ".'-PageSbfe., .. . , . Date
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■  EXHIBIT C ■

i' . . , ■ . , 5.3.2.2.. Not encumber.thefproperty without approval of the^ "
•  ' ' . .State.' V ' ' •

.  '.v.. 'i \ ^ - > • • • -
•  7 .V, ■ * 5-3.2.3., Use andidispose^ofithe property in accordance, with

.  ;V; ~ . /Paragraph 6.2., 'Paragraph 6,2.1. and Paragraph
.' ■ , ■ '6.3.5,

,  ■ . .,5.3;3.. Use. ..' ' - ; V. •

'■ 5.3.3.1^ Equipment must ;be used by the Contractor in the
.  program or project for. which it was acquired as long

•  as needed, whether or not the project or program ■
•  . Tcontmues. to" be-eupported by State funds, and the'

Conlractof must not encumber the.property, without/ .
^  prior approval.of the State. When'no longer needed

for the' original.-prpgfam or project, the -equipment
■' may be used in other activities funded by tITe State.

'  . ' ■5.3.3.2, During the time that equipment is used on the project
- vj ' or program for which it was acquired, the Contractor

'  , must also make equipmertt available for use on other
^  ' ■ projects', 'pr programs currently or previously

supported by the State, provided that, such use will
/  .I ' not interfere with-the work on the projects or program •

forwhlch' .ltwas.priginally acquired. First preference-
'  for other .use-mlust be given to other progranis-or

■  ' v: _ "'projePts supported by the'State that 'finariced the
'  •equipment. Use,for nbri.-State-funded programs or

'  . ■■■ ' .projects is also permissible with approval from the.
:  " -.■.."State^ ■

'5.3.3.3. -When acquiring'- replacement equipment, • the
.  , ' • Contractor may'use the equipment to be replaced as .

'  a, trade-in or .sell.'the property and use the proceeds • ;
to'offset thp cost of the replacement property.

•  '5.3.4- Management' requirements. ' Procedures for. managing
■  ■ ■ ■ equipment (including ' replacement equipment), whether

acquired in whole or in part with State funding, ■until disposition
takes place will, as a minimurn, meet the following requirements:
5.3.4.1. Property records must be maintained that include a

description of the property, a serial number or other
identification number, the source of funding for the
property,- who holds title, the acquisition date, and
cost of the property, percentage of State-participation
in the project costs for the Agreement under which ■

^the property was'acquired, the location, u^oand-

i . 7:'- ■- , ■
■eFP.2023-DBH:05.SUPPp^i; ' : '■ C-2.0 •! - ConJraclorInJtiais'

7

-4: : . ,

.  NFI North, loc! -

f' ' ' 77 ] ' •
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^  * - EXHiBIT C

condition of theproperty, and any ultimate disposition
data including the4ale;of disposal and sale price, of

;> ' theproperty." ^
, 5.3.4.2. . A physical -ifwentoryoT: the properly must be taken

_  ' - ~ • ' and,the resultS''reconciled with the property records
,  V. , at least once5eye^.two.(2) years.

r  ;; 5.3.4.3. -. A control system'must be developed to ensure
'  \ adequate safeguards; to prevent loss, damage, or

theft of the property .'.Any loss, damage, or theft must
be investigated../ ;

5.3.4.4. Adequate maintenance ' procedures must be
developed to keeptthe property in.good condition..

.  .V .'I . . _ . • . ,

5.3-.4.5. If the Contractor-is authorized or required-to sell the
property, proper sales procedures must ■ be
established to ensure the highest possible return.

5.3.5.. Disposition. yVhen .original or replacement equipment acquired
•with State funds is np longer needed for the original project or
program or for other activities currently or previously supported'
by the State, except as "otherwise provided by State statutes or

.  in..,this Agreement, .the Contractor must request disposition'
■  ' instructions,from the.State, Disppsition'.pf the equipment will.be'
v'made.as follows: •

. v'

1- .. .%

-  ,5.3;5.1. ; Items of equipment vyith a current per unit fair market
. value'Of i$.5;000 or lesis may be ret'airied,. sold; or .

'' ; -.otherwise disposed.'df with ho further obligation to ttie ;
-  '. ■; istate: "" . . .

5:3.,5,2. Item's of equipment with a current per-unit fair-market
' , , ; value in excess of $5,000 may be retained by the -

'  Contractor or sold, the State is entitled to an amount
.  .calculated by.multiplying the current market-valueor- .

... ' i '■ ' • proceeds from .sale by the State's percentage of
participation in ,the cost of the original purchase. If the
.equipment is sold, the State may permit ' the
Contractor to deduct and retain from the State's
share $500 or ten'(10) percent-of 'the proceeds,

,  " whichever is Jess, for its selling- -and handling
expenses. ,

5.3.5.3. ■ The Contractor may transfer title to the property to an
eligible third party provided that, in such cases, the
Contractor must be entitled to compensation for its

:V/- . v,
;  r RFP-2023-D8H-0S-SUPPO-O1- . , . ; -C-2.d Conlracldr tnit'lals - .

.  v.-^ ;5/23/2023:''
;'NFI North,'Inc.; '' -C. ^ ~ -■ -Date '

'• A.'^ ' ■■ ■ , • ' ' • • • ^



OocuSign Envelope ID: E095FFD3-D582-4AEB-AE38-D770FE52CFAC i

■  ■ New Hampshire.Department of Health and Human Services/
.' Supported Housing for Adults Transltioning To or From Glencliff Home •

EXHIBIT C ' V '

.  » - • 4' ' .

. attributable percentage of the current fair market .
\  ' . value of-the. property., ■. ?

■  ■. ' 5.3.5.4. In cases where the Contractor" fails to take .
"  appropriate disposition actions, the State may direct -

■  the.Contractor to take disposition actions.
-0; .Property Relationship and Liens , • " . " *

'  , . 6.1. Real property, equipment, and intangible property, that are-acquired or
-  improved with State, funds must be maintained and preserved in good

■  . i. order by the Contractor for the beneficiaries of the project or program
under which the property was acquired or improved. The S.tate may

'  .. require the Contractor to record lien's or other ■appropriate notices of-
'  record to indicate-that personairoV real property has been;acquired or-.,

improved with 'state funds and that use and disposition conditions apply,
to the property.

7. The Contractor shall submit an invoice wi'th -supporting documentation to the
'  . Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following

the mpnth in which the services were provided.' ,The Contractor shall ensure
^ . each invoice: - • '

.  7.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Numbej .issued upon,registering'With .
.  , 'V'';. New Hampshire pepartrrient of Administrative Services.

!  ̂ . 7.2-: Is submitted in a form that is provided l?y or otherwise acceptable to the
Deparime.ht. -m'

• 7.3;, Identifies and requests paymerit.'fpr- ayowable/costs incurred in the
;  ■ previous month. ■ ~ ■

7.4. ■" Includes supporting documentation of .allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records, - '

.  receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.
7.5! . Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with .the supporting ^ ■

.  documentation for allowable experi^ses to initiate payment, - ■
*■ 7.6.' ' Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,

and is emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:.
Financial Manager-

.,v . Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301 ■ . ./

8. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
• • • of receipt of. each invoice and supporting- documentation for authorized

■  expenses, subsequent to approval of the .submitted invoice.

•  • RFP-aoaa-OBH^&^UPPO-OI ■■9.C-2.0 • ConlfaclOftniHals •
■  -■ • 5/23/2023

a-
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EXHIBIT C

-9..: ,The final invoice'and supporting documentation for authorized expenses\shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract

■ completioii date specified ]n Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 '
^Completion Dale. ' ' ■

,  10. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the Genera! Provisions Form P-37, changes
,  ' limited to adjusting arnounts within the-.price limitation and adjusting

encumbrances behveen State Fiscal Years.and budget class lines'through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without,
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. , -

"it. Audits ,

■11.1. The Contractor must email an anriual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
- _ any of the following conditions exist: ' '

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
•  • • federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part

.200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirerhents of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining tp-charitable

. organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.
11.1.3. Condition C - The. Contractor is a public company and required

by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit ah annual financial audit.

11.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor,
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

11.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by^n independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year. ,

11.4. Iri addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
'  Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the

.  Contractor shall be held liable-for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return, to the Department all payments made un eter°«the

pp .

k,'

I* - . i'4

-

' . V..

11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant.(CPA) to.

'  dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov -within' - 120.,days after the close of'-the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements

' of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart • F of the Uniform Administrative. -
. Requirements. Cost Principles, and" Audit Requirements for Federal

awards. ' ' " •
. ..i-

.'/ •

.RFP72023-DBH-05-SUPPO-01 •• . . C-2.0 ' ■ • ' ' Contractor Initials
. .- 'K-.,. • - v'. - / 5/23/2023 v -v

NFI North. Inc.- . • .PageyolB • • Date
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*  ••

Agreement to which exception :has been taken, or which have been

, '(

•  i : i '

:  -i.

'  . V

- RFP-2023-OBH-05-SUPPO-01
1  ■" - '• -

'  NFlNortn. Int. ' • . -i "

• C-2.0.-
»s ■

?  f!? -
.ContrsclorinlialS'

■V,:Pa9e8o(6' , 1 Oa^;. • ■ 5/23/2023

t.s:j

* '■* ' ''''ret' ■■■ . • ••• •• - .
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'  •■

, " - • '• ■■■" " *
_ Contractor Name;

'  • New Ham|»hlre ^^rtment'of Head end Human Services ,

NFlt^h.lnc. ' . • ■ r.. . - " .^V". -•
*;" ■-> ! Budflet RoquMl for: Supported WooS'ng'i^oc/r S^OodProffroms; ' ' " ' .

Budget Period SPy2023
i'\' ■* indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0-00%

■  L . ' . - .

• , t

.  ' Line Item -  Program Cost'Funded by OHMS
,  • . , , j. ■

1. Selarv&Waoes • S95.o6o I  ' •
V ' .

2. ■ Frinoe Benefits 1  ' ' • ■ ' ..V $25,650

:  ' ' 3.' Staff Recruitmml •  ■ ; $16,000 •

, .'M ;
f

'  *''-u • • !
V^* . -

4.,'- Equipment
l^irect cost rate cannot be eppiied'io
equipment ^Is per 2 CFR 200.1 end
Aooendtx IV to 2 CFR 200. .  • • ' •** . -

'

.  $736,000

.  . .r,. ' " 1: ' ■ * . ,
-  ̂ —

•'' ' X 5
S. .Supplies

• * • r - , . $72,000 '

/ y* .♦ ' '.i\ ,  .. . . ~..r , —

J  'I'. j J , 6. ' "Tmvel ' > '  ' ■ w
^v- ' ':.r ;» ^ , *T> • r ' -  " . -V • . . • • . • iS, . .

7; . Facility-. -■ • $0
' T' -  - - ■ • . . - - t;. , •

6. Capital Costs
7  "i ' ' ) • • ' . . - . $0

•  •• O.'Other • (soecifv bekw) -  ; ;v ... -■ ' -
•- -.,"1 - . ■>

V lOfAer (Tiouse/iofd fumitum and
iuoofres) • '

-•••; ■ •7' s^.ooo

-' 1 ■ - Other foteasasoedM
■  t-. '

'

$6

.

Total Direct Costs • - $1,169,650

"
.  . .

-

-i'. ■ '* Totallndlrect Costs .  -SO

'l , • TOTAL $1,169,650

^—e*

.  [to
Contractor Initlaft >

■  " - Page i of i ;5/2J/202J
Oate'^

■»' ^ t-i ► ' • • ' • - • ^ ^ ^
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

•  BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

:  . The Contractor identified in Sectioni'.S of the General Provisions of the.Agreement agrees to \
.  ' '■ comply with the Health Insurance Portability and, Accountatiility Act, Public Law 104-191 and

, , , with the Standards for Privacy and Security,of Individuallyildentifiabie Health Inforrnation, 45
V  ' CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to busiriess assocjates..As defined herein, "Business .

'  ̂ ; Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the'Cohtractor that
-  receive, use or have access to protected health information under.this Agreement and "Covered

Entity" shall mean the State of New. Hampshire. Department of He.alth and Human Services.

{1) Definitions; ■ .

-  . , a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning" as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of title 45. - .
'  . Code of Federal Regulations.

■  '' b; "Business AssQciate".has the meaning given'such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,-Code
of Federal Regulations.

.c. "Covered Entity" hasihe meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. •
.. ."Code of Federal Regulations.' ■ . •

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the sarne meaning as the term "designated recordsM" -
'  in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

■  , - e:' '"Data Aqoreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" in 45CFR "
/  ' ■-.Section 164.50iT- ' ' V'' . ^ \ 7 -V- ' \ ^ ■ . - • ■ ..

7  ■ f.; "Health Care Operations" shall have the same rheaninq as'the term "health careoperations"
■' ' '• ^ 1n 45. CFR Section 164'.56i. . ■ . . • : -

■  ■ ■ ' ■ . '"V . ^ .
"HITECH Actlmean's the.Health Information Technology for Economic and ClinicalHealth '

-Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle b,-PartV&2.of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
-- ^ - ' 2009." ' "■ ... ' ■ ; • ' 7 • ' ' ■

-V-

'  • h.'"'"HIPAA""meahs the Health Insurance Portability arid Accountability Act.of 1996, Public Law
•  ̂ 104-191 and the Standards for Privacy,and,Security-of Individually Identifiable Health ' ■

Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendrhents thereto. .. —V'

-  i. ' "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance vyith 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the UnitedStates
Department of Health arid Human Services.

•  k. "Protected Health Information" s.hal) have the same^meaning as the term "protected health
■  information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receh/ed-tiy/^

.v„- "■ Business Associatefrom or on behalf of Covered Entity. ' fi) *
V 3^14 ■ . ' -••• '. ^ ExhibilO Cohtf3tiOfInitiats

Hsatih'lnsuroncoPortabllity'Acl— '' -
.  , . , 'Business ^odaie'Agreerhenl , . 5/23/2023

-• . V, , Page'lbf6'" - .. . Date '
••• ' -.i' . -J :
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I. 'ReQuired bv Law" shall have the sanreTneaning OTlhe'term "Vequired by law" in 45GFR •
Section 164.103. ■ "iv '

■ -m. "Secrelarv".shali mean the SecretarylbTilhe Dej^rnent of.tteaUh.a'ndrHuman Services or .
:  his/her designed / ' ' : • - ; •

n. "Security Rule" shall rhean .the SecuritySlandards'for the'Protection pf-Electronic Protected :
■  '• ) Health Information at 45 CFR Part ;T64,*SubpaTltD,-and'amendmGnts thereto.

o: 'Unsecured Protected Health Information'-means protected health information that is not
" secured by a technology staridard that renders-protected health infbrmation unusable.
-  unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthprized;individuals'and is developed or endorsed by

a standards developing organization that is.acCredited by the American National Standards
.  Institute. • . ■ - - ' . • • • '

'  ]■ . . ■ ,
p. Other Definitions - All terrns not otherwise defined herein shall have'the meaning

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and, 164, as amended from lime to time, and the
HITECH ■ ■ ■
Act. .

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information...

a; ' Business Associate shall not use. disclose,'maintain or transmit Protected Health'
.Information (PH|) except as reasonably necessary to provide~the services outlined under.

'  . Exhibil^A of the Agreement: Further, Business Associate, Including but not.limited to all
■ ' ' its directors., officers, employees and agehts';.shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit.

PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and.Security Rule.

.  ,b, V I Busiri'ess Associate may use oVdisclbse PHI; ■ \ ""•*
•  .1.' For the proper management'ahd administration of the Business Associate;

|l.. As. required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
•  ill. For data aggr^ation purposes for the health care operations of Covered •

Entity.

i

c. • • To the extent Business Associate, is permitted under the Agreemerit to'disclose PHI to a '
. ' ; '• third party. Business Associate must obtain,-prior to making any such disclosure," (i)

reasonable assurances from the third parly that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used,or further disclosed only, as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (li) an agreement from such third party to notify Business '
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach. •

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a

-  request for disclosure on the basis that it is required" by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity .to objectto the disclosure and.  . to seek appropriate relief, If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, theBusip^^P

-3/2014' - / • ' ' Efh'b'tD ■ ■ - Contractof Inilials S —
:  . ■ ; . ■ 1' ■ Heallhinsuranca'PoftaWIilyAcl • 'j, - ," " : ;

•• .'t '■ • Business"Associate Agrocmenl • > S/23/2023
'-''Page.2'of6 . ■'[] ' Da»e

^  ■ .i" -
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i'J, >■ , Associate shajl refrajn from disclosing the PHIujntQCb^ed Entity has exhausted all
' .,r " remedies. ^ ' .. .

e. ... If the Covered Entity ngtifies'the Business Assoc^that'Coyered Entity has agreed to
^  be biound by additional restrictions'over ahd:at>o«eahose';usesor.disclosures or security

;  •; .safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy-andSeiarrlty'Rule, the Business Associate
- ; . .shall be bound by. such additional restrictionsrandtto'llTtot disclose PHI in violation of

»  V.V- v such.additional restrictions aod.shall.abide byany.a4ditional securitysafeguards.

.  (3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate:

;  'a. ' The Business Associate shall notify the CoveTed Entity's Privacy"Officer Immediately
'  after the Business Associate becomes aware of .any use or disclosure of protected

•V ; health Information not provided for by,the;Agf;eement^including breaches of unsecured
•  ; [protected health information and/orianysecurity'incldent that may. have an impact onthe

■  v . protected health information of the'Covered Entity:

.  .V - b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessrnent when it becomes
j  ;• aware of any of the above situations.; The risk assessment shall include, but.not be

. .. limited to:

'  . .6 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
•  types of identifiers and'the.likelihood of re-identification;

; ^ .0,' The unauthorized person used the protected.heallh infoimatiori or to whom the ■
■  disclosure was made; ^ ,• ' ' ' '■

-• o; Whether the protected health .information was'actually acquired or viewed
'  • ■' .' . V 0 The extent jo which the risk to the protected health information has been

:  • t' • Cn'lj93ted.- ' , ■ " • ,

"4

•r> .

The Business Associate, shall complete therrsk assessrrient.within 48 hours of the ' . : -
y'-A-''' ' breach and immediately report the findings of the-risk assessment in.writing to the -

■  > - •" - ■ Covered Entity. . - - . ; ' , ' ' ,

^  c.'' : .The Blisiness Associate shall comply with all sections.of the Privacy, Security, and ,
Breach Notification.Rule. ' ' , . J '

■ , d_. • , Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books . * •
r "* and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or

received by the Business Associate on'behalf of Covered Eritity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule. ' • '

'  - ' ' - I-
e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have

access to PHI under the, Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the. same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including

'  V "the duty to return ordestrpythe PHI as provided under Sectlon,3 (I). The Covered Entity
•  shall.be consideredla direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business as^gjate^  ̂ agreements with Contractor's intended business assqciatesj.who will be receivirjg^^l '

'J ■ . '■ 1 ,3/2014 ^ , -j • Exhibll D ' Contractor Inilials ^ .
i-,.' ^ 'V .. ■ ■ ' r. .. - . . : Health Insurarx^ Portability Act^ , ' • ■ ' , ^

'y; ' , •. "1 ' ; ' Business'Associate Agreement; V . ' ' ' ' 5/23/2023;",
-''"•v" ' r ■- Pa^3of6 : -.V- ' Date . ■ ' • .'V'
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•'5 V.

„  -i
> • . •

'pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from*such
business associates who shaifbe governed byistandard Paragraph .#'p of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of.this Agreement for the purpose bf/use and'disclosure of
■protected health information. , , „ > ' : ; . ' ■

Within five .(5) business days of receipt of a wiitten request from'cbvered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices ail
records., books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure.

' of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity "to determine
BusihessAssociate'scpmpliancewjththetermsoftheAgreement. . ' '

. -j.

I

*  ̂ ,g., Within ten (10),business days of receiving a written;.request .from Covered Entity,
■  Business Associate shall provide access to'PHMn a Designated Record Set to the.

■;!' Covered Entity, .oras""directed by Coverecl Entityvto.an individual in.order to meet the
.  requirements under-45 CFR Section, 164.'5'24. • ' ,

fi.. - Within ten,(10) business days of receivirig a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or ajrecord about an [ridividual contained in a Designated Record .
Set, the Business Associate shall make.such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment "and incorporate any such amendment to.ehable Covered Entity to fulfill its

'■ ■ pbligations'ynder-45 CFR Section 164:526. ' '
f  . ' ► V

> H i. • Business As^sociate shall docum'ent such disclosures of PHI and information related to ■
■  'Such disclosures as'woOid be fequired for Covered Entity to respond to a request byari

•• individual.for an accounting of disclosures of-PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
;• , ,164.528., ' • ••- , '

Within ten (10) business.days of receiving a'writteri request from"Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI,Business Associate shall makeavallable
to .Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may .require tq'fulfill its obligations'

.■/••to provide an accountirig "of disclosures with respecttp PHI in accordance with 45 CFR •;
-  •' - Section 164.528. " ' • • •

.k. , ,ln the event any individual requests.access to,"amendment of, or accounting of PHI
.... ' <-•.

3/2014.,

I.'-

•  . W , ;

directly frpm theBusiness Associate, the Business Associate shall \yithin two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
/esponsibility of responding to forward.ed requests. However, if .forwarding the
.individual's request to Covered Entity wbUld,cause Covered Entity or the-Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Pfivacy and Security .Rule, the Business Associate
shajl.instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
•Covered Entity .of such response as soon as practicable. ' ' :•

Within len (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of.such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, of the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed toin . .
the Agreemeht, Business Associate.shall continue to extend the protections of the " , ' ' '
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th<^03 . . -
purposes that make'the return or destruction infeasible..for.,so long as B.usiness pp. . ' .

• \ . v'f. ' ExhibUD.- , 'n . Conlfactof Initjals ^
l' .Hea,llh.lr«urartcepqrtabJlity.Acl vf"'' • -

•u '. '". - f ' 8ui5ini6s's;.As'socttl©Aijre^ ' • . 5/23/2023 '
'y ' ■ -'•' • '^■•Pag0'4of6 ' i-" ■ • '.' ' - V ' ' Date v ■ . ' • . ■■■.■

cwv • ■ - - ^ f -
-I ■

'  '" ' . ''• 'l'' '' •• '■ .■ ' ■ s • • ••' ' -I
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•^1

Associate maintalns'sOch PHI. If.Covered Entity, in its sole discrelioh, requires that the'
,  Business Associate destroy any or all PHI; the'Business Associate shall certify to

T Covered .Entity-that the PHI-has been destroyed' . • I. '

(4) ObliQatiohs of Covered Entity ' - . , ;

a. Covered Entity, shall hotify. Business Associate of any changes or Iimitatl6n{s) in its '
Notice of Privacy Practices prpvided-to'indiyiduals in'accordance'with 45 CFRSection
•164.520, to the extent thatsuch cHarige or limitation'may"affect Business Associate's *;
use or disclosure of PHI". ' • . ' .

br. • Covered Entity shall prornptly;nptify Business Associate of any changes In,'or revocation
. V . of permission provided to Covered Entity by.individuals whose PHl.may be used or
'  ' • disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuarit to 45 CFRSection • ■

1.64.506.or'45 CFR Section'le^/SOS:,. ; \ - ■

' c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of arly r'estrictions on the use or-
■  ;disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has:agreed to in accordance with,45 CFR-164.522.
. to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of

-■ / , PHI.' 7" ■

(5) Termination for Cause
In addition toParagraph 10 of the standard termsand conditions (P.-3.7) of this: « •

; .i 'Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately-termihate the Agreement upon Covered
. Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate oHhe Business Associate

;  '^Agreerhent_set forth herein as Exhibit D. The Covered Entity may either immediately
'7 J terminate.the.Agreement-or provide an opportunity for Business Associate tpcure the.
..7 alleged breach within a timeframe.specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Eritity

.  ' i '' '

■  ':determines that neither termination nor cure'isTeas.ible, Covered Entity shall report the v
''violation tjD the'SecretatV:". ' / . . ■, '77' ;- ' ■ ' . ■ ' - - 7,.. ,'

7 (6)' iMiscellaneoiis

.Definitions and Reoulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwisedefined herein. .'
. 7 shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended. ^

,V • . . . V- ' -.from time to time. A reference in the Agreernent, as amended to include this Exhibit D, to •
7'. ,^ 7-j a'Section in .the,Privacy and Security Rule means, the Section asin, effect or as- // , ^-7

-  ' ■ ■'amended.., '

b. . Amendment. Covered Entity and Business, Associate agree to take such action as is -
■necessary.to arnend .the Agreement, from, tirne to time as is necessary for Covered * <
Entity-to comply with the changes in the requirements of.HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state iaw. . , •

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledoes that it has no ownership riohts
. with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity;

.;d.. . Jnterpretatidn. The parties aoree that anv ambicuitv in the A'creerneht shallbereaftfoed .
,7. . ; , ■ tb permit Coyer'ed Entity to comply with'HIPAA.'the Privacy,and Security Rule.' '

-• Exhibit 0 .; ' ..Cbntractof IrtlUals'^ - ;' ■(
'.Vi' '• . Health Insurance Portability ■ '.','"'7

1- ■ ■; 'AcJ Business Asspdate * . •" "• ' '5/23/2023' ■
AQreementPaoe'SofS -. ''•7."''''';' " • Date, ' ' U

.  ' . ' • . • - • i. t r. . *' ' i.'' " •'

'.''-7 • * V",'"V- p. -i.. - ■ ' \ '1 r- ' • '- i*' !V k v" ' ~ "
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\  . '

i  '

e. ' .Sebreqation. If any".

conditions which,can be given effect without ithe (invalid term or condition;-to, this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit D are declared severable.

■  - .Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit D regarding theiase^and disclosure of PHI, return of-
destruction of P.HI, extensions of the protectlons'oflhe'Agreenient in section (3) I. the

'' - " .defense and .indemnification provisions of section'(3^)% and Paragraph 13 of the"-

j.

JftWj.T'NESS WHE.REOF, the parties hereto ha've.duly executed this Exhibit D.

■ ■ ' Department of Health and Human Services

'pipkStateibT: ' ■

Slgna!ufe ot^'uthonzed.Represehtatl
Katja s. fox' .. : -

NFi North,r inc.

4aB3asQLthe Contractor '
I  '

pAuL
^"r^Ture^orfo Representative
Paul bann-

Name of Authorized Representative - ' Name of Authorized Representative

Di rector Executive ,01 rector

;  ."Title of Authorized Representative

.- ■'5/25/202-3 ■ . . .

'  "Date- - " ' •'

'Title of.Authorized Representative

:5/23/2023:" - • '

Date. ■- y,

•1- /

.• V '
•  V ; . , f ,

,  J,-

'3/2014

r •
►j-.v

.  ■ J I*'-' '

" '"-/v"! iV" . >

ExhibitD • '
, ' Health-Insurance Portability Act •

'  ■ .Business Assodajle Agreement
J  , • . .Pages of 6 •: •/■

I.' I

.  ... . Contractor Initials

-  .
. ,

Pd

A-

. • i'v."

5/23/2023
Dale

'' . -'J

..

';■/ •

•  • *

;• 'y . 'i'
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-r ' - . DHHS Information Seaimty Requtrenients.

■  ̂ ■ ■ A. Definitions;. ■ ' ' 1'" ■ . •. ' ■

•  ' The'foliowing terms may be refiededsndJba^JtherflEsciibed meaning in this document:".
■■ • 'I: . • •- ; ' ■

- .l.- 1- - "Breach" means the loss' .of .^control, i conjprdtriise, unauthorized disclosure,
-  * -unauthorized acquisition, •uhauthorized.access, or any. "similar term referring to

:■ '.H ' : - ' ■ situations where persons Mother than authorized iisers and for an other than
authorized purpose .have access'or tpoteritial iacoess to-personally identifiable
information, whether physical-or dectronic. .With , regard to Protected Health

•  information, " Breach" shall have.the same meaning as the term "Breach" in se'ctlon
164.402 of title45, Code of Federal Begulations.:

2.. "Cornputer Security Incident" shall''have'lhe^*same';7meaning "Computer Security.
Incident" in sectiori two (2)'0f'NIST Publicdidri 800^61, Corriputer iSecurlty Ihcident

,  " Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
-  of Commerce,. " ■.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Cdnfidehtial; Data".,means all confidential, information
disclosed by one party to the other such as,all medical, heaith, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance

~  Abuse Treatment Records, Case'Records,- 'Protected Health Information and.
. v - .v Perso'ndly Identifiable lnformdion." ' ». .

^ .1 ■ ■ , • ■ . y']) . • Confidential Information also includ.es any.and all information owned or managed by
" the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf pf Ihe'Departnrient of Health and'

' g., ■ Human Services .(DHHSj br'accessed in the course of; performing contracted
•  services-r of-which collection, .'disclosure,- prptection, and disposition, is governed by

•r' ■ ..state or federal law or'regulation. This inforrhatio'ri .includes, but is not limited to'
-  .Prpteded Health Information (PHI), "Persohal Iriformation. (PI),. Personal Financial'  ' -Information (PFI), Federal'Tax- Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), ■

Payrrierit Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End "User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
tjusiness; associate, subcoriiractor, .other .Pownstream user, etc.) "that receives

-  .DMHS-data'.or derivative data;lp accordance w/ith the terms of this Contract. \ ,

5. "HIPAA".means the Health, Insurance Portability.and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
•  regulations promulgated thereunder. '

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security poHcy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for .the processing or=storage of data; and changes to system hardware. '
firmware, or software'characteristics without the'owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include "the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting ,of physical or electronic

■03

■•'t»V. .v.;

' VSliasCu^'ate iOfOO/id ^ . } v • .. .VI Ex^ib^t, • .s . • Contfactor Initials ^ ' y . y/
,  DHHS'lrifonnalioh'' ^ ^ . • - . ,

- ;Securily.Requirerrienl$-. i « ''5/23/.2023 , • /..
'  EaQe\i o(9«-v -Date

.  V . .-V' 'V, " • 5 ■ f' ' T
•' ,■ . - * •; -v.! »."■ ' , I-*'. V-"

.  . f V •'
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DHHS Information Security ReiQmrements

' u

I  • V .

■vmail, all of which may have the potential lo.iput lhe data" at risk of-unauthorized
, access, use, disclosure, modification or destriUCtipn.

•  7. ' "Open Wireless Network""'means any.inetwprk ror:segment of a network that is.
not designated by the State of New Hampstiire's Department of Information

... Technology, or delegate as" a protected metwork (designed,• tested, and
approved, by means of the. State, to. transmit)!, will be considered an open
network.ahd hot adequately secure for the»traT»smission ,of'unencrypted.,F'l, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data, - " ; . .

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as theirmame, social security number, personal
Information as 'defined in New Hampshire l?SA 359-C:19, bipmetric records, etc.,

"  alone, or when combined with other personal Or identifying .information which Is lirik^
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden >
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health"
.  Information at ^S-C.F.R.,Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United.
-•States Department of Health and Human Services. ' • •

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has'the same meaning as provided in the-
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy,Rule at 45 C.F.R: §

.  160.103., . ■ ; ■ ■ ■_

11,,"S.ecurity R^uie" shall mean 'theSecurity. Standards for the Protection pf- Electronic
Protected Health :lnformation at 45., C.F.R: Part '164, Subpart C. and, amendments

■'thereto.; . "i .. ■-

.-■j

12. "^Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information'that is
:  ; riot secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health information

'  unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and ■ is
;  developed or endorsed by a standards .developing organization that is accredited by

.  the American National Standards Institute. .. .- ■ . '

h RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

•  A. Business Use and Disclosure of-Confidential Information.

f. the Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Infomiation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further,.Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit.PHI In any manner that would constitute.a violation
of the Privacy and .Security IRule. ■ '

"2. The, Contractor must not disclose any. Confidential Information ;in response' to a
—03' , ,

eh -
\ :;V5. Last'updato 10/09/18' " ;V v'Exhibit E • ' .. Conlraclorlriliiais- — ■'-I-r; •'

'' • . (••• DHHS lnfonnalion>' . • • ' • ' . . ' •' ■ .? '
'  i 't .*Sew(ity.pequiremeri_lsj' ' --'J - • • ► " 5/23/2023;

'T ' ' " ' ' ''* '".v^-'V.'Page2of9 ■'•9ate_l
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•  /. r^ue'st for ;dlsdosure .on theVbasis that jt is. required by law." in respond to a
■  " subpoena, etc., without first n.otifyirig "DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity tb -'
.  .-.conseht or. object.to the disclosure. -

3, If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DI^HS .has agreed to be bound,by .additional .
" resthctionsroyer and above those uses or disclosures or. security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and .must, not. disclose,PHI in violation of such additional

. restrictlbhs and rriust abide byiariy additional security safeguards.

*4.. The Contractor-agrees that DHHS Data' or derivative there from disclosed to ah End
^Usermust.onlybeusedpursuanttotheternisof.thisContract.' "- , '

' 5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained^uncler 'this Contract may not be used,for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. the Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
' • • , of. DHHS for the purpose of inspecting-to. confirm compliance with the terms of this'

,Contract.t ^

.  , ' ,11. METHODS 9F SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA .

t u. • v;v ■ 1. "Applica.tion Encryption; If End User 'is,-;tran'smitting DHHS data 'containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests,the applications have,;

p  • been evaluated by ah expert knowlebgeable in cyber • security and .that said
V  y . applicajlori's encryptidh capabilities-.ensure.secufe;^trarism|ssi.on via the internet,".,

'  ;/2. rComputer'Disks and Porfable Storage'Devices.. End User may hot use,computer, disks
J:,.' •. or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as^a method of transrnitting DHHS

'data. V V ' - " ^
i-'i

.'•f

.3.; Encrypted Email. End User may only'erhplqy^email to Uahsmit Confidential Data-if'
.email is encrypted and being sent to and:'being .received by email .addresses of ,
persons authorized to receive such inforfhatiori. ^ „

4.- Encrypted Web Site. If End User-is employing'-the Web to transmit Confidential
' Data, the" secure;socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web .site must be ;,
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted.via:a'Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End .User may not use file
hosting services,, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data. . " . '

6. Ground Mail Service. End User, may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual. " ■»

7. Laptops and PDA. If .End User is employing -portable ' devices' to transmit
Confidential Data-said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open \Afir.eless Networks. End'User rnay not transmit 'Cpnfidential Data via ah open

5,;
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wireless network. End User must. employ vliituar pnvate'.netwoil< (VPN) when :
remotisly transmitting via an open.wireless network. ' *

■ 9. {Remote User Gonhmunicatiqn. If End User Is «rnploying remote communication to
^access or transmit Confidential Data, a.,virtual;-.private network (VPN) must be

;• " installed on the End User's mobile device(s) orjiaptop from which information will be
.  ".transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Tra'nsfer Protocol (SFTP), also known^as. Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

'End. User is employing an SFTP .to transmit Confidential D.ata, End User .will '
:  structure'the Folder" and .access privileges'to prevent inappropriate disclosure of

' ■ "information, .'SFTP folders and sul>fplders',L«ed.for transmitting Confidential Data \will .
. be axJed for 24-hour auto-deletion.cycle {i.e...ConfidentiaI Data will be deleted every 24

^ , .hours). • ' . ; '

Vi. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting. Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
.data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. •

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF ipENTIFlABLE^

, , The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this,
, Contract: After such'time, the Contractor-will have' 30 days' to destroy the'data and any.
'  derivative in whatever forrn it "may exist, unless; , ptheiwise required by. law or permitted
"  ' under this Coritract. To this;end.'the,parties nriust: ' ■ —• -

A. Retention . ,

r .

•>"

.  1

1,

i,j ...;

-r' l ,1....: .'the .Qontractor agrees 'it will - not :store; ..transfer or process-'data^collected .in " ' . {
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

"'- T.-V ',.' 'V'''- '.<•"■ - "--States."This physical.ldcation'requiremeht-.shall.also'apply.in the implementation"of
:'*• . , . . . ' 'Cloud computing, cloud service ;0r cloud storage capabilities, and ,includes backup.' ' ,

.  ■ data and Disaster'.Recovery locations, r . . ..
.  2. The Contractor agrees to ensure, proper security monitoring capabilities are in • '

♦  , : place to detect potentiaj security events that can impact State.'of NH systems ■ . ; 1
,  • ' • , V .and/or"Departmeni,confidentiai;information"for contractor provided systems. •' ' ';V

-  , ' • 3. The Contractor agrees'to provide security awareness and education for its End •
Users in support-of protecting Department confidential information. .

4. ' The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
"• • in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2 ' ' . ^

5. The Contractor , agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
' FedRAf^P/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with, all applicable statutes and ,

• regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have .
■  currently-supported and-hardened, operating-sysjems, the latest.anti-viral, ahti- • .
,  hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, arid anti-malvy'are,utilities. The environment, as a -

■ ■v' y ' ../■ K-f'- k, ■' i',:'
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^  ̂ whole, must have aggressive IhtrusiorMlfetectio.n.and firewall protection.^ ' i "■

'  • fe. . The Contractor agrees to arid.ensuresiitscomplete cooperation with the State's "
,  Chief Information .Officer in (he delectioniof^any security vulnerability of the hosting'

infrastfucture.r. "

B. Disposition. ■ .

'  1. If'the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information oh its systems (or its . '
.  sub-contractor systems), the Contractor, will maintain a documented process for ^

securely, disposing of such data uponTequest .or contract terrnination;'and will
obtain written certification for any State Of :New Hampshire dka.destroyed by the,
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergehcy, and or disaster,

•  recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be re.ndered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program

"  in accordance with industiy-accepted standards for secure deletion, and-media •
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying" the rnedia (for example, .

,  degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, 'Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, Natiorial Institute of .Standards and Technology, U. S.

•  " .Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writirig at •
time of the data destruction, and will proyide. written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification'will include all details necessary to
dempnstrate.'data has been properly destroyed a.nd'validated'. Where applicable,.'

.  regulatory and,professional.standards for retention requiremerits, wilf.be,jointly ,
evaluated by the State and Contractor phor to destruction.

<2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty- (30). days/of, the termination of this.J
, Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy ajl hard.copies of Conifidentiaj Data using a,

"... secure rnethod such as shr^ding.' " ' " ' .. .n

'J

3.. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this- .=
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all .electronic Confidential Data ,

■ by means of data e.fasure. also known as secure'data wiping.^ ■

■  IV.•'procedures FOR SECURITY ■ ^ - ......
•, - - " ..r , .• - - ■ . ■'• .

A. Contractor agrees to, safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any ' '... .
■ 'derivative data or files, as follows: ■

'  1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls .to. protect ; Department'
confidential inforniation collected,.processed, managed, and/or stored in the .delivery
of contracted services. ... "

2. The. .Contractor will rnaintain policies and procedures ;to- protect Department
'  • , confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from

'  creation, transformation,, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the V. V' ,
.  media used to store the.data (i.e., tape, disk,.paper, etc.). ^ •

'■ VS.Xaslupdale 10/09/18 -Exh(b}tE-i CohUaclor Initials .. -y:v. - 'L
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3., The Contractor vyill rnaintain apBropriate autlientlcation and access controls to,
'  contractor systems that collect.irahsmit, or.istoreiDep'ailment .confidential information'

, where applicable. - ' . , . ,

- "4. The Contractor will ensure proper-^curitym©nitoning»capa_bilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractdr;provided systems.. • .

"5. • The Contractor will provide regular security" awareness-arid education for its End
Users in support bf'protecting Oeparlment.confidential information. . \

-6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of Nevy Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a'
program of an interrial process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach.notification requirements.

,7. The Contractor will work with the .Department to sign .and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization .policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system{s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and ariy applicable sub-contractors prior to

v., ' -system access being.authorized. ■ '

8". . If the Department deterrriifies the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor.will execute a ^HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
"(BAA) with the Departrnent and/js responsible for maintaining compliance with jhe

/ agreement. ' • r.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department ,at its request to complete a System
• Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
"Contractor to rnonitqr for any changes in risks, threats; and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed-
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by,
the Contractor, .or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New.Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Iriformation Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent, future breach ahd minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of. response and recqvery from

^  . •r- ■
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V, the breach, including but not limited'to:-ae^it rfionitoring"services, mailing costs and
,  costs associated with website and telephone calj center. services"necessary idue to

the breach., ' / ' "

. 12. Contractor must, comply-with ail applicable statutes and regulations regarding-the
\  privacy and security of Confidential information,: and must in ail other respects

maintain the privacy and security of Pi'and PHI at a level and scope that is not iess-
than the level and,scope, of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act.of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations {45, C.F.R. §5b), ;HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 arid 164) that govern protections for indiyiduallyjdentifiable health
information and as applicable.under State law.

'13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, ah^
.  physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to

■ prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the .level and-scope of security requirements
established by the Stale of New.Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating'to vendors. . .

14. Coritractor agrees to maintain a documented'breach ndtificatipn and incident
'  response process. The Contractor wiil notify the State's Privacy Officer and the

State's Security Officer :of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
securiiy Incident, or .suspect^ breach which'affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networlc. '

'  .1'
15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this ■

Contract to only those authorized End Users .who need "such DHHS Data to.
perform'their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract."

16. The Contractor must ensure that ail End Users- .

a. corhply with such safeguards as- referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent .to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive suchjnfdrmatiori.

'■ /■"
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e. - limit disclosure 'pf the Cohfidehhal 'information to;the extent permitted by law.

■f. Confidential " Information i received! under this- Contract and individually
identifiable data, derived from DHHS Data, must be" stored in an area that is
physically, and technojpgicajiy secure from access .by unauthorized persons

"during duty, hours as well as* nonrduty hours.fe.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.). ■ •

g. only authorized End Users may- transmit the Confidential Data; including any
derivative files containirig personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data rhust be encrypted at.ajl times when In .transit, at rest, or when
stored oh portable media as required in section IV above.

h; in all other instances Confide^htial 'Data must be maintained, used-and
disclosed using-appropriate safeguards, as determined by .a" risk-based

• assessment of the circumstances involved.
'u. -.t.

I. ' understand that .their user credentials .(user name and password) must, not be
shared with anyone.' End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies tp credentials-used to.access the site directly or indirectly through

'  - . - a third;party application. , ,

Contractor is responsible for oversight arid'corhpijance of their End Users. DHHS >'
reserves the right to. conduct orisite inspections to monitor compliance with this ,

' 'Contract; including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
' • and other applicable" laws .and Federal reguiatiohs until such time the Confidential Data

■  js disposed of in accordance.with this Contract. ■;

V; LOSS.REPORTING ' - - •
V-- ■ " ■

.' The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security-Officer of any •
'•^Security Incidents and Breaches inrimediately, at the email addresses provided In

Section VI. ' ^ ■ ' - '

The Contractor must/further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in.
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling arid Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F:R. §§, 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:
1.- Identify'Incidents;
2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

.."li ^ r
•  ./, ■ u, V' ' ' ■ . : . . .. . .
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•  5. Determine whether. Breach notification fis tra^lrecl,, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, soujce.>and .iconteiits from among different"
options, and bear .costs^associated with the S^'ch inotice as well as any mitigation"

,  measures. " .

"Incidents-and/or Breaches that' implicate P\ nujst be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in.accordance with NH RSA 359-020.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS PrivacyOfficer: - ■ '
DHHSPriyacyGfficer@dhhs.nh.goV' ?

.  B. DHHS Security Officer; '

DHHSInformatibhSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

•j-V .t-'' -
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